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$52,084,759.30 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Contra Costa County, California) 
2009 General Obligation Bonds 

Election of 2005, Series C-1 
(Tax-Exempt) 

Capital Appreciation Bonds 

Maturity Original 
Date Principal Reoffering Final Accreted 

Au!O!§t 1 Amount Accretion Rate Yield Value CUSIPt 
2016* $ 324,002.50 12.000% 5.010% $ 725,000 952347 UH3 
2017* 821,333.10 12.000 5.280 2,065,000 952347 UJ9 
2018* 1,279,673.85 12.000 5.560 3,615,000 952347 UK6 
2019* 1,477,584.50 12.000 5.780 4,690,000 952347 UL4 
2020* 1,749,633.60 12.000 5.950 6,240,000 952347UM2 
2021* 3,303,189.90 7.850 6.110 8,265,000 952347UNO 
2022* 3,306,532.30 6.240 6.240 7,310,000 952347 UP5 
2023* 67,056.00 6.350 6.350 160,000 952347UQ3 
2024* 61,731.20 6.490 6.490 160,000 952347 URI 
2025* 4,419,841.00 6.660 6.660 12,535,000 952347 US9 
2026* 4,337,148.00 6.760 6.760 13,350,000 952347 UT7 
2027* 4,513,142.40 6.850 6.850 15,080,000 952347UU4 
2028* 4,648,465.80 6.940 6.940 16,890,000 952347 UV2 
2029* 4, 776,185.40 7.000 7.000 18,795,000 952347UWO 
2030* 4,895,239.80 7.050 7.050 20,845,000 952347 UX8 
2031* 4,952,425.05 7.150 7.150 23,085,000 952347 UY6 
2032* 6,083,791.05 7.240 7.240 31,035,000 952347 UZ3 
2033* 1,067,783.85 7.340 7.340 5,985,000 952347 VA7 

t CUSIP is a registered trademark of American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard & Poor's, CUSJP Service Bureau, a 
division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. CUSIP data herein is provided for convenience of reference only. The District and the Underwriters take 
no responsibility for the accuracy of such data. 

* Insured by Assured Guaranty. 



MATURITY SCHEDULE 

$52,825,000 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Contra Costa County, California) 
2009 General Obligation Bonds 

Election of 2005, Series C-2 
(Federally Taxable - Issuer Subsidy - Build America Bonds) 

Current Interest Bond 

$52,825,000 8.400'/o Tenu Bond due August 1, 2034- Yield 8.460%- CUSIPt: 952347 VB5 

t CUS!f' is a registered trademark of Ametican Bankt~rs A·;sodation. CUSII' data herein is providt.'<l by Standard & Poor's, CUSIP St!rvice Bureau, a 
division 11f The 1\lcGraw-IIil\ Companit~s, Inc. CIJSII' data herein is prO\idPtl!iJr convenient·•~ tlf referenct~ tmly. Tht~ District aiHi thr~ Untlc~rwriters t~tke 
no responsibility for l.ht~ accuracy of such dilta. 



MATURITY SCHEDULE 

$57,860,000 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Contra Costa County, California) 
2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

Current Interest Bonds 
Maturity 

Date Original Principal 
Au!llillt 1 Amount Interest Rate Yield CUSIPt 

2010 $3,990,000 3.000% 1.510% 952347 VC3 
2011 1,750,000 3.000 1.930 952347 VDl 
2011 2,165,000 4.000 1.930 952347 VVI 
2012 3,600,000 3.000 2.290 952347 VE9 

Maturity 
Date Original Principal 

Au~rust 1 A!!lount Interest Rate Yield CUSIPt 
2013* $1,785,000 3.000% 2.430% 952347 VF6 
2013* 1,790,000 4.000 2.430 952347VW9 
20!3* 1,000,000 5.000 2.430 952347VX7 
20!4* 1,860,000 3.000 2.890 952347 VG4 
2014* 1,860,000 4.000 2.890 952347 VY5 
2014* 1,400,000 5.000 2.890 952347 VZ2 
2015* 2,895,000 3.000 3.250 952347 VH2 
2015* 2,900,000 4.000 3.250 952347WA6 
2015* 1,275,000 5.000 3.250 952347WB4 
2016* 3,1J5,000 3.250 3.610 952347 VJ8 
2016* 3,115,000 4.000 3.610 952347WC2 
2016* 2,275,000 5.000 3.610 952347 WDO 
2017* 2,000,000 3.500 3.880 952347 VK5 
2017* 3,000,000 4.000 3.880 952347 WE8 
2017* 5,950,000 5.000 3.880 952:347 WF5 
20!8* 535,000 4.000 4.030 952347VL3 
2019* 555,000 4.000 4.230 952347VMI 
2020* 580,000 4.125 4.400 952347 VN9 
2021* 600,000 4.375 4.560 952:347 VP4 
2022* 625,000 4.500 4.690 952347VQ2 
2023* 655,000 4.625 4.800 952347 VRO 
2024* 685,000 4.750 4.910 952347 VS8 

$3,990,000 5.250% Term Refunding Bond due August. I, 2029*- Yield 5.330%- CUS!Pt: 952347 VT6 

$1,910,000 5.375% Term Refunding Bond due August I, 2031*- Yield 5.4700,6- CUSIPt: 952347 VU3 

t CUSJI' is a regisl<!red trademark of American Btmkers A_<;sociation. CUSII' data hemin is provided by Standard & Poor's, CUSII' SP.nicc nun:au, a 
division of The :O.kC:rnw-IIill Companies, Inc. CUSIP data hemin is provided for convenh!nCt! of refen!llC!! only. Tiu.: District. amlt he Underv.'Jii<!I"S lake 
no responsibility for Uw accuracy of such data. 

* fnsured by Assured Guaranty. 



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the District to give any information 
or to make any representations other than as contained herein and, if given or made, such other information or 
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the District. This Official Statement does not 
constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by a person in 
any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such an offer, solicitation, or sale. The Undetwriters 
have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriters have reviewed the 
information in this Official Statement in accordance with and as part of their responsibilities to investors under the 
federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriters do not 
guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

The financial and other information relating to the District presented or incorporated by reference in this 
Official Statement has been provided by the District from its records, except for information expressly attributed to 
other sources. The presentation of information, including tables of receipts from taxes and other revenues, is 
intended to show recent historic information and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the 
financial position or other affairs of the District. No representation is made that past experience, as it might be 
shown by such financial and other information, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future. 

Such information is believed to be reliable but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness and is not 
to be construed as a representation by the District or the Underwriters. All other information set forth herein has 
been obtained from DTC and other sources (other than the District) which are believed to be reliable. However, it is 
not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness and is not to be construed as a representation by the District or the 
Underwriters. The infonnation and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither 
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any 
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Disu·ict since the date hereof. This Official Statement 
is being submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in 
whole or in part, for any other purpose, unless authorized in writing by the District. 

Assured Guaranty makes no representation regarding the Insured Bonds or the advisability of investing in 
the Insured Bonds. In addition, Assured Guaranty has not independently verified, makes no representation 
regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement or any 
information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with respect to the accuracy of the 
information regarding Assured Guaranty supplied by Assured Guaranty and presented under the heading 
"INFORMATION CONCERNING THE POLICY AND THE BOND INSURER" and APPENDIX F -
"SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY." 

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, IN 
RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute "forward­
looking statements." Such statements arc generally identifiable by the terminology used such as ''plan," ·'expect,'' 
"estimate,•· ''budget," "project,'' "projection'' or other similar words. The achievement of certain results or other 
expectations contained in such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and 
other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from 
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The 
District does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those forward-looking statements if or when its 
expectations or events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based occur. 

The District maintains a website. However, the inf01mation presented there is not part of this Official 
Statement, is not incorporated by reference herein and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision 
with respect to the Bonds. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Contra Costa County, California) 
2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of and guide to, 
and is qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained in the entire Official Statement, including the 
cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents summarized or described herein. A full review should be 
made of the entire Official Statement. The offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the 
entire Official Statement. 

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and appendices hereto, is provided to furnish 
information in connection with the sale of West Contra Costa Unified School District 2009 General Obligation 
Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-1 (Tax-Exempt) (the "Series C-1 Bonds"'), West Contra Costa Unified School 
District 2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-2 (Federally Taxable- Issuer Subsidy - Build 
America Bonds) (the "Series C-2 Bonds'"), and West Contra Costa Unified School District 2009 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (the "Refunding Bonds" and together with the Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds, the 
"Bonds'"). The initial aggregate principal amount of the Series C-1 Bonds is $52,084.759.30, the initial aggregate 
principal amount of the Series C-2 Bonds is $52,825.000, and the initial aggregate principal amount of the 
Refunding Bonds is $57,860,000. as described more fully herein. 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to 
change. The District has no obligation to update the information in this Official Statement, except as required by the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificates to be executed by the District. See '"MISCELLANEOUS - Continuing 
Disclosure" and APPENDIX C- "FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATES" herein. 

Copies of documents refened to herein and information concerning the Bonds are available from the 
District through the Associate Superintendent Business Services, West Contra Costa Unif10d School District, 1108 
Bissell Avenue, Richmond. CA 94801-3135. Telephone: (510) 231-1170. The District may impose a charge for 
copying, mailing and handling. 

The District 

The District is located in Contra Costa County (the "County'"). State of California (the '"State'"), 
approximately 15 miles northeast of San Francisco. The District encompasses approximately 110 square miles and 
provides educational services to the residents of the cities of E1 Cerrito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond and San Pablo, 
the unincorporated communities of El Sobrante and Kensington and certain other unincorporated areas within the 
County. The District's average daily attendance for fiscal year 2008-09 is projected to be 28,002 and its 2008-09 
general fund expenditures are projected to be approximately $310.48 million. Taxable property in the District has a 
2008-09 assessed valuation of approximately $27.06 billion. See 'THE DISTRICT' and "AD VALOREM 
PROPERTY TAXATION"' herein. 



Authority for Issuance of the Bonds 

Series C-1 BondJ; and Series C-2 Bonds. The Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds are issued 
pursuant to certain provisions of the State Education Code (the "Education Code") and other applicable law, and 
pursuant to resolutions adopted by the Board of Education of the District and the Board of Supervisors of the 
County. The District received authorization to issue $400,000,000 of bonds at an election held on November 8, 
2005, by an affirmative vote of 55% or more of the votes cast, pursuant to Section 1 (b)(3) of Article XIJJA of the 
Stale of Califomia Constitution (the "State Constitution") and applicable laws. See "THE BONDS- Authority for 
Issuance" herein. 

Refunding Bonds. The Refunding Bonds are issued pursuant to certain provisions of Articles 9 and 11 of 
Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the State Government Code (the "Government Code") and other 
applicable law and pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of the District on July 29, 2009 
authorizing the issuance of not to exceed $80,000,000 of general obligation refunding bonds (the "Refunding 
Resolution"). 

Security and Sources of Payment for the Bonds 

The County is empowered and is obligated to annually levy ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate 
or amount, upon <iii property subject to taxation within the District (except certain personal property which is taxable 
at limited rates) for the payment of the interest, principal and premium, if any, on the Bonds. As additional security, 
the Federal Subsidy (as defined herein) is pledged to the payment of the Bonds. See 'THE BONDS- Security and 
Source of Payment for the Bonds," "THE BONDS - Additional Security for the Bonds" and "AD VALOREM 
PROPERTY TAXATION" herein. 

Bond Insurance 

The scheduled payment of ptincipal of and interest on the Insured Bonds when due will be guaraiHeed 
under the Policy which will be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Insured Bonds by Assured Guaranty. 
See "BOND INSURANCE" herein and APPENDIX F - "SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE 
POLICY." 

Purpose of the Bonds 

The proceeds from the Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds will be used to finance specific 
constrm:tion and modernization projects approved by the voters. The proceeds from the Refunding Bonds wj]] be 
used to refund a portion of the Prior Indebtedness (as defined herein). See "THE BONDS- Purpose of the Bonds" 
herein. 

Description of the Bonds 

Registration, Transfers and Exchanges. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds, and when 
delivered, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, 
New York ("DTC'l DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds and all transfers and exchanges will occur 
through book-entries made by DTC. In the event that a book-entry system is no longer used with respect to the 
Bonds, registered owners (the "Owners") listed in the Bond Register will receive payment of interest, principal, and 
premium, if any, on the Bonds directly from the Paying Agent. See 'THE BONDS - Book-Entry Only System" 
and APPENDIX D- "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM." 

Payments. Interest on the Current Interest Bonds is payable semiannually each February 1 and August 1, 
commencing February I, 2010. Interest on the Capital Appreciation Bonds will accrete from the date of delivery 
and will be compounded on each February 1 and August 1, commencing on February I, 2010, through and including 
the respective maturity dates. Principal of the Current Interest Bonds and the Final Accreted Value of the Capital 
Appreciation Bonds is payable on August 1 in each year due, as set forth on the inside front cover page hereof. See 
'THE BONDS - Description of the Bonds" herein. 
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Redemption. The Series C-1 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. The 
Series C-2 Bonds and the Refunding Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption as 
described herein. The Series C-2 Bonds are also subject to extraordinary optional redemption. See 'THE BONDS 
-Redemption of the Series C-1 Bonds", "THE BONDS - Redemption of the Series C-2 Bonds" and 'THE 
BONDS- Redemption of the Refunding Bonds" herein. 

Tax Matters 

In the opinion of Orrick, Hen·ington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to the District, based upon an analysis 
of existing laws. regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain 
representations and compliance with ce1iain covenants, interest on the Series C-1 Bonds and the Refunding Bonds is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986. In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Series C-1 Bonds and the Refunding Bonds is not a 
specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes. Interest on 
the Series C-1 Bonds is not included in adjusted current eamings when calculating corporate alternative minimum 
taxable income. No opinion is expressed as to whether interest on any portion of the Refunding Bonds is excluded 
from adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel is 
also of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. Interest on 
the Series C-2 Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related 
to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. See "TAX MATTERS" 
herein. 

Offering and Delivery of the Bonds 

The Bonds will be offered when, as and if issued by the District and received by the Underwriters, subject 
to the approval of their legality by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel. It 
is anticipated that the Bonds, in book-entry form, will be available for delivery through DTC in New York, New 
York, on or about September 3, 2009. 

Professionals Involved in the Offering 

KNN Public Finance, Oakland, California, is acting as Financial Advisor to the District with respect to the 
Bonds. Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, San Francisco, California, is acting as Bond Counsel to the District 
with respect to the Bonds. Sidley Austin LLP is acting as Disclosure Counsel to the District with respect to the 
Bonds. The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Los Angeles, California, will act as the District's 
paying agent, registrar, authentication agent, transfer agent and escrow agent with respect to the Bonds. Assured 
Guaranty is acting as bond insurer with respect to the Insured Bonds. Causey Demgen & Moore Inc., will act as the 
District's verification agent with respect to the Refunding Bonds. KNN Public Finance, Orrick, Hen·ington & 
Sutcliffe LLP, and Sidley Austin LLP will receive compensation from the District contingent upon the sale and 
delivery of the Bonds. 

THE BONDS 

Authority for Issuance 

Series C-1 Bonds and Series C-2 Bonds. The Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds are issued 
pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, including the provisions of Chapter I of Part 10 of Division I of 
Title I of the Education Code, and other applicable provisions of law. Additional authority for the issuance of the 
Series C-2 Bonds arises under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the '·Recovery Act"). The 
Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds are authorized to be issued by a resolution adopted by the Board of 
Supervisors of Contra Costa County on July 21, 2009 (the "County Resolution"), at the request of the Disu·ict by its 
resolution adopted on July 8, 2009 (the "District Resolution" and together with the County Resolution, the 
"Resolution"). The Series C-2 Bonds are designated as "Build America Bonds" under the Recovery Act and issued 
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pursuant to the specific provisions of a Paying Agent Agreement, dated as of September I, 2009 (the "Build 
America Bonds Paying Agent Agreement"), by and among the District, the County and the Paying Agent. 

The District received authorization (the "2005 Authorization") at an election held on November 8, 2005, by 
more than 55% of the votes cast by eligible voters within the Disllict, to issue bonds of the District pursuant to a 
ballot measure summarized as follows: 

"To continue repairing all school facilities, improve classroom safety and 
technology, and relieve overcrowding shall the West Contra Costa Unified 
School District issue $400 million in bonds at legal interest rates, with annual 
audits and a citizens' oversight committee to monitor that funds are spent 
accordingly, and upon receipt of a waiver of the District's statutory debt limit 
from the State Board of Education, if required?" 

On May 17, 2006, the District issued $70,000,000 of its General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, 
Series A (the "Series A Bonds") pursuant to the 2005 Authorization. On July 15, 2008, the District issued 
$120,000,000 of its General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series B (the "Series B Bonds") pursuant to the 
2005 Authorization. The Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds are the third and fourth series of bonds to be 
issued pursuant to the 2005 Autl10rization. After issuance of the Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds the 
District will have $105,090,240.70 remaining under the 2005 Authorization. For discussion of previously issued 
general obligation bonds of the District, see "THE DISTRICT- District Debt Structure" herein. 

Refunding Bonds. The Refunding Bonds are issued pursuant to certain provisions of Articles 9 and II of 
Chapter 3 of Part I of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code and other applicable law and pursuant to the 
Refunding Resolution. The Refunding Bonds are the first series of general obligation refunding bonds to be issued 
pursuant to the Refunding Resolution. The Refunding Bonds are issued pursuant to the specif1c provisions of a 
Paying Agent Agreement, dated as of September I, 2009 (the "Refunding Bonds Paying Agent Agreement" and 
together with the Build America Bonds Paying Agent Agreement, the "Paying Agent Agreements"), by and among 
the District, the County and the Paying Agent. 

Purpose of the Bonds 

Series C-1 Bonds and Series C-2 Bonds. The proceeds from the Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 
Bonds wil1 be used to finance specific construction and modernization projects listed in the ballot for the 
2005 Authorization. The purpose of these projects is summarized in the ballot for the 2005 Authorization and set 
forth above. See'·~ Authority for Issuance" herein. 

Refunding Bonds. The proceeds of the Refunding Bonds will be applied to advance or current refund and 
defease a portion of any of the following District general obligation bonds: (i) West Contra Costa Unified School 
District General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2000, Series A and West Contra Costa Unified School District 
General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2000, Series B (the "Outstanding Election of 2000 Bonds"); and (ii) West 
Contra Costa Unified School District General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series A and West Contra Costa 
Unified School District General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series B (the "Outstanding Election of 2005 
Bonds", together with the Outstanding Election of 2000 Bonds, the "Prior Indebtedness"). For a table of previously 
issued general obligation bonds and principal amounts outstanding with respect to each issue, see "THE DISTRICT 
-District Debt Structure'' herein. 

The Prior Indebtedness general obligation bonds that are chosen by the District to advance or cunent 
refund (the "Refunded Bonds") will be refunded and defeased using Refunding Bond proceeds. 

The refunding of the Refunded Bonds will be accomplished by depositing a portion of the proceeds from 
the Refunding Bonds into separate escrow funds established under an Escrow Agreement, dated September I, 2009, 
by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company. N.A., as escrow agent (the "Escrow 
Agent"). The amount of funds deposited into such escrow funds, together with interest earnings thereon, will be 
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sufficient to fully pay the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds as the same shall become due or pursuant 
to a call for redemption. 

Upon the deposit into the escrow funds as described above, the District will be discharged from all 
obligations with respect to the Refunded Bonds. The mathematical computations used to detennine the sufficiency 
of the escrow deposit will be verified by the Verification Agent (defined herein). See "MISCELLANEOUS -
Verification Agent." 

Description of the Bonds 

The Bonds will be issued as Current Interest Bonds and Capital Appreciation Bonds. The Current Interest 
Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple 
thereof. The Capital Appreciation Bonds will be issued in denominations of $5,000 accreted value at maturity or 
any integral multiple thereof, except that the first numbered Capital Appreciation Bond may be issued in a 
denomination such that the accreted value at maturity of such Capital Appreciation Bond shall not be in an integral 
multiple of $5,000. The Bonds will initially be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. 

DTC will act as security depository of the Bonds. Purchases of Bonds under the DTC book-entry system 
must be made by or through a DTC Pa11icipant (as defined herein) and ownership interests in Bonds will be recorded 
as entries on the books of said Participant. Except in the event that use of this book-entry system is discontinued for 
the Bonds, Beneficial Owners (as defined herein) will not receive physical certificates representing their ownership 
interests. See "Book-Entry System" and APPENDIX D- "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM" in this section. 

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery. The CwTent Interest Bonds will bear interest payable 
semiannually each February 1 and August l, commencing February l, 2010 (each, an "Interest Payment Date"), 
calculated on a 30/360 day basis. Interest on the Capital Appreciation Bonds will accrete from the date of delivery 
and will be compounded on each February l and August I, commencing on February l, 20 I 0, through and including 
the respective maturity dates. The Bonds will mature in each of the years and, in the case of the Current Interest 
Bonds, in the principal amounts shown on the inside cover page hereof, or on the date of the earlier redemption 
thereof, and in the case of the Capital Appreciation Bonds at the Final Accreted Value shown on the inside cover 
page hereof, or on the date of the earlier redemption thereof. 

The interest, accreted value, principal and premium, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money 
of the United States of America from moneys on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund of the District within the 
County treasury (the "Interest and Sinking Fund"), consisting of ad valorem taxes collected and held by the County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector (the ''Treasurer"), together with any premium and accrued interest received upon issuance 
of the Bonds and Federal Subsidy (as defined herein) payments received with respect to the Series C-2 Bonds. So 
long as all outstanding Bonds are held in book-entry form and registered in the name of a securities depository or its 
nominee, all payments of interest, accreted value, principal and premium, if any, on the Bonds and all notices with 
respect to such Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to such securities depository or its nominee and not to 
Beneficial Owners. So long as the Bonds are held by Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, payment shall be made by 
wire transfer. See "Book-Entry Only System" and APPENDIX D- "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM." 

Designation of the Series C-2 Bonds as Build America Bonds 

The Series C-2 Bonds will be issued as "Build America Bonds" for purposes of the Recovery Act. The 
District expects to receive a cash subsidy payment from the United States Treasury pursuant to the Recovery Act 
equal to 35% of the interest payable on the Series C-2 Bonds (the "Federal Subsidy") on or about each Interest 
Payment Date. The Federal Subsidy does not constitute a full faith and credit guarantee of the United States with 
respect to the Series C-2 Bonds, but is required to be paid by the United States Treasury under the Recovery Act. 
Any Federal Subsidy payments received by the District are required, pursuant to the Build America Bonds Paying 
Agent Agreement, to be deposited into the Interest and Sinking Fund, and are available for payment of any 
outstanding Bonds of the District. The County is obligated to make all payments of principal of and interest on the 
Series C-2 Bonds whether or not such Federal Subsidy payments are received pursuant to the Recovery Act and 
deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund. Sec "Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds" herein. The 
District makes no assurances about future legislative or policy changes or the netting of other tax liabilities against 
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the Federal Subsidy by the United States Treasury which may affect the amount or receipt of Federal Subsidy 
payments. 

Depending upon market conditions and other factors, the District, in its sole discretion, may determine not 
to issue the Series C-2 Bonds, and issue the Series C-l Bonds in a correlatively increased principal amount. 
Conversely, the District, in its sole discretion, taking into account market conditions and other factors, may 
determine not to issue the Series C-1 Bonds and issue the Series C-2 Bonds in a correlatively increased principal 
amount. 

Federal Subsidy 

The District intends to treat the Series C-2 Bonds as Build America Bonds and apply for the Federal 
Subsidy from the United States Treasury. No assurance can be provided that the District will receive the Federal 
Subsidy. The amount of any Federal Subsidy under the Build America Program is subject to legislative changes by 
Congress. The Federal Subsidy will only be paid if the Series C-2 Bonds are qualified under the federal program. 
For the Series C-2 Bonds to be and remain qualified under the federal requirements, the District must comply with 
certain requirements and must estab1ish certain facts and expectations with respect to the Series C-2 Bonds, the use 
and investment of proceeds thereof and the use of property financed thereby. 

No assurance can be given that any future legislation or clarifications or amendments to the Code. if 
enacted into law, will not contain proposals which could reduce or eliminate the Federal Subsidy with respect to the 
Series C-2 Bonds or adversely affect the market price or marketability of the Series C-2 Bonds. Further, there is no 
assurance that the federal govemment (a) will continue to pay the Federal Subsidy for the term of the Series C-2 
Bonds, (b) will not reduce the Federal Subsidy during the term of the Series C-2 Bonds, and (c) will not attempt to 
offset the Federal Subsidy against another amount the federal government asserts is owed by the District to the 
federal government. 

Payment of Principal and Interest 

Cunent Interest Bonds authenticated and registered on any date prior to the close of business on 
January 15,2010, shall bear interest from the date of delivery of the CmTent Interest Bonds. Current Interest Bonds 
authenticated during the period between the 15th day of the month immediately preceding an Interest Payment Date 
(the "Record Date") and the close of business on that Interest Payment Date shall bear interest from that Interest 
Payment Date. Any other Current Interest Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date immediately 
preceding the date of its authentication. 

Capital Appreciation Bonds shall not bear cunent interest; each Capital Appreciation Bond shall increase in 
value by the accumulation of earned interest from its initial principal (denominational) amount on the date of 
issuance thereof to its stated accreted value at maturity thereof at a compounded interest rate. The interest on the 
Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be compounded on February I and August I in each year, commencing 
February I, 2010, and shall be payable only upon maturity or prior redemption thereof. 

Principal and accreted value shall be paid when due upon presentation and sunendcr of the Bonds at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. Payment of interest on any Bond on each Interest Payment 
Date shall be made to the person appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent as the registered owner 
thereof (the "Owner") as of the preceding Record Date, such interest to be paid by check mailed to such Owner at 
such Owner's address as it appears on such registration books at the close of business on the conesponding Record 
Date. The Owner of an aggregate principal amount of $1 ,000,000 or more of Current Interest Bonds may request in 
writing to the Paying Agent that such Owner be paid interest by wire transfer to the bank and account number on file 
with the Paying Agent as of the applicable Record Date. 

Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds 

In order to provide sufficient funds for repayment of principal and interest when due on the Bonds, the 
Board of Supervisors of the County is empowered and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon all property 
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subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except as to certain personal property 
which is taxable at limited rates). Such taxes are in addition to other taxes levied upon property within the District. 
When collected, the tax revenues will be deposited by the County in the Interest and Sinking Fund, which is required 
to be maintained by the County and to be used solely for the payment of bonds of the District and interest thereon 
when due. See "AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXATION" herein. 

The annual tax rate will be based on the assessed value of taxable property in the District and scheduled 
annual debt service on the Bonds and other general obligation bonds of the District. Fluctuations in the annual debt 
service on the Bonds and the assessed value of taxable property in the District may cause the annual tax rate to 
fluctuate. Economic and other factors beyond the District's control, such as a general market decline in land values, 
reclassification of property to a class exempt from taxation, whether by ownership or use (such as exemptions for 
property owned by the State and local agencies and property used for qualified educational, hospital, charitable or 
religious purposes,) or the complete or partial destruction of taxable prope1ty caused by natural or manmade 
disaster, such as emthquake, flood, toxic dumping, etc., could cause a reduction in the assessed value of taxable 
property within the District and necessitate a corresponding increase in the annual tax rate (see 
"CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUE AND 
APPROPRIATIONS"). 

Additional Security for the Bonds 

The District has designated the Series C-2 Bonds as Build America Bonds for purposes of the Recovery 
Act. The District expects to receive the Federal Subsidy on or about each Interest Payment Date for the Series C-2 
Bonds, upon timely receipt by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") of IRS Form 8038-CP, which is due at least 
45 days (but not more than 90 days) before each Interest Payment Date for the Series C-2 Bonds. As additional 
security, the Federal Subsidy is pledged to the payment of the Bonds. For a discussion of risks related to the Federal 
Subsidy, see 'THE BONDS- Federal Subsidy." 

Application and Investment of Bond Proceeds 

The proceeds from the sale of the Series C- I Bonds and Series C-2 Bonds (net of premium, if any) will be 
deposited in the County treasury to the credit of the Building Fund of the District (the "Building Fund"). Any 
premium or accrued interest received will be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund of the District in the County 
treasury. Earnings on the investment of moneys in either fund will be retained in that fund and used only for the 
purposes to which that fund may lawfully be applied. Moneys in the Building Fund may only be applied for the 
purposes for which the Series C- I Bonds and Series C-2 Bonds were approved. Moneys in the Interest and Sinking 
Fund may only be applied to make payments of interest, principal, and premium, if any, on bonds of the District. 

All funds held in the Interest and Sinking Fund will be invested at the sole discretion of the Treasurer. All 
funds held in the Building Fund by the Treasurer under the Resolution and the Paying Agent Agreements will be 
invested at the Treasurer's discretion pursuant to law and the investment policy of the County, unless otherwise 
directed in writing by the District. At the written direction of the District, all or any portion of the Building Fund of 
the District may be invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the treasury of the State of California, and all 
or any portion of the Building Fund of the District may be invested on behalf of the District in investment 
agreements, including guaranteed investment contracts, which comply with the requirements of each rating agency 
then rating the Bonds necessary in order to maintain the then-cmrent rating on the Bonds, provided that the 
Treasurer will be a signatory to any such investment agreement. See "COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICIES AND 
PRACTICES'' herein. 
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Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds 

(I) 

The proceeds of the Bonds are expected to be applied as follows: 

Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds 
West Contra County Unified School District 

2009 General Obligation Bonds (Election of 2005, Series C-1) 
2009 General Obligation Bonds (Election of 2005, Series C-2) and 

2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

Sources of Funds 
Par Amount of Series C-1 Bonds 
Par Amount of Series C-2 Bonds 
Par Amount of Refunding Bonds 
Original Issue Premium 

Total Sources 

Uses 
Deposit to Building Fund 
Deposit to Escrow Funds 
Deposit to Debt Service Fund 
Costs of Issuancen> 

Total Uses 

$ 52,084,759.30 
52,825,000.00 
57,860,000.00 
6,540, I 08.75 

$169,309,868.05 

$104,909,759.30 
58,179,060.12 

1,427,874.00 
4,793,174.63 

$169,309,868.05 

Includes bond counsel fees, disclosure counsel fees, underwriters' compensation. financial advisor fees, bond insurance 
premium, vcrificntion agent fees. rating agency fees. paying agent fees. printing fees and other miscellaneous expenses. 

Annual Debt Service 

In addition to the Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds, the District has previously issued 
$40,000,000 of bonds authorized at an election held on June 2, 1998, $150,000,000 of bonds authorized at an 
election held on November 7, 2000, and $300,000,000 of bonds authorized at an election held on March 5, 2002. 
Refunding bonds issued in 200 I replaced all of the bonds issued pursuant to the 1998 election. Sec '"THE 
DISTRICT- District Debt Structure" herein. The following tables show the annual debt service payments for the 
Series C-1 Bonds, the Series C-2 Bonds, the Refunding Bonds and the annual debt service payments for each series 
of outstanding general obligation bonds of the District. 
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Series C-1 Bonds. The following table shows the annual debt service schedule with respect to the 
Series C-1 Bonds (assuming no optional redemptions). 

West Contra Costa Unified School District Annual Debt Service Payments 
Series C-1 Bonds 

Maturity Date 
August I 

Total 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 

Capital Appreciation Bonds 

Principal Amount 
$ 324,002.50 

821.333.10 
1,279,673.85 
1.477,584.50 
1,749.633.60 
3,303,189.90 
3,306,532.30 

67.056.00 
61,731.20 

4.419,841.00 
4.337,148.00 
4,5 13,142.40 
4,648.465.80 
4,776,185.40 
4,895.239.80 
4,952.425.05 
6,083.791.05 
1,067,783.85 

$52,084,759.30 
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Debt Service 
$ 725,000 

2,065,000 
3,615,000 
4,690,000 
6,240,000 
8,265,000 
7,310,000 

160,000 
160,000 

12,535,000 
13,350,000 
15,080,000 
16.890,000 
18.795.000 
20,845,000 
23,085,000 
31,035,000 
5,985,000 

$190,830,000 



Series C-2 Bonds. The following table shows the annual debt service schedule with respect to the 
Series C-2 Bonds (assuming no optional redemptions). 

West Contra Costa Unified School District Annual Debt Service Payments 
Series C-2 Bonds 

Maturity Date 
August I 

Total 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 
2032 
2033 
2034 

Current Interest Bonds 

Principal Amount 

$20,900,000 
31,925,000 

$52,825,000 

10 

Debt Service 
$ 4,071,751 

4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 
4,468,995 

25,368,995 
34,625,855 

$162,384,491 



Refunding Bonds. The following table shows the annual debt service schedule with respect to the 
Refunding Bonds (a"uming no optional redemptions). 

West Contra Costa Unified School District Annual Debt Service Payments 
Refunding Bonds 

Maturity Date 
August 1 

Total 

2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029 
2030 
2031 

Current Interest Bonds 

Principal Amount 
$ 3,990,000 

3,915,000 
3,600,000 
4,575,000 
5,120,000 
7,070,000 
8,505,000 

10,950,000 
535,000 
555,000 
580,000 
600,000 
625,000 
655,000 
685,000 
720,000 
755,000 
795,000 
840,000 
880,000 
930,000 
980,000 

$57,860,000 

II 

Debt Service 
$ 6,115,354.59 

6,128,006.26 
5,673,906.26 
6,540,906.26 
6,910,756.26 
8,660,556.26 
9,828,956.26 

II ,934,368.76 
I ,031 ,868. 76 
1,030,468.76 
1,033,268.76 
1,029,343.76 
1,028,093.76 
1,029,968.76 
1,029,675.00 
1,032,137.50 
1,029,337.50 
1,029,700.00 
1,032,962.50 
1,028,862.50 
l ,032,662.50 
l ,032,675.00 

$76,223,835.97 
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Aggregate Annual Debt Service Payments. Upon issuance of the Bonds. scheduled debt service obligations for each series of the Bonds and for all outstanding general 
obligation bonds of the District will be as follows: 

West Contra Costa Unified School District Annual Debt Service Payments 
General Obligation Bonds 

lOCI I<;() 1-:iodion of 1005, ~]ecUon of 11)1)5 liMf\1 
Kofundlng 1001 GO Elorlion of 2000, Series,\ Sorlosll l()IIIII;IIB Gt·nrrnl 

l'rrlod Bonds. Mrfunding S.de.< II (Post ~1ertion of ~IOU, Eleetlon of1001, Ell"<!lon of 1002, f;l«tlon of !001, Election nf 1001, ElfCtion of 1001. (Posl I Post 10091:on 
:-; ... ~····~ (lhll~ntion 

Endln~ S.ri.,;A Ror>ds. Strie• 8 R•fundinlll Serill' c Str"'"A s.n ... n Strir•CiCIBsl S.ri<> C !CAB• I S.rlt< D iC,\Jhl Refundin~l Refundln~l Se" .\toM~ IRAihl Rnn<h Total 
!1/lf.!OIO ~.IH.86750 791,135.00 %1,000.00 b,H9.71>~.50 I.'I\I~A~S.OO 6.57,,16S.OO ~.~nJ9750 05S,OOJOO 1,135,000.00 ~.Q..I5Jl01.SO 6,656,:175.((1 000 ~.071,751.00 6,11S.JS~.59 ~5.5~ 
8111:!011 2.141.811.15 78S.947_j() 000 6,Hl,961 . .'i0 1,991.632.50 6.558,0M.OO ::Jiltl.197.5() 8.1~.000.00 2.1>"5.00000 ",959,01:12.50 6,65b,:l75.f'll 0.00 ~.4M.\19~_00 6,12g.((l!>.~6 -1-1,1~1,995,(11 
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81112015 2,152.2_10.00 788.6~7.50 000 6~176.562.50 1,987.270.0:1 6,50_1,115.00 2.612.422.50 1.620.(100_()(] ~.425,00}00 4,643,802.50 7,&81.175.00 000 V68.995.00 8.660.556.~6 51,119.%6.2~ 

81112016 2,147,692 .. '>0 792,250.00 0.00 6366.}62.50 1.9&8.550.00 6,491.675 00 2,617.8~2.50 1,8-10.(100_00 4,9Js.o::noo 4.646.027.50 8,495,1~5.00 725.(XXl.OO V68.995.00 9.82ii.956.26 ~5..J..I3.45~.2(> 
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81lr.!OC'J 2.155,682 .. '10 794,150.00 000 6.1XI.OOOOO 1,981.50000 6,3-19,500.00 2.MJ,650.00 3.700.000_00 9 • .f40.00l.OO 4.60J.ooom 9.02~.12.1Hl 160.ro:>.OO 4,468,995.00 1,029.968.76 52.478.571.26 
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Sllf.!025 7H,575.00 0.00 000 6.09.\00).00 1,98S.750.1tl 6.313,000.00 2.6.'7,7!1000 4..1411.000_00 11.085.000_00 4.576.000.00 11.025.125.(10 12.535.®.00 4,468,\195.00 1,0)2.137.50 66,835.332.50 
811r.026 000 0.00 0.00 6.081.25000 1,nS,250(XI 6.298.500 00 2.1>-12.~.10.00 ~.1'190.000.00 II,Q~O_OOQ_()() 4,561,!XXUXJ 11.671.1:'5 (.(] 1.1,350.0:1000 4,46R.W5 00 1.112~ .. 1.17.50 fi~,717.707SO 

~/111027 000 000 0.00 fiJI(i9,7~0.00 1,986.2501)0 6.H4.!XXJ()() 2.M7..1(X)00 5,055,00000 12,8h5,000.00 ~.550.000.00 11.457.12.1.():) I~.USO,l~Xl flO ..1Ab8.1195.00 1N9.700_W 71 A8fU20.00 
8111202& 000 0.00 0.00 6.058,0!l'l 00 1,938.SOJ.OO 6,25Q,2.50 00 ".6.1.1,2!10.00 5.4.\0.00l.OO 1.1.8-l5.!XXI.OO 4,537.500.00 11.2.11.l2S.OO 16.890.(moo ..1,468.1195.00 ],11_12,962..<0 7~.394.582-"0 
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8111201_1 000 0.00 0.00 O.IXI 000 0_1)() 2.~90.51XI 00 9,7~0.(10000 2.1,100,000_00 4.472.000 00 11.3..17.50000 5,985,(XXI00 25JM,99.1_00 ()[](I Hl,743,995.00 
811/20)4 0.00 000 000 O.IXI 11.00 0.00 :'.69K .. IWOO 10.270,()[10.00 24,4;15,000 00 4,4)8,750 00 9.524.3751)() 000 34.625.~55 00 000 86,0 11,480.00 

l!llr.0.15 0.00 0.00 000 om 000 000 000 000 0.00 4,441.50000 20.17-1_175.00 OJXI 0.00 0.00 2..1.~15,87<.00 
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Redemption of the Series C-1 Bonds 

The Series C-l Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates. 

Redemption of the Series C-2 Bonds 

Optional Redemption. The Series C-2 Bonds maturing on or before August l, 2019, are not subject to 
redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates. The Series C-2 Bonds maturing on and after 
August l, 2020, are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates, at the option of the District, 
from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part on any date on or after August l, 2019, at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series C-2 Bond maturing on August l, 2034, is also subject 
to mandatory sinking fund redemption on each Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Date and in the respective 
principal amounts as set forth in the following schedule, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount thereof to be redeemed (without premium), together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption: 

t Maturity. 

2034 Term Bond 

Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Redemption Date 

(August l) 
2033 
2034t 

Principal Amount 
to be Redeemed 

$20,900,000 
31,925,000 

The principal amount to be redeemed in each year shown above will be reduced proportionately, in integral 
multiples of $5,000, by any portion of the term bond optionally redeemed prior to the mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date. 

Extraordinary Optional Redemption. The Series C-2 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their 
respective stated maturity dates, at the option of the District, upon the occunence of an Extraordinary Event, from 
any source of available funds, in whole or in part on any date, at a redemption price equal to the Extraordinary 
Redemption Price. 

The "Extraordinary Redemption Price'' is equal to the greater of: 

(I) the issue price of the Series C-2 Bonds set forlh on the inside cover page hereof (but not less than 
l 00%) of the principal amount of the Series C-2 Bonds to be redeemed; or 

(2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the 
Seties C-2 Bonds to be redeemed to the maturity date of such Series C-2 Bonds, not including any portion of those 
payments of interest accrued and unpaid as of the date on which the Series C-2 Bonds are to be redeemed, 
discounted to the date on which the Series C-2 Bonds are to be redeemed on a semi-annual basis, assuming a 
360-day year containing twelve 30-day months, at the Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus 100 basis points, 

plus in each case accrued interest on the Series C-2 Bonds to be redeemed to the redemption date. 

The "Treasury Rate" is, with respect to any redemption date for a particular Series C-2 Bond, the yield to 
maturity a."> of such redemption date of United States Treasury securities with a constant maturity, excluding 
inflation indexed securities (as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Statistical 
Release H.l5 (519) that has become publicly available at least two Business Days prior to the redemption date or, if 
such Statistical Release is no longer published, any publicly available source of similar market date) most nearly 
equal to the period from the redemption date to the maturity dale of the bond to be redeemed; provided, however, 
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that if the period from the redemption date to such matmity date is less than one year, the weekly average yield on 
actua11y traded United States Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year will be used. 

An "Extraordinary Event'' will have occuJTed if the District detetmincs that a matetial adverse change has 
occuned to Section 54AA or 6431 of the Code (as such Sections were added by Section 1531 of the Recovery Act, 
pertaining to Build America Bonds) or there is any guidance published by the Internal Revenue Service or the 
United States Treasury with respect to such Sections or any other determination by the Internal Revenue Service or 
the United States Treasury, which determination is not the result of an act or omission by the District to satisfy the 
requirements to receive the Federal Subsidy payment from the United States Treasury, pursuant to which the 
District's Federal Subsidy payment from the United States Treasury is reduced or eliminated. 

The redemption price of Series C-2 Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the extraordinary optional 
redemption provision described above will be determined by an independent accounting firm, investment banking 
finn or financial advisor retained by the District at the District's expense to calculate such redemption price. The 
Paying Agent and the District may conclusively rely on such detennination of redemption price by such independent 
accounting finn, investment banking firm or financial advisor and wi11 not be liable for such reliance. 

Redemption of the Refunding Bonds 

Optional Redemption, The Refunding Bonds maturing on or before August I, 2019, are not subject to 
redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates. The Refunding Bonds maturing on and after August I, 
2020, are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates, at the option of the District, from any 
source of available funds, as a whole or in part on any date on or after August I, 2019, at a redemption price equal to 
the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Refunding Bonds maturing on August I, 2029 and August I, 
2031, are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on each Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption Date 
and in the respective principal amounts as set forth in the following schedule, at a redemption price equal to I 00% of 
the principal amount thereof to be redeemed (without premium), together with interest accrued thereon to the date 
fixed for redemption: 

2029 Term Bond 
Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Redemption 

Date 
(August 12 

2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
2029t 

t Maturity. 

Principal 
Amount 

to be 
Redeemed 

$720,000 
755,000 
795,000 
840,000 
880,000 

2031 Term Bond 

Mandatory 
Sinking Fund 

Redemption Date 
(August I) 

2030 
203Jt 

Principal 
Amount 

to be 
Redeemed 

$930,000 
980,000 

The principal amount to be redeemed in each year shown above will be reduced proportionately, in integral 
multiples of $5,000, by any portion of the term bond optionally redeemed prior to the mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date. 

Redemption- General 

Selection of Bonds for Redemption. If less than all of the Refunding Bonds are called for redemption, 
such Refunding Bonds will be redeemed in inverse order of maturities (or as otherwise directed by the District). 
Whenever Jess than all of the outstanding Refunding Bonds of any one maturity are designated for redemption, the 
Paying Agent shall select the outstanding Refunding Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed by Jot in any manner 
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deemed fair by the Paying Agent. For purposes of such selection, the Refunding Bond shall be deemed to consist of 
individual Refunding Bonds of $5,000 denominations each, which may be separately redeemed. 

The Series C-2 Bonds may be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof. If less than all of the Series C-2 Bonds are called for redemption (including any sinking fund payments) and 
the Series C-2 Bonds are not registered in book-entry only form, any redemption will be allocated among the 
registered owners of the Series C-2 Bonds as nearly as practicable in proportion to the principal amount of Series 
C-2 Bonds owned by each registered owner. With respect to each registered owner, the principal amount of 
Series C-2 Bonds to be redeemed shall be calculated in the following manner: (principal amount to be redeemed) x 
(principal amount owned by the registered owner) I (principal amount outstanding); provided however, that the 
principal amount to be redeemed must be in the minimum principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof. The particular Series C-2 Bonds to be redeemed will be determined by the Paying Agent and the Bond 
Registrar, using such method as it deems fair and appropriate. If the Series C-2 Bonds are registered in book-entry 
only form in the name of a nominee of DTC, p:utial redemptions (including any sinking fund payments) of the 
Series C-2 Bonds will be determined in accordance with DTC's procedures. The Disttict intends that redemption 
allocations made by DTC, the DTC Pm1icipants or such other intetmediaries that may exist between the District and 
the Beneficial Owners of the Series C-2 Bonds be made in accordance with the foregoing proportional redemption 
provisions. However, the selection of the Series C-2 Bonds for redemption in the book-entry only system of DTC is 
subject to DTC's practices and procedures as in effect at the time of any such partial redemption. The District can 
provide no assurance that DTC or the DTC Participants or any other intermediaries will allocate redemptions among 
Beneficial Owners in accordance with the foregoing proportional redemptions provisions. 

Notice of Redemption. Notice of redemption of any Bond is required to be given by the Paying Agent not 
less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemption date (i) by first class mail to the respective owners of any 
Bond designated for redemption at their addresses appearing on the bond registration books; and (ii) as may be 
fmther required in accordance with the Continuing Disclosure Certificates of the Disnict. See APPENDIX C -
"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATES" herein. 

Each notice of redemption is required to contain the following information: (i) the date of such notice; 
(ii) the name of the Bonds and the date of issue of the Bonds; (iii) the redemption date; (iv) the redemption price; 
(v) the dates of maturity of the Bonds to be redeemed; (vi) (if less than all of the then outstanding Bonds ;u·e to be 
called for redemption) the distinctive serial numbers of the Bonds of each maturity to be redeemed; (vii) (in the case 
of Bonds redeemed in part only) the respective pmtions of the principal amount of the Bonds of each maturity to be 
redeemed; (viii) the CUSIP number, if any, of each maturity of Bonds to be redeemed; (ix) a statement that such 
Bonds must be surrendered by the owners at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent; (x) notice that 
further interest on such Bonds will not accme after the designated redemption date; and (xi) in the case of a 
conditional notice, that such notice is conditioned upon certain circumstances and the manner of rescinding such 
conditional notice. The actual receipt by the owner of any Bond of notice of redemption will not be a condition 
precedent to redemption, and failure to receive such notice, or any defect in the notice given, will not affect the 
validity of the proceedings for the redemption of such Bonds or the cessation of interest on the date fixed for 
redemption. 

Effect of Notice of Redemption. When notice of redemption has been given substantially as provided for 
in the Resolution, and when the redemption price of the Bonds called for redemption is set aside for the purpose as 
described in the Resolution, the Bonds designated for redemption will become due and payable on the specified 
redemption date and interest will cease to accrue thereon as of the redemption date, and upon presentation and 
smrender of such Bonds at the place specified in the notice of redemption, such Bonds will be redeemed and paid at 
the redemption price thereof out of the money provided therefor. The owners of Bonds so called for redemption 
after such redemption date will look for the payment of such Bonds and the redemption premium thereon, if any, 
only to moneys on deposit for the purpose in the Interest and Sinking Fund of the District or the escrow fund 
established for such purpose. All Bonds redeemed will be cancelled forthwith by the Paying Agent and will not be 
reissued. 

Conditional Notice of Redemption. Any notice of optional redemption of the Bonds delivered in 
accordance with the Resolution or the Paying Agent Agreements may be conditional and if any condition stated in 
the notice of redemption shall not have been satisfied on or prior to the redemption date, said notice: (i) shall be of 
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no force and effect, (ii) the District sha11 not be required to redeem such Bonds; (iii) the redemption shall not be 
made and (iv) the Paying Agent shall within a reasonable time thereafter give notice to the persons and in the 
manner in which the conditional notice of redemption was given, that such condition or conditions were not met and 
that the redemption was cancelled. 

Purchase in lieu of Redemption. In lieu of, or partially in lieu of, any mandatory sinking fund redemption 
of the Bonds, monies in the Interest and Sinking Fund may be used to purchase the outstanding Bonds that were to 
be redeemed at prices as the District may in its discretion determine but only at prices not more than par plus 
accrued interest. Purchases may be made by the District through the Paying Agent prior to the selection of Bonds 
for redemption at public or private sale. All Bonds so purchased shall be delivered to the Paying Agent for 
cance11ation. 

Rescission of Notice of Redemption. The District may provide a conditional notice of redemption and 
rescind any optional redemption and notice thereof for any reason on any date on or prior to the date rixed for 
redemption by causing written notice of the rescission to be given to the owners of the Bonds so called for 
redemption. Any optional redemption and notice thereof will be rescinded if for any reason on the date fixed for 
redemption moneys are not available in the Interest and Sinking Fund or otherwise held in trust for such purpose in 
an amount sufficient to pay in ful1 on said date the principal of, interest, and any premium due on the Bonds called 
for redemption. Notice of rescission of redemption will be given in the same manner in which notice of redemption 
was originally given. The actual receipt by the owner of any Bond of notice of such rescission will not be a 
condition precedent to rescission, and failure to receive such notice or any defect in such notice will not affect the 
vahdity of the rescission. 

Defeasance of Bonds 

If at any time the District will pay or cause lo be paid or there will otherwise be paid to the Owners of all 
outstanding Bonds al1 or part of the principal or accreted value of, and interest and premium, if any, on the Bonds at 
the times and in the manner provided in the Resolution or Paying Agent Agreements, as applicable, and in the 
Bonds, or as otherwise provided by law consistent therewith, then such Owners will cease to be entitled to the 
obligation of the District as provided in the Resolution, and such obligation and all agreements and covenants of the 
District and of the County to such Owners thereunder and under the Bonds will thereupon be satisfied and 
discharged and will terminate, except only that the District will remain liable for payment of all principal or accreted 
value of, and interest and premium, if any, on the Bonds, but only out of moneys on deposit in the Interest and 
Sinking Fund or otherwise held in trust for such payment; and provided further, however, that the provisions of the 
Resolution or Paying Agent Agreements, as applicable, will apply in all events. 

For the purposes set forth in this section, the District may pay and discharge any or all of the Bonds by 
depositing in trust with the Paying Agent or an escrow agent at or before maturity, money or Defeasance Securities 
(hereinafter defined), in an amount which wil1, together with the interest to accrue thereon and available moneys 
then on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund, be fully sufficient, in the opinion of a certified public accountant 
licensed to practice in the State of California, to pay and discharge the indebtedness on such Bonds (including all 
principal, interest and redemption premiums) at or before their respective maturity dates. 

'·Defeasance Securities" means (i) direct, non-callable obligations of the United States Treasury; (ii) direct 
non-callable and non-prepayable obligations which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United Stales of America 
as to full and timely payment of principal and interest; (iii) non-callable, non-prepayable coupons from the above 
securities which are stripped pursuant to United States Treasury programs; (iv) non-callable and non-prepayable (or 
irrevocably called to a specified redemption date) refunded municipal bonds that are backed by an escrow funded 
with obligations of or guaranteed by the United Stales of America; (v) Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP) 
securities consisting of interest components stripped by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; (vi) non-callable, 
and non-prepayable fixed rate Israel Notes guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United Stales of America 
through the United States Agency for International Development (provided that, such notes are "Aaa"-rated and 
mature at least four business days before funds are needed for refunded bond debt service payments); (vii) United 
States State and Local Government Securities (SLGS); (viii) the following non-callable, non-prepayable obligations 
of federal govemment-sponsored agencies that are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government: 
Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 
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Tennessee Valley Authority, Farrn Credit System, Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority, United States 
Import-Export Bank, United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, Fanners Home Administration, 
General Services Administration and United States Maritime Administration (provided such entities maintain a 
rating of "Aaa"); and (ix) any n<m-callable, non-prepayable (or irrevocably called to a specific redemption date) 
municipal security rated "'Aaa" that carries a fixed interest rate and matures on a date certain. 

Unclaimed Moneys 

Any money held in any fund created pursuant to the Resolution, or by the Paying Agent in trust, for the 
payment of the principal of, redernption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds and remaining unclaimed for two 
years after the principal of all of the Bonds has become due and payable (whether by maturity or upon prior 
redemption) shall be transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund of the District for payment of any outstanding 
bonds of the District payable from said fund; or, if no such bonds of the District are at such time outstanding, said 
moneys shall be transferred to the general fund of the District as provided and permitted by law. 

Bond Transfer and Exchange 

While the DTC book-entry system, described below, is in effect, the Bonds will be represented by one bond 
for each maturity of each type registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC. For information on bond 
registration and payment in the event the book-entry system is no longer used, see APPENDIX D - "BOOK­
ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM." 

Book-Entry Only System 

The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only, and will be initially issued and registered in the name of 
Cede & Co. as nominee of DTC. Purchasers of beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds ('"Beneficial Owners") 
from participants in the DTC system (the "DTC Participants") will not receive physical certificates representing 
their interests in the Bonds. Payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made when due on behalf of 
the District by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as paying agent, to DTC, which will remit 
such principal and interest to the DTC Participants, which will in tum remit such principal and interest to the 
Beneficial Owners. See APPENDIX D- "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM." 

Bond Insurance Risk Factors 

Assured Guaranty Corp. (''Assured Guaranty" or the "Bond Insurer") has agreed to issue a financial 
guaranty insurance policy (the "Policy") with respect to the Insured Bonds simultaneously with the issuance of the 
Insured Bonds. For descriptions of the Policy and of Assured Guaranty, sec "INFORMATION CONCERNING 
THE POLICY AND THE BOND INSURER" herein, and for a specimen copy of the Policy see Appendix F. 

The Bond Insurer. In the event that the District fails to provide funds to make payment of the principal of 
and interest with respect to the Insured Bonds when the same shall become due, any owner of such Insured Bonds 
shall have a claim on the Policy for such payments. However, in the event of any acceleration of the due date of 
such principal by rea~on of mandatory or optional redemption or acceleration resulting from default or otherwise, 
other than any advancement of rnaturity pursuant to a mandatory sinking fund payment, the payments guaranteed 
under the Policy shall be made in such amounts and at such times as such payments of principal would have been 
due had there not been any such acceleration. The Policy does not insure the payment of any redemption premium 
payable upon the redemption of the Insured Bonds. 

Purchasers of the Insured Bonds should also note that, while the Policies will insure payment of the 
principal amount (but not any premium) paid to any owner of the Insured Bonds in connection with the mandatory 
or optional redemption of any Insured Bond which is recovered from such owner as a voidable preference under 
applicable bankruptcy law, such amounts will be repaid by the Bond Insurer to the owner only at the times and in 
the amounts as would have been due absent such redemption unless the Bond Insurer chooses to pay such amount at 
an earlier date or dates. 
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Under no circumstances, including the situation in which the interest with respect to the Insured Bonds 
becomes subject to federal taxation for any reason, can the maturities of any Insured Bonds be accelerated without 
the consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer performs its obligations under the Policy. Furthermore, 
so long as the Bond Insurer performs its obligations under the Policy, the Bond Insurer may direct, and must consent 
to, any remedies that the Paying Agent exercises under the Resolution and the Bond Insurer's consent may be 
required in connection with amendments to the Resolution in addition to the consent of any owners of the Insured 
Bonds. · 

In the event that the Bond Insurer is required to pay principal of or interest with respect to the Insured 
Bonds, no representation or assurance is given or can be made that such event wilJ not adversely affect the market 
price for or marketability of the Bonds. 

The long-term ratings on the Insured Bonds are dependent, in pru1, on the claims paying ability or financial 
strength ratings, as applicable, of the Bond Insurer. The Bond Insurer's cun·ent claims paying ability or financial 
strength ratings are predicated upon a number of factors which could change over time and could result in 
downgrading of the ratings on the Insured Bonds. Such a downgrade could adversely affect the market price for, 
and marketability of, the Insured Bonds. The Bond Insurer is not contractually bound to maintain its present claims 
paying ability or tinancial strength ratings in the future. See "MISCELLANEOUS- Ratings'· herein. 

Creditworthiness of the Bond Insurer. The Bond Insurer's obligations under the Policy are general 
obligations of the Bond Insurer. Default by the Bond Insurer may result in insufficient funds being available to pay 
the principal of and interest on the Insured Bonds. In such event, the remedies available to the Paying Agent may be 
limited by, among other things, ce11ain risks related to bankruptcy proceedings. 

Recent Developments Concerning Municipal Bond Insurers. Recent developments which have been the 
subject of substantial discussion in the financial press and which affect the bond insurance business have had a 
serious adverse effect on the financial condition of a number of bond insurers, weakening their credit status as 
reflected in their credit ratings. Therefore, when making an investment decision on the Insured Bonds, a prospective 
owner should look principally to the ad valorem tax authorized to be levied by the County to pay principal and 
interest on the Insured Bonds and not simply to the Bond Insurer's ability to pay claims under the Policy. 

No review of the business or affairs of the Bond Insurer has been conducted in connection with the offering 
of the Insured Bonds. No assurance can be given by the District as to the Bond Insurer's ability to pay claims, if 
any, under the Policy. The following section contains certain information supplied by the Bond Insurer and 
concerning the Bond Insurer and the Policy to be issued by the Bond Insurer. No representation is made by the 
District or the Underwriters as to the accuracy, completeness or adequacy of such information supplied by the Bond 
Insurer, or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information subsequent to the date hereof. Neither 
the District nor the Underwriters have made any independent investigation of the Bond Insurer or the Policy and 
reference should be made to the information set forth below and in Appendix F for a description thereof. 

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE POLICY AND THE BOND INSURER 

The Policy 

Concurrently with the issuance of the Insured Bonds, Assured Guaranty will issue its financial guaranty 
insurance policy (the "Policy") for the Insured Bonds. The Policy guarantees the scheduled payment of principal of 
and interest on the Insured Bonds when due as set forth in the form of the Policy included as an exhibit to this 
Official Statement. The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New 
York, California, Connecticut or Florida insurance law. 

The Bond Insurer 

Assured Guaranty is a Maryland-domiciled insurance company regulated by the Maryland Insurance 
Administration and licensed to conduct financial guaranty insurance business in all fifty states of the United States, 
the District of Columbia and Puerto Rico. Assured Guaranty commenced operations in l 988. Assured Guaranty is 

18 



a wholly owned, indirect subsidiary of Assured Guaranty Ltd. ("AGL"), a Bermuda-based holding company whose 
shares are publicly traded and are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "AGO." AGL, through 
Its operating subsidiaries, provides credit enhancement products to the U.S. and global public finance, structured 
finance and mortgage markets. Neither AGL nor any of its shareholders is obligated to pay any debts of Assured 
Guaranty or any claims under any insurance policy issued by Assured Guaranty. 

Asstned Guaranty's financial strength is rated "AAA" (negative outlook) by Standard & Poor's, a division 
of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("S&P"}, "Aa2" (on review for possible downgrade) by Moody's Investors 
Service, Inc. ("Moody's") and "AA" (ratings watch negative) by Fitch, Inc. ("Fitch"). Each rating of Assured 
Guaranty should be evaluated independently. An explanation of the significance of the above ratings may be 
obtained from the applicable rating agency. The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold any 
security, and such ratings are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the rating agencies. Any downward 
revision or withdrawal of any of the above ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of any security 
guaranteed by Assured Guaranty. Assured Guaranty does not guaranty the market price of the securities it 
guarantees, nor does it guaranty that the ratings on such securities will not be revised or withdrawn. 

Rectml Developments 

Ratiflgs. On July I, 2009, S&P published a Research Update in which it affirmed its "AAA" counterparty 
credit and financial strength ratings on Assured Guaranty. At the same time, S&P revised its outlook on Assured 
Guaranty to negative from stable. Reference is made to the Research Update, a copy of which is available at 
www .standardandpoors.com, for the complete text of S&P' s comments. 

On May 20, 2009, Moody's issued a press release stating that it had placed the "Aa2" insurance financial 
strength rating of Assured Guaranty on review for possible downgrade. Subsequently, in an announcement dated 
July 24, 2009 entitled "Moody's Comments on Assured's Announcement to Guarantee and De list FSA Debt", 
Moody's announced that it expects to conc1ude its review by mid-August 2009. Reference is made to the press 
release and the announcement, copies of which are available at www .moodys.com, for the complete text of Moody's 
comments. 

In a press release dated August 10, 2009, Fitch revised its outlook on Assured Guaranty to negative from 
evolving. Reference is made to the press release, a copy of which is available at www.fitchratings.com, for the 
complete text of Fitch's comments. There can be no assurance as to the outcome of Moody's review, or as to the 
further action that Fitch or S&P may take with respect to Assured Guaranty. 

For rnore information regarding Assured Guaranty's financial strength ratings and the risks relating thereto, 
see AGL's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, which was filed by AGL 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on February 26, 2009, AGL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009, which was filed by AGL with the SEC on May 11, 2009, and 
AGL's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2009, which was filed by AGL with 
the SEC on August 10, 2009. 

Acquisition of FSA. On July I, 2009, AGL acquired the financial guaranty operations of Financial 
Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. ("FSA"), the parent of financial guaranty insurance company Financial Security 
Assurance Inc. For more information regarding the acquisition by AGL of FSA, see Item 1.01 of the Current Report 
on Form 8-K filed by AGL with the SEC on July 8, 2009. 

Capitalization of Assured Guaranty Corp. As of June 30, 2009, Assured Guaranty had total adntitted 
as,;ets of $1,950,949,8\ l (unaudited), total liabilities of $1,653,306,246 (unaudited), total mrplus of $297,643,565 
(unaudited) artd total statutory capital (surplus plus contingency reserves) of $1,084,906,800 (unaudited) detennined 
in accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by insurance regulatory authorities. 

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference. The portions of the following documents relating to 
Assured Guar~nty are hereby incorporated by reference into this Official Statement and shall be deemed to be a part 
hereof: 
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I. the Annual Report on Form I 0- K of AGL for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 (which was 
filed by AGL with the SEC on February 26, 2009); 

2. the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009 (which was 
filed by AGL with the SEC on May II, 2009); 

3. the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2009 (which was filed 
by AGL with the SEC on August I 0, 2009); and 

4. the Current Reports on Form 8-K ftled by AGL with the SEC relating to the periods following the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. 

All consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty and all other information relating to Assured 
Guaranty included in documents filed by AGL with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, subsequent to the date of this Official Statement and prior to the 
termination of the offering of the Insured Bonds shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this Official 
Statement and to be a part hereof from the respective dates of filing such consolidated financial statements. 

Any statement contained in a document incorporated herein by reference or contained herein under the 
heading "INFORMATION CONCERNING THE POLICY AND THE BOND INSURER- The Bond Insurer" shall 
be modified or superseded for purposes of this Official Statement to the extent that a statement contained herein or 
in any subsequently filed document which is incorporated by reference herein also modifies or supersedes such 
statement. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to 
constitute a part of this Official Statement. 

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of Assured Guaranty incorporated by reference herein and 
of the statutory financial statements filed by Assured Guaranty with the Maryland Insurance Administration are 
available upon request by contacting Assured Guaranty at 1325 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 
10019 or by calling Assured Guaranty at (212) 974-0100. In addition, the infonnation regarding Assured Guaranty 
that is incorporated by reference in this Official Statement that has been filed by AGL with the SEC is available to 
the public over the lntemet at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov and at AGL's web site at 
http://www.assuredguaranty.com, from the SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, 
Washington, D.C. 20549, and at the office of the New York Stock Exchange at 20 Broad Street, New York, New 
York 10005. 

Assured Guaranty makes no representation regarding the Insured Bonds or the advisability of 
investing in the Insured Bonds. In addition, Assured Guaranty has not independently verified, makes no 
representation regarding, and does not accept any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of this 
Official Statement or any information or disclosure contained herein, or omitted herefrom, other than with 
respect to the accuracy of the infonnation regarding Assured Guaranty supplied by Assured Guaranty and 
presented under the heading "INFORMATION CONCERNING THE POLICY AND THE BOND 
INSURER" herein and APPENDIX F- "SPECIMEN FINANCIAL GUARANTY INSURANCE POLICY." 

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXATION 

Ad Valorem Property Taxation 

The District uses the services of the County for the assessment and collection of taxes for District purposes. 
School district propetty taxes are assessed and collected by the County at the same time and on the same rolls as 
county, special district and city property taxes. 

The valuation of secured property and a statutory tax lien is established as of January I and is subsequently 
equalized in August. The resulting secured property tax is payable in two equal installments due November I and 
February I, and payments become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Most unsecured bills are 
mailed before July 31. These bills must be paid on or before August 31. If the bill is mailed after July 31, the 
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delinquent date is extended to the end of the month following the bill's issuance. Taxes on unsecured property are 
levied at the preceding fiscal year's secured tax rate and become delinquent on September 1. 

State law exempts from taxation $7,000 of the cash value of an owner-occupied dwelling provided that the 
owner files for such exemption. This exemption does not result in any loss of revenue to local agencies, since the 
State reimburses local agencies for the value of the exemptions. 

Assessed Valuation 

All property is assessed using full cash value as defined by Article XIIIA of the State Constitution. State 
law provides exemptions from ad valorem property taxation for certain classes of property such as churches, 
colleges, non-profit hospitals, and charitable institutions. 

Future assessed valuation growth under Article XIII A (allowed for increases in value due to new 
construction, certain changes of ownership, and an inflation allowance of not more than 2% per year) wil1 be 
allocated on the basis of '·situs" among the jurisdictions that serve the tax rate area within which the growth occurs. 
Local agencies and school districts will share the growth of "base" revenues from the tax rate area. Each year's 
growth a11ocation becomes part of each agency's allocation in the following year. 

For assessment and tax collection purposes, property is classified either as "secured" or '"unsecured", and is 
listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment roll. The "secured roll" is that part of the assessment roll 
containing State-assessed property and property (real or personal) the taxes on which are secured by a 1ien on real 
property sufficient, in the opinion of the County Assessor, to secure payment of the taxes. State-assessed property 
includes utility property which is considered part of a utility system with components located in many taxing 
jurisdictions ("unitary property'} Under the State Constitution, unitary property is assessed by the State Board of 
Equalization C'SBE") as part of a "going concern" rather than as individual pieces of real or personal property. 
Swte-assessed unitary and certain other property is allocated to the counties by SBE, taxed at special countywide 
rates, and the tax revenues distributed to taxing jurisdictions (including the District) according to statutory fmmulae 
generally based on the distribution of taxes in the prior year. All other property is ··unsecured,'' and is assessed on 
the ·'unsecured roll.., 

Assessments may be adjusted during the course of the year when real property changes ownership or new 
construction is completed. Taxpayers seeking a reduction may also appeal assessments. When necessitated by 
chunges in assessed value in the course of a year, taxes arc prorated for each portion of the tax year. 

Pursuant to State law, property owners may apply for a reduction of their property tax assessment by filing 
a written application, in form prescribed by the SBE with the appropriate county board of equalization or assessment 
appeals board (the "Appeals Board"). After the applicant and the assessor have presented their arguments, the 
Appeals Board makes a final decision on the property assessed value. The Appeals Board may rule in the assessor's 
fa\'Or, in the applicant's favor, or the Appeals Board may set their own opinion of the proper assessed value, which 
may be more or less than either the assessor's opinion or the applicant's opinion. 

Any reduction in the assessment ultimately granted applies to the year for which the application is made 
and may also affect the values in subsequent years. Refunds for taxpayer overpayment of property taxes 
may include refunds for overpayment of taxes in years after that which was appealed. Cunent year values may also 
be adjusted as a result of a successful appeal of prior year values. Any taxpayer payment of property taxes that is 
based on a value that is subsequently adjusted downward will require a refund of overpayment. 

Appeals for reduction in the "base year'' value of an assessment, if successful, reduce the assessment for the 
year in which the appeal is taken and prospectively thereafter. The "base yew·" is determined by the completion date 
of new construction or the date of change of ownership. Any "base year·· appeal must be made within four years of 
the change of ownership or new construction date. 

Some appeals are based on Section 51 of the Revenue and Taxation Code which requires that for each lien 
date the value of real property shall be the lesser of its base year value annually adjusted by the inflation factor 
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pursuant to Article X IliA of the State Constitution or its full cash value, taking into account reductions in value due 
to damage, destruction, depreciation, obsolescence, removal of property or other factors. including a decline in the 
market value, causing a decline in value. Reductions made under this code section may be initiated by the County 
Assessor or requested by the property owner. After a roll reduction is granted under this section, the property is 
reviewed on an annual basis to determine its full cash value and the valuation is adjusted accordingly. This 
may result in further reductions or in value increases. Counties and SBE have generally determined that such 
increases must be in accordance with the full cash value of the property and may exceed the maximum annual 
inflationary growth rate allowed on other properties under Article XIIIA of the State Constitution. Once the 
property has regained its base year value, adjusted for inflation, it once again is subject to the maximum annual 
inflationary factor growth rate allowed under Article XlllA. 

There has been a significant slowdown in the housing market in the County, as in many patts of the state 
and the nation. Due to the slowdown of sales in the housing market and decline in sales prices in the County, the 
County Assessor reduced the assessed value of a number of parcels throughout the County for fiscal years 2007-08 
and 2008-09, with most of the reductions in assessed value for home sales occurring since calendar year 2005. The 
County Assessor may further reduce assessed value in future fiscal years. For budget purposes, the County has 
assumed that the assessed value for fiscal year 2009-10 will be approximately $145.6 billion, a decrease of 
approximately 7.2% from the assessed value for fiscal year 2008-09. 

The secured and unsecured assessed vaJuation for the District in recent years are listed below: 

SUMMARY OF RECENT ASSESSED VALUATION OJ 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Fiscal Year Local Secured Utilit~m Unsecured 

2004-05 $18,694,802,748 $34,877,710 $942,323,175 
2005-06 20,898,373,912 35,233,047 937,524,349 
2006-07 23,394,796,810 32,996,057 996,599,562 
2007-08 25,972,526,364 12,872,037 986,267,215 
2008-09 25,968,908,280 12,850,519 I ,080,70 I ,277 
2009-10 22,527,198,702 12,079,880 I ,206,474,766 

Does not include unitary property valuation. ill 

(2) 
Includes property owned by a utility wholly within the District. 

Source: Califomia Municipal Statistics. Inc. 

Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies 

Total 

$19,672,003,633 
21,871,131,308 
24,424,392,429 
26,971,665,616 
27,062,460,076 
23,745,753,348 

Annual Change 

13.04% 
11.18 
11.67 
10.43 
00.34 

-12.26 

A I 0% penalty attaches to any delinquent payment for secured roll taxes. In addition, prope1ty on the 
secured roll for which taxes are delinquent becomes tax-defaulted. Such property may thereafter be redeemed hy 
payment of the delinquent taxes and the delinquency penalty, plus a redemption penalty to the time of redemption. 
If taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is subject to auction sale by the Treasurer. 
Collection effort' against a taxpayer who has sought protection from creditors in United States Bankruptcy Court, or 
against secured property the value of which has been compromised by environmental contamination or natural 
disaster, may be fruitless to recover unpaid taxes due with respect to such property. 

In the case of unsecured property taxes, a I 0% penalty attaches to delinquent taxes on prope1ty on the 
unsecured roll, and an additional penalty of 1.5% per month begins to accrue beginning November I" of the fiscal 
year, and a lien is recorded against the assessees. The taxing authority has four ways of collecting unsecured 
personal property taxes: (a) filing a civil action against the taxpayer; (b) filing a bond in the office of the County 
Clerk specifying cettain facts in order to obtain a judgment lien on specific property of the taxpayer, (c) filing a 
bond of delinquency for record in the County Recorder's office in order to obtain a lien on specified property of the 
taxpayer; and (d) seizing and selling personal property, improvements or possessory interests belonging or assessed 
to the taxpayer. 
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Fiscal Year 

2003-04 
2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2007-08 

SECURED TAX CHARGES AND DELINQUENCIES 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Secured Tax Charge'" 

$239,582,222 
283,773,137 
314,194,761 
350,961 ,859 
26,534,360 

Amount Delinquent as of 
June 30 

$ 5,549,998 
6,244,281 
9,265,932 

17,391,422 
1,663,455 

(ll All taxes co\1cctcd hy the County within the District. 

Percent Delinquent 
June 30 

2.32% 
2.20 
2.94 
4.96 
6.27 

Note: Under the Teeter Plan dcscrihcd below. as long as the Teeter Plan remains in effect. taxes levied by the County will he 
credited to the District for repayment of the Bonds as if received in their emirety and w\H not he reduced hy any taxpayer 
delinquencies. 
Source: California Municipal Statistics. Inc. 

Teeter Plan and Tax Losses Reserve Fund. The County has adopted the Alternative Method of 
Distribution of Tax Levies and Collections and of Tax Sale Proceeds (the "Teeter Plan"), as provided for in 
Section 470 I et seq. of the State Revenue and Taxation Code and has created a tax losses reserve fund. Under the 
Teeter Plan, each participating local agency, including school districts, levying property taxes in the County receives 
the amount of uncollected taxes credited to its fund, in the san1e manner as if the amount credited had been 
collected. In return, the County receives and retains delinquent payments, penalties and interest as co11ected, that 
would have been due the local agency. 

The Teeter Plan is to remain in effect unless the County Board of Supervisors orders its discontinuance or 
unless, prior to the commencement of any fiscal year of the County (which commences on July I) the Board of 
Supervisors receives a petition for its discontinuance from two-thirds of the participating revenue districts in the 
County. The board of supervisors of a county may, after holding a public hearing on the matter, discontinue the 
procedures under the Teeter Plan with respect to any tax levying agency in its county in which delinquencies exceed 
3% in any tax year. Although delinquencies in the District exceeded 3% in fiscal years 2006-07 and 2007-08, the 
County has not ordered discontinuance of the Teeter Plan and the Teeter Plan is in effect as of the date of this 
Official Statement. 

The secured historical tax levy and year-end delinquencies for all ad valorem taxes levied within the 
District's boundaries are shown in the following table: 

Tax Rates 

For taxing purposes, the State Board of Equalization has divided the area served by the District into tax rate 
areas ("TRA''). The largest TRA in the District is TRA 0800 I. TRA 0800 I has a total 2008-09 assessed valuation 
of $6,302,421,746, approximately 23.29% of the District's total assessed value. The components of the 2008-09 
property tax rate levied inTRA 08001 are set forth below. 
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TAX RATE COMPONENTS- TRA 08001 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Percentage of Assessed Valnation) 

General - Countywide 
City of Richmond 
Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
East Bay Regional Park District 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Contra Costa Community College District 
Total 

Source: California Municipal Statistics. Inc. 

Major Taxpayers 

2004-05 Tax 
Rates 

1.0000% 
.1400 

.0057 

.1153 

.0042 
1.2652% 

2005-06 Tax 2007-08 Tax 
Rates Rates 

1.0000% 1.0000% 
.1400 .1400 
.0048 .0076 
.0057 .0080 
.1041 .1035 
.0047 .0108 

1.2593% 1.2699% 

2008-09 Tax 
Rates 

1.0000% 
.1400 
.0090 
.0100 
.1230 
.0066 

1.2886% 

The 20 largest taxpayers in the District, as shown on the 2008-09 secured tax roll, and the amounts of their 
assessed valuation for all taxing jurisdictions within the District, are shown below. Assessed valuation for the 
20 largest taxpayers amounted to $4,714,952,171 or approximately 18.16% of the District's total 2008-09 secured 
tax roll. 
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MAJOR TAXPAYERS 2008-09 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Property Owner Primary Land Use 
Chevron USA Inc. Industrial 
Lennar Emerald Marina Shores LLC I Residential Development 
Lennar Marina Bay LLC I 
Lennar Marina Cove LLC 
Bio-Rad Laboratories Inc. Industrial 
Richmond Parkway Associates Apartments 
Bayer Healthcare Pharm Inc. Industrial 
DDRM Hilltop Plaza LP Shopping Center 
MCD-RCCA-El Cenito LLC Shopping Center 
Richmond Essex LP Apartments 
Richmond Associates LLC Shopping Center 
Crescent Park EAH LP Apartments 
Cherokee Simeon Venture I LLC Office Building 
Dicon Fiberoptics Inc. Industrial 
Tides Residential PR I LLC Apartments 
California Fats & Oils Inc. Industrial 
Stephens & Stephens LLC Industrial 
ECD Associates LLC Residential Development 
Pt. Richmond R&D Associates I & II Industrial 
Ford Point LLC Industrial 
Signature at Abella LLCI Residential Development 
Signature at Anchor Cove 
National Gypsum Company Industrial 

111 200R-091ocal secured assessed valuation: $25,968,908,280. 
Source: California Municipal Statistics. Inc. 

2008-09 
Assessed 
Valuation 

$3,4 72,863,434 
141,806,586 

129,479,362 
122,770,226 
[ 14,022,796 
88,858,116 
83,165,850 
67,858,721 
63,191,671 
48,443.500 
46,837,270 
43,976,959 
40,609,799 
39,341,061 
39,105,401 
36,982,182 
35,446,144 
34,514,933 
34,433,836 

31,244,324 
$4,714,952,171 

%of 
Total"' 

13.37% 
0.55 

0.50 
0.47 
0.44 
0.34 
0.32 
0.26 
0.24 
0.19 
0.18 
0.!7 
0.16 
0.15 
0.15 
0.14 
0.14 
0.13 
0.13 

0.12 
18.16% 

Chevron USA, Inc. ("Chevron"), the largest taxpayer in the District, currently represents 13.37% of the 
total local secured assessed valuation. Below are local secured assessed valuations of Chevron as of January I of 
each year from 1998-99 through 2008-09. 

SECURED ASSESSED VALUATION 
CHEVRON USA, INC. 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Year 

1998-99 
1999-00 
2000-01 
2001-02 
2002-03 
2003-04 
2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2007-08 
2008-09 

Source: Cltlifomia Municipal Statistics. Inc. 

Assessed Valuation 

$1,791,537,701 
1,811,178,226 
1,656,340,376 
2,215,633,236 
1 ,974,950, 102 
I ,914,978,281 
2,469,045,60 I 
2,678,641,859 
2,680,893,790 
3,433,927,316 
3,4 72,863,434 
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Annual Change 

1.1% 
-8.5 
33.8 

-10.9 
-3.0 
28.9 

8.5 
0.1 

28.1 
1.1 



Chevron has appealed its 2004-05 and 2005-06 assessed valuation and has asked the County for a reduction 
of approximately $1.7 billion for 2004-05 and did not provide an estimate of value when filing their 2005-06 appeal, 
which the County must interpret as a $0 value. No conclusion has been reached yet on either appeal. Though 
Chevron has appealed its assessed value in nine of the past eleven years, these appeals are by far the largest to date. 
For the appeals that have been concluded in the past eleven years, the County has granted between 0% and 16.14% 
reduction of Chevron's assessed value as a result of an appeal by Chevron. Should the County grant a reduction of 
Chevron's assessed value, the annual tax rate on all taxable property within the District will increase. The District 
cannot predict what the final outcome of the 2004-05 and 2005-06 Chevron appeals will be. 

COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 

This section provides a general description of the County's investment policy. current portfolio holdings, 
and valuation procedures. The infonnation has been prepared by the Treasurer for inclusion in this Official 
Statement. The District makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of such infonnation. Further 
information may be obtained from the Office of the Treasurer, 625 Court Street, Room 102, Martinez, CA 94533. 

ln accordance with State Law, the District maintains substantially all of its cash in the Contra Costa County 
Treasury Investment Pool (the "County Pool"). The County pools the District's funds with those of the County and 
other districts in the County for investment purposes. Pooled funds in the County Pool are carried at cost, which 
approximates market value. 

The Treasurer has authority to implement and oversee the investment of such funds in the County Pool in 
accordance with Government Code Section 53600 et seq. The Treasurer accepts funds only from agencies located 
within the County. As of March 31, 2009, the cost value of the County Pool was $1,898,584,707 and the market 
value was $1,903,858,637. 

As of March 31, 2009, the County Pool had 66.26% of its assets managed by the Treasurer's office, 
29.54% of its assets managed by outside contractors, and 4.20% in cash. Of those assets managed by the 
Treasurer's office 15.88% of the County Pool's assets are invested in U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency Securities; and 
50.38% in other money market instruments including repurchase agreements, commercial paper, negotiable 
certificates of deposit, corporate notes, medium term notes and time deposits. Of those assets managed by outside 
contractors 22.72% of its assets are invested with the Local Agency Investment Fund, which is managed by the State 
Treasurer's Office, and 6.82% are either in guaranteed investment contracts or managed by investment managers 
outside of the Treasurer's office. The following table summarizes the composition of the County Pool as of 
March 31, 2009. 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY TREASURY INVESTMENT POOL 
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 

(As of March 31, 2009) 

As of March 31, 2009, the County Pool had a weighted average maturity of 105.28 days with more than 
88% of the portfolio maturing in less than one year. The following table summarizes the portfolio liquidity of the 
County Pool as of March 31, 2009. 
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CONTRA COSTA COUNTY TREASURY INVESTMENT POOL 
PORTFOLIO LIQUIDITY 

(As of March 31, 2009) 

Term to Maturity Cost Value Percent of Total (Cost Value) 

Less than I year $1,696,852,998.43 
143,786,000.00 
38,894,076.96 
15,965,000.00 

89.46% 
7.58 
2.05 
0.84 
0.07 

1 years to 2 years 
2 years to 3 years 
3 years to 4 years 
4 years to 5 years 
Total 

1,260.000.00 
$1,896,758,075.39 100.00% 

Notes: All reported information is unaudited but due diligence was utilized in its preparation. In general. the Treasurer's records 
rct1cc1 booked costs at the beginning of a period. 

The Treasurer's investment portfolio is in compliance with the Government Code Section 53600 et seq. and 
with the Treasurer's cuncnt investment policy. The County Pool investment portfolio has no securities lending, 
reverse repurchase agreements, or derivatives. As of March 31, 2009, the County is unable to determine if it can 
meet its cash flow needs for the next six months due to the State's cash and budget deficit. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING 
DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS 

Constitutionally Required Funding of Education 

The State Constitution requires that from all State revenues there shall ftrst be set apart the moneys to be 
applied by the State for the support of the public school system and public institutions of higher education. School 
districts in the State receive a significant portion of their funding from State appropriations. As a result, decreases as 
well as increases in State revenues can significantly affect appropriations made by the State Legislature to school 
districts. 

Article X IliA of the State Constitution 

On June 6, 1978, State voters approved Proposition 13 ("Proposition 13"), which added Article XlliA to 
the State ConHitution ("Article XIII A"). Article XIIIA, as amended, limits the amount of any ad valorem tax on 
real property to I% of the full cash value thereof, except that additional ad valorem taxes may be levied to pay debt 
service on indebtedness approved by the voters prior to July I, 1978, and on bonded indebtedness approved by a 
two-thirds vote on or after July I, 1978, for the acquisition or improvement of real property. Proposition 39, 
approved by State voters on November 7, 2000, provides an altemativc method of seeking voter approval for bonded 
indebtedness (see "Proposition 39" below). Article XIIIA defines full cash value to mean '"the county assessor's 
valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-76 tax bill under "fuiJ cash value,'" or thereafter, the appraised value 
of real property when purchased, newly constructed, or a change in ownership has occurred after the 
1975 assessment." The full cash value may be adjusted annually to reflect inflation at a rate not to exceed 2% per 
year, or a reduction in the consumer price index or comparable local data at a rate not to exceed 2% per year, or 
reduced in the event of declining property value caused by damage, destruction or other factors including a general 
economic downtum. Subsequent amendments further limit the amount of any ad valorem tax on real property to I% 
of the full cash value except that additional taxes may be levied to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by the 
voters prior to July I, 1978, and bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement of real property approved 
on or after July I, 1978 by two-thirds of the votes cast by the voters voting on the proposition. 

Article XJIIA has subsequently been amended to pennit reduction of the "full cash value" base in the event 
of declining property values caused by damage, destruction or other factors, to provide that there would be no 
increase in the "full cash value" base in the event of reconstruction of property damaged or destroyed in a disaster, 
and in other minor or technical ways. 
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Legislation Implementing Article XIIIA 

Legislation has been enacted and amended a number of times since l 978 to implement Article XIIIA. 
Under current law, local agencies are no longer permitted to levy directly any property tax (except to pay voter 
approved indebtedness). The l% property tax is automatically levied by the county and distributed according to a 
formula among taxing agencies. The formula apportions the tax roughly in proportion to the relative shares of taxes 
levied prior to 1989. 

Increases of assessed valuation resulting from reappraisals of property due to new construction, change in 
ownership or from the 2% annual adjustment are allocated among the various jurisdictions in the "taxing area" based 
upon their respective "situs." Local agencies and school districts share the growth of "'base•· revenue from the tax 
rate area. Each year's growth allocation becomes part of each agency's allocation the following year. Article XIIIA 
effectively prohibits the levying of any other ad valorem property tax above the I% limit except for taxes to support 
indebtedness approved by the voters as described above. 

All taxable property is shown at full market value on the tax rolls. Consequently, the tax rate is expressed 
as $1 per $100 of taxable value. All taxable property value included in this Official Statement is shown at 
100 percent of market value (unless noted differently) and all tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value. 

Article XIIIB of the State Constitution 

An initiative to amend the State Constitution entitled "Limitation of Government Appropriations" was 
approved on September 6, 1979 thereby adding Article XIIlB to the State Constitution ("Article XlllB"). In June 
1990, Article XlllB was amended by the voters through their approval of Proposition Ill. Under Article XIIIB, the 
State and each local governmental entity has an annual "appropriations limit" and is not permitted to spend certain 
moneys that are called "appropriations subject to limitation'' (consisting of tax revenues, State subventions and 
certain other funds) in an amount higher than the appropriations limit. Article XIIIB does not affect the 
appropriations of moneys that arc excluded from the definition of "appropriations subject to limitation,'' including 
debt service on indebtedness existing or authorized as of January l, 1979, or bonded indebtedness subsequently 
approved by the voters. In general terms, the appropriations limit is to be based on certain fiscal year 1978-79 
expenditures, and is to be adjusted annually to reflect changes in cost' of living and changes in population, and 
adjusted where applicable for transfer of financial responsibility of providing services to or from another unit of 
government. Among other provisions of Article XI liB, if these entities' revenues in any year exceed the amounts 
pennitted to be spent, the excess would have to be returned by revising tax rates or fee schedules over the 
subsequent two years. However, in the event that a school district's revenues exceed its spending limit, the district 
may, in any fiscal year. increase its appropriations limit to equal its spending by borrowing appropriations limit from 
the State, provided the State has sufficient excess appropriations limit in such year. 

Article XIIIC and Article XIIID of the State Constitution 

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, the so called "Right to Vote on 
Taxes Act." Proposition 218 added Articles XlllC and XlllD to the State Constitution, which contain a number of 
provisions affecting the ability of local agencies, including school districts, to levy and collect both existing and 
future taxes, assessmenl'i, fees and charges. 

Article XlllD deals with assessments and prope1ty related fees and charges. Article XlllD explicitly 
provides that nothing in Article XlllC or XlllD shall be construed to affect existing laws relating to the imposition 
of fees or charges as a condition of property development; however it is not clear whether the initiative power is 
therefore unavailable to repeal or reduce developer and mitigation fees imposed by the District. Developer fees 
imposed by the District are neither pledged nor available to pay the Bonds. 

Proposition 62 

On November 4, 1986, State voters adopted Proposition 62, a statutory initiative which amended the 
Govemment Code by the addition of Sections 53720-53730. Proposition 62 requires that (i) any local tax for 
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general governmental purposes (a "general tax") must be approved by a majority vote of the electorate; (ii) any local 
tax for specific purposes (a "special tax") must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the electorate; (iii) any general 
tax must be proposed for a vote by two-thirds of the legislative body; and (iv) proceeds of any tax imposed in 
violation of the vote requirements must be deducted from the local agency's property tax allocation. Provisions 
applying Proposition 62 retroactively from its effective date to 1985 are unlikely to be of any continuing importance; 
certain other restrictions were already contained in the State Constitution. 

Most of the provisions of Proposition 62 were affirmed by the 1995 State Supreme Court decision in Santa 
Clara County Local Transportation Authority v. Guardino ("Santa Clara"), which invalidated a special sales tax for 
transportation purposes because fewer than two-thirds of the voters voting on the measure had approved the tax. 
Following the State Supreme Court's decision upholding Proposition 62, several actions were filed challenging taxes 
imposed by public agencies since the adoption of Proposition 62, which was passed in November 1986. On 
June 4, 200 I, the State Supreme Court released its decision in one of these cases, Howard Jarvis Taxpayers 
Association v. City of La Habra, et al. ('"La Habra'). In this case, the court held that public agency's continued 
imposition and collection of a tax is an ongoing violation, upon which the statute of limitations period begins anew 
with each collection. The court also held that, unless another statute or constitutional rule provided differently, the 
statute of limitations for challenges to taxes subject to Proposition 62 is three years. Accordingly, a challenge to a 
tax subject to Proposition 62 may only be made for those taxes received within three years of the date the action is 
brought. 

Although by its terms Proposition 62 applies to school districts, the District has not experienced any 
substantive adverse financial impact as a result of the passage of this initiative or the Santa Clara or La Habra 
decisions and believes that any impact experienced by the District will not adversely affect the ability of the District 
to make payments with respect to the Bonds. 

Proposition 98 

On November 8, 1988, State voters approved Proposition 98, a combined initiative, constitutional 
amendment and statute called the "Classroom Instructional Improvement and Accountability Act" (the 
"Accountability Act"). The Accountability Act changed State funding of public education below the university 
level, and the operation of the State's Appropriations Limit, primarily by guaranteeing State funding for K-12 school 
districts and community college districts (collectively, "K-14 districts"). 

Under Proposition 98 (as modified by Proposition Ill, which was enacted on June 5, 1990), K-14 districts 
are guaranteed the greater of (a) in general, a fixed percent of the State's General Fund (the "State General Fund") 
revenues ("Test 1"), (b) the amount appropriated to K-14 schools in the prior year, adjusted for changes in the cost 
of living (measured as in Article XliiB by reference to State per capita personal income) and enrollment ('Test 2"), 
or (c) a third test, which would replace Test 2 in any year when the percentage growth in per capita State General 
FunJ revenues from the prior year plus one half of one percent is less than the percentage growth in State per capita 
personal income ("Test 3"). Under Test 3, schools would receive the amount appropriated in the prior year adjusted 
for changes in enrollment and per capita State General Fund revenues, plus an additional small adjustment factor. If 
Test 3 is used in any year, the difference between Test 3 and Test 2 would become a "credit'' to schools which 
would be the basis of payments in future years when per capita State General Fund revenue growth exceeds per 
capita personal income growth. Legislation adopted prior to the end of fiscal year 1988-89, implementing 
Proposition 98, determined the K-14 districts' funding guarantee under Test I to be 40.3% of the State General Fund 
tax revenues, based on 1986-87 appropriations. However, that percentage has been adjusted to 34.559% to account 
for a subsequent redirection of local property taxes whereby a greater proportion of education funding now comes 
from local property taxes. 

Proposition 98 permits the State Legislature by two-thirds vote of both houses, with the Governors 
concurrence, to suspend the K-14 schools' minimum funding formula for a one year period. The amount of 
suspension is eventually repaid according to a specified State constitutional fonnula, thereby restoring 
Proposition 98 funding to the level that would have been required in the absence of such suspension. The fiscal year 
2004-05 State Budget Act suspended the Proposition 98 minimum guarantee for fiscal year 2004-05; however, the 
suspended amount was fully paid in fiscal year 2005-06. The Proposition 98 minimum guarantee was fully funded 
for fiscal years 2005-06 through fiscal year 2007-08. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act (as defined herein) 
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reduces the Proposition 98 minimum guarantee for fiscal year 2009-10. In order to reduce the Proposition 98 
minimum gnarantee for fiscal year 2009-10 and in consideration of a funding formula under Proposition 98, which 
calculates a level of funding for the current fiscal year in part based upon funding allocated during the prior fiscal 
year, the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act retroactively reverts approximately $1.6 billion in fiscal year 2008-09 
unallocated funds for categorical programs to the State General Fund. In addition, the Revised 2009-10 State 
Budget Act delays for one year the $450 million Proposition 98 settle-up payment from prior year obligations for the 
Quality Education and Investment Act ("QElA"). The Proposition 98 revenue limit funding is reduced in fiscal year 
2009-10 to backfill the reduction in categorical funding to continue the QEIA program. See "STATE BUDGET­
Revised State Budget for Fiscal Year 2009-10" herein for a complete description of the Revised 2009-10 State 
Budget Act and its impact on Proposition 98. Proposition 98 also contains provisions transferring certain State tax 
revenues in excess of the revenue limit to K-14 schools under Article XlliB of the State Constitution. 

Proposition 39 

Proposition 39, which was approved by State voters in November 2000, provides an alternative method for 
passage of school facilities bond measures which lowers the constitutional voting requirement from two-thirds to 
55% of voters and allows property taxes to exceed the current l% limit in order to repay such bonds. The lower 
55% vote requirement would apply only for bond issues to be used for construction, rehabilitation, equipping of 
school facilities or the acquisition of real property for school facilities. The Legislature enacted additional 
legislation that placed certain limitations on this lowered threshold, requiring that (i) two-thirds of the governing 
board of a school district approve placing a bond issue on the ballot, (ii) the bond proposal be included on the ballot 
of a statewide or primary election, a regularly scheduled local election, or a statewide special election (rather than a 
school board election held at any time during the year), (iii) the tax rate levied as a result of any single election not 
exceed $25 for a community college distric~ $60 for a unified school district, or $30 for an elementary school or 
high school district per $100,000 of taxable property value, and (iv) the governing board of the school district 
appoint a citizen's oversight committee to inform the public concerning the spending of the bond proceeds. In 
addition, the school board of the applicable district is required to perform an annual, independent financial and 
performance audit until all bond funds have been spent to ensure that the funds have been used only for the projects 
listed in the measure. 

The District's 2005 Authorization was authorized pursuant to Proposition 39. The Districr is in full 
compliance with all Proposition 39 requirements. 

Proposition IA 

Proposition lA (SCA 4) ("Proposition lA"), proposed by the State Legislature in connection with the 
2004-05 State Budget and approved by the voters in November 2004, provides that the State may not reduce any 
local sales tax rate, limit existing local government authority to levy a sales tax rate or change the allocation of local 
sales tax revenues, subject to certain exceptions. Proposition lA generally prohibits the State from shifting to 
schools or (;ommunity colleges any share of property tax revenues allocated to local governments for any fiscal year, 
as set forth under the laws in effect as of November 3, 2004. Any change in the allocation of property tax revenues 
among local governments within a county must be approved by two-thirds of both houses of the State Legislature. 
Proposition lA provides, however, that beginning in fiscal year 2008-09, the State may shift to schools and 
community colleges up to 8% of local government property tax revenues, which amount must be repaid, with 
interest, within three years, if the Governor proclaims that the shift is needed due to a severe State financial 
hardship, the shift is approved by two-thirds of both houses and certain other conditions are met. The State may also 
approve voluntary exchanges of local sales tax and property tax revenues among local governments within a county. 
Proposition lA also provides that if the State reduces the vehicle license fee rate from 0.65% of a vehicle's market 
value, the State must provide local governments with equal replacement revenues. Further, Proposition lA requires 
the State, beginning July I, 2005, to suspend State mandates affecting cities, counties and special districts, excepting 
mandates relating to employee rights, schools or community colleges, in any year that the State does not fully 
reimburse local governments for their costs to comply with such mandates. See "STATE BUDGET- May 
Revision to the 2009-10 State Budget" for a description of the proposal to implement a shift of local govemment 
revenues cQntained in the May Revision. 
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State School Facilities Bonds 

Proposition 47. The Class Size Reduction Kindergarten- University Public Education Facilities Bond Act 
of 2002 ('"Proposition 47'") appeared on the November 5, 2002 ballot as Proposition 47 and was approved by State 
voters. This measure authorizes the sale and issuance of $13.05 billion in general obligation bonds for construction 
and renovation of K-12 school facilities ($11.4 billion) and higher education facilities ($1.65 billion). Proposition 
47 includes $6.35 billion for acquisition of land and new construction of K-12 school facilities. Of this amount, 
$2.9 billion will be set aside w fund backlog projects for which school districts submitted applications to the State 
on or prior to February I, 2002. The balance of $3.45 billion would be used to fund projects for which school 
districts submitted applications to the State after February I, 2002. K-12 school districts will be required to pay 
50% of the costs for acquisition of land and new construction with local revenues. In addition, $100 mi11ion of the 
$3.45 billion would be available for charter school facilities. Proposition 47 makes available $3.3 billion for 
reconstruction or modemization of existing K-12 school facilities. Of this amount, $1.9 billion will be set aside to 
fund backlog projects for which school districts submitted applications to the State on or prior to February I, 2002, 
and the balance of $1.4 billion would be used to fund projects for which school districts submitted applications to 
the State after February I, 2002. K-12 school districts will be required to pay 40% of the costs for reconstntction or 
modernization with local revenues. Proposition 47 provides a total of $1.7 billion to K-12 school districts which are 
considered critically overcrowded. specifically to schools that have a large number of pupils relative to the size of 
the school site. In addition, $50 million will be available to fund joint-use projects. Proposition 47 also includes 
$1.65 billion to construct new buildings and related infrastructure, alter existing buildings and purchase equipment 
for use in the State's public higher education systems. Proposition 47 represents the second largest general 
obligation bond measure for school construction and modernization approved by State voters in the last several 
years. 

Proposition 55. The Kindergarten-University Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2004 ("Proposition 
55") appeared on the March 2, 2004 ballot as Proposition 55 and was approved by State voters. This measure 
authorizes the sale and issuance of $12.3 billion in general obligation bonds for the construction and renovation of 
K-12 school facilities ($10 billion) and higher education facilities ($2.3 billion). Proposition 55 includes 
$5.26 billion for the acquisition of land and construction of new school buildings. A diso·ict would be required to 
pay for 50% of costs with local resources unless it qualifies for state hardship funding. The measure also provides 
that up to $300 million of these new construction funds is available for charter school facilities. Proposition 55 
makes $2.25 billion available for the reconstruction or modernization of existing school facilities. Districts would 
be required to pay 40% of project costs from local resources. Proposition 55 directs a total of $2.44 billion to 
districts with schools which are considered critically overcrowded. These funds would go to schools that have a 
large number of pupils relative to the size of the school site. Proposition 55 also makes a total of $50 million 
available to fund joint-use projects. Proposition 55 includes $2.3 billion to conso·uct new buildings and related 
infrastructure, alter existing buildings and purchase equipment for use in these buildings for the State's public higher 
education systems. The measure allocates $690 million to each University of California and California State 
University campus and $920 million to State community colleges. The Governor and the Legislature will select 
specific projects to be funded by the bond proceeds. 

Proposition /D. The Kindergarten-University Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2006 ("Proposition 
ID") appeared on the November 7, 2006 ballot as Proposition ID and was approved by State voters. This measure 
authorizes the sale and issuance of $10.4 billion in general obligation bonds by the State for funding the construction 
and renovation of public K-12 school facilities ($7.3 billion) and public higher education facilities ($3.1 billion). 
Proposition I D includes $1.9 billion for the acquisition of land and construction of new school buildings. A school 
district would be required to pay for 50% of costs with local resources unless it qualifies for state hardship funding. 
Proposition I D also provides that up to $500 million of these construction funds is available for charter school 
facilities. Proposition I D makes $3.3 billion available for the reconstruction or modernization of existing public 
school facilities. Districts would be required to pay 40% of project costs from local resources. Proposition 1 D 
directs a total of $1.0 billion to school districts with schools which are considered critically overcrowded. These 
funds would go to schools that have a large number of pupils relative to the size of the school site. Proposition ID 
also makes a total of $29 million available to fund joint-use projects. Proposition ID includes $3.1 billion to 
constr11ct new buildings and related infrastructure, alter existing buildings and purchase equipment for use in these 
buildings for the State's public higher education systems. The measure allocates $890 million to University of 
California and $690 million to California State University campus and $1.5 billion to State community colleges. 

31 



The Govemor and the State Legislature wi11 select specific projects to be funded by the bond proceeds. In 
Decembet 2008, the State's Pooled Money Investment Board announced plans to stop lending money for projects 
throughmJt the State. 

l'he District applies for apportionments from State hond initiatives and historically has received funding 
from such State bond initiatives. No assurances can be given that the District wi11 continue to apply for 
apportionments from current or future State bond initiatives or that the District will continue to receive funding from 
State bonct initiatives for which it applies. 

Future Initiatives 

Prom time to time other amendments to the State constitution, propositions and initiative measures could be 
adopted that further affect District revenues or the District's ability to expend revenues. 

THE DISTRICT 

'fhe information in this section concerning the operations of the District and the District's operating 
finances is provided as supplementai)' information only, and it should not be infened from the inclusion of this 
information in this Official Statement that the interest, principal and premium, if any, on the Bonds is payable from 
the General Fund of the District. The Bonds are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax required to be 
levied by the County in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof. See "AD Y ALOREM PROPERTY 
TAXATION" and "THE BONDS - Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds''. Investors' attention is 
directed to the information in this section conccming District Debt Structure and Statement of Direct and 
Overlapping Debt which contain information about certain bond obligations payable from ad valorem taxes. 

General Information 

The District, unified in November 1964, is located approximately 15 miles northeast of San Francisco, 
California and consists of approximately 110 square miles in western Contra Costa County. It provides educational 
services to the residents of the cities of El Cenito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond and San Pablo, the unincorporated 
communities of El Sobrante and Kensington and certain other unincorporated areas in the County. 

The District currently maintains 41 elementary schools, 7 middle/junior high schools, 10 high schools, and 
6 alternative/continuation programs, in addition to 2 special education sites and 18 State-funded preschools. The 
pupil-teacher ratio in the District is cunently 28: I. The District has identified 8 schools to be closed incrementally 
over a period of three years, beginning in 2009-1 0. 

Board of Education 

The District is govemed by a five-member Board of Education (the '"Board of Education"), each member of 
which is elected to a four-year term. Elections for positions to the Board of Education arc held every two years, 
alternating between two and three available positions. The cunent members of the Board of Education together with 
the expiration of their tenns are as follows: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION AND TERM 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Name 
Audrey Miles 
Antonio Medrano 
Madeline Kronenberg 
Charles T. Ramsey 
Tony Thurmond 

Source: \Vest Contra Cosra: Unified School District. 

Position 
President 

Clerk 
Member 
Member 
Member 

32 

Expiration of Term 
December, 20 l 0 
December, 2012 
December, 20 l 0 
December, 20 l 0 
December, 20 12 



Average Daily Attendance and Revenue Limit 

The District computes average daily attendance ("ADA") based on actual attendance only, with no 
allowances for excused absences. The following table sets forth the ADA based on the Second Period Report of 
Attendance for the past four years and an estimate for 2009-10: 

AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Academic Year 

2004-05 
2005-06 
2006-07 
2007-08 

2008-09 (projected) 
2009-10 (budgeted) 

Average Daily Attendance 

31,349 
30,429 
29,687 
29,488 
29,333 
28,903 

Note: Includes grade levels K-12. srccial education. adult education and charter schooLs. 
Source: West Contra Costa Unified School District. 

The District is currently considered a declining enro1lment district and as such the District's revenue limit 
funding is based on the prior fiscal year average daily attendance. The District's annual revenue limit per ADA was 
$5,647 for 2008-09 and is projected to be $5,216 for 2009-10. See "GENERAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION- Allocation of State Funding to Districts". 

Lottery Income 

The District"s State Lottery revenue was $3,524,647 for 2008-09 and is projected to be $3,495,602 for 
2009-10, representing approximately 1.2% of the District's General Fund revenue in 2008-09. See "GENERAL 
SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION- Other Sources of Education Funding" herein. 

Labor Relations 

The District employs 1,760 full-time equivalent ("'FTE") certificated and 980 FTE classified employees 
including management and confidential employees. The following table summarizes the labor organizations in the 
District. 

Collective Bargaining 

Contracts for each of the District's four bargaining units expired June of 2008. Negotiations are ongoing 
with the District's administrative, supervisory and classified unions. The District anticipates entering into new 
contracts with the District's administrative, supervisory and classified unions prior to the start of the District's 
2009-10 academic calendar year. The District has been in bargaining with the United Teachers of Richmond 
(UTR) since May 2008 and has exhausted all the legally required processes for achieving an agreement including 
mediation and fact finding. Since a mutual agreement was not achieved, and the District has met all the legal 
obligations of the negotiating process, the contract was unilaterally implemented by the Board. The District is ready 
to resume negotiations at any time with UTR to find a mutua11y agreeable solution. 
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LABOR ORGANIZATIONS 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Labor Organization 

United Teachers of Richmond 
Public Employees Union, Local I 
Schoo! Supervisors Association 
Administrators Association 

Number of Employees 

2,010 full-and patt-time 
l,OS5 full-and patt-time 
126 full-and part-time 
131 full-and part-time 

(I) The District is currently negotiating n successor contract with the labor organization. 
SotJrcc: West Contra Costa Uni!icd School District. 

Retirement Programs 

Contract Expiration 

June 30, 200S1 11 

June 30, zoos"' 
June 30, 200S0

' 

June 30, zoos''' 

The District participates in the State Teachers Retirement System ("STRS"). This plan covers all full-time 
certificated employees. In order to receive STRS benefits, an employee must be at least 55 years old and have 
provided five years of service to State public schools. The District's actual contribution to STRS for fiscal yeat· 
2007-0S was $9,928,367 and in fiscal year 2008-09 is expected to be $9,700,147. The District's contribution in 
fiscal year 2009-10 is projected to be $9,632,003. 

The District also participates in the State Public Employees Retirement System ("PERS"). This plan 
covers all classified personnel who arc employed more than four hours per day. In order to receive PERS benefits, 
an employee must be at least 50 years old and have provided five years of creditable service in PERS. The District's 
contribution toPERS for fiscal year 2007-0S was $3,738,408 and is projected to be $3,499,781 for 200S-09. The 
District's contribution in fiscal yeat· 2009-10 is projected to be $3,549,057. 

Both STRS and PERS are operated on a statewide basis and, based on available information, both STRS 
and PERS have unfunded liabilities. (Additional funding of STRS by the State and the inclusion of adjustments of 
such State contributions based on consumer price changes were provided for in 1979 Statues, Chapter 2S2.) The 
amounts of the pension-award benefit obligation (PERS) or unfunded actuarially accrued liability (STRS) will vary 
from time to time depending upon actuarial assumptions, rates of return on investments, salary scales, and levels of 
conuibution. The District is unable to predict what the amount of liabilities will be in the future, or the amount of 
the contributions that the District may be required to make. 

STRS and PERS each issue separate comprehensive annual financial repmts that include financial 
statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be obtained 
from STRS, P.O. Box 15275, Sacramento, Ca!ifomia 95SS 1-0275 and copies of the PERS annual financial repmt 
and actuarial valuations may be obtained from the Ca!PERS Financial Services Division, P.O. Box 942703, 
Sa:cramento, California 94229-2703. The information presented in these rep01ts is not incorporated by reference in 
this Official Statement. 

See the notes to the District's audited financial statements, which are contained in Appendix B for 
additional information concerning STRS and PERS. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 

The District provides post-employment health benefits to all employees hired (i) on or before 
December 31, 2006 and have five years of PERS/STRS creditable service and (ii) after January I, 2007 and have ten 
continuous years of PERS/STRS creditable service with the District. As of June 30, 2008 a total of 2,114 retirees 
met the requirement and expenditures of $14.5 million were recognized for post-employment health care benefits. 
The firm of Nicolay Consulting Group, prepared a report for the District in accordance with GASB No. 45 that 
reports the actuarial accrued liability of the District's post-employment benefits program as of July I, 2008 is 
$495.9 million and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability is $4S7.4 million. The District has been and is expected 
to continue to review the actuarial study, in conjunction with the District's obligations under its post-employment 
benefit plan to determine, among other things, its course of action with respect to post-employment benefit 
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contributions. See the notes to the District" s audited financial statements, which are contained in Appendix B for 
additional information conceming the District's post-employment benefits. 

Assessment District 

On August 3, 1994, the District completed formation of a Maintenance and Recreation Assessment District 
("MRAD") pursuant to the Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972. Annual assessments arc $72 per living unit (a 
single-family residence is a "living unit"; for muhi-family housing the number of living units are assigned on a 
sliding scale according to the number of apartments in the complex). There are approximately 77,140 defined living 
units within the MRAD. The District has received approximately $5 mi11ion annual1y in assessment revenue. On 
November 5, 1996. the MRAD received over two-thirds majority approval at the general election, which validated 
the levy of the MRAD tax. See "CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING 
DISTRICT REVENUE AND APPROPRIATIONS." The use of MRAD revenue is restricted to expenditures for 
recreation, lighting, and landscape operations and maintenance of facilities generally available to the public; it does 
not count towards the District's revenue limit and effectively relieves the District from funding many of these 
expenditures from General Fund revenue. MRAD assessments must be levied annually by the Board of Education. 

Parcel Tax 

On June 8. 2004, voters within the District approved a parcel tax to maintain reduced class sizes, purchase 
textbooks and teaching materials, attract and retain qualified teachers, aides and counselors, enhance core subjects, 
restore library services and athletic programs, and improve custodial services (the "Parcel Tax"). The District 
annually collect 7.2 cents ($0.072) per square foot of total building area of buildings within the District's geographic 
boundaries or $7.20 per vacant parcel, with an exemption for qualified seniors. The Parcel Tax generates 
approximately $9 million annually. The Parcel Tax became effective on July I, 2004 and was scheduled to expire 
on June 30, 2009. At an election in November 2008, voters renewed its existing parcel tax which keeps the current 
rate for an additional five years, beginning July I, 2009 and ending June 30,2014. 

Comparative Financial Statements 

The following table summarizes the District's General Fund revenue, expenditures and fund balances for 
the fiscal years 2004-05 through 2007-08, and budgeted revenue, expenditures and fund balance for the fiscal year 
2008-09. 
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GENERAL FUND "l 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCES 

FISCAL YEARS 2004-05 THROUGH 2008-09 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(In Thousands) 

2008-09 
2004-2005 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 Estimated 

Actual<2l Actualm Actual'21 Actual(2l Actual<~l 

REVENUE 
Revenue Limit Sources $156,931 $158,940 $166,673 $166,818 $154,923 
Federal Rcver1uc 27,587 28,293 24,789 25,622 44,490 

Other State Revenue 57.389 59,963 74,652 71,167 68,575 
Other Local Revenue 19,668 20,034 22,016 21,328 20,579 

TOTAL REVENUE'" $261,575 $267,229 $288,130 $284,934 $288,567 

EXPENDITURES 
Certificated Salaries $111,235 $112,506 $118,719 $121,060 $121.853 
Classified Salaries 37,472 38,247 40,227 44,592 41,169 

Employee Benefits 55,874 57,351 60,690 66,089 71,027 
Books and Supplies 12.405 11.210 12,130 12,341 24.806 
Contract Services and Operating 32,644 36,388 39,041 41,425 44,018 

Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 1,496 1.873 796 890 5,593 

Other Outgo 713 1,036 1.298 52 1,475 
Indirect Cost Rcimhursement (846) (802) (879) 

Dcht Service 
Principal 300 300 300 790 I ,415 
Interest and Other 174 182 190 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES'" $252,313 $259,093 $272,545 $286,437 $310,477 

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER/ $ 9,261 $ 8,136 $ 15,585 $ ( 1.503) $ (20,496) 
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES/ (USES) 

Transfers In $811 $ 2,879 $ 2,383 $2,840 
Transfers Out (2.330) (4,378) (3.238) (3,551) 2,206 

Proceeds from the issuance of 
long-term liabilities 174 182 190 

TOTAL1' 1 $(1,345) $ (1,318) $ (li65) $ (711) 2.206 

NET CHANGE IN FUND $ 7,916 $6,818 $14,920 ($ v 14) $ (22,702) 
BALANCE 

llEGINNING FUND BALANCE, $ 18.402 $ 26,318 $33,136 $ 48.054 $ 45,839 
JULY I 

ENDING FUND BALANCE. $26,318 $33.136 $48,056 $45,840 $23,137 
JUNE 30 

(I) Data reflects activitie~ of the General and Charter School funds through 2004-05. Responsibility for charter schools 
financial reporting subsequent to 2004-05 rests with each charter school and not with the District. 

ill 

(3) 

'" 
(~) 

Excerpted from the Di.stricl's respective Audited Financial Reports. 
District's 2009-10 Executive Summary Budget Information as of June 24, 2009. 
Items may not add to Lotals due to independent rounding. 
Includes the implementation of the Fiscal Recovery Plan passed. 
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2009-2010 

BuJgeted<51 

$149,017 
30,61 <J 

61.563 
18,756 

259,955 

$113.329 
39.7011 
63,336 
10,843 
35.858 

882 
2.209 
(812) 

$265,752 

$ (5.798) 

$ 1,000 

$1,000 

$ (4,798) 

$ 23.138 

$ 18.340 



Prior Financial History of the District 

The District experienced substantial financial difficulties beginning in 1986. These difficulties resulted in, 
among other things, the District filing for bankruptcy in April 1991 and failing to pay certain lease payments with 
respect to the 1988 Certificates, as defined herein. Since that time, the District withdrew from bankruptcy in 
November 1991, received substantial amounts of Emergency Apportionment from the State, elected all new Board 
of Education members, replaced the superintendent and certain other administrative officers of the District, cured the 
defaults with respect to, and defeased to maturity, the 1988 Certificates, and implemented measures to improve its 
financial condition resulting in positive certification of its interim financial reports since 1995-96. Ms. Linda 
Grundhoffer serves as the State trustee with the power to stay or rescind any action of the Board of Education that 
might have an adverse effect on the financial condition of the District until the Emergency Apportionment has been 
repaid in 2018. No assurance can be given with respect to the future financial condition of the District, although the 
financial condition of the District does not alter the obligation of the Board of Supervisors of the County to levy 
ad valorem taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the District, which is the security and source of payment 
for the Bonds. See "THE DISTRICT - District Debt Su·ucture" and "GENERAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION" and "THE BONDS- Security and Source of Payment for the Bonds" herein. 

District Debt Structure 

Emerge.,cy Apportionment. In July 1990, the District obtained an Emergency Apportionment from the 
State in the amount of $9,525,000. In May 1991, the District received an additional Emergency Apportionment 
from the State in the amount of $19,000,000 under the conditions of a court order. In June 1993, further legislation 
was enacted providing that the two Emergency App011ionments from the State be consolidated into one with a IS­
year repayment peiiod and an annual interest rate of 4.543%. Subsequent legislation in October 1997, Assembly 
Bill 437, amortized over 20 years the remaining Emergency Apportionment amount outstanding after the February 
1998 payment and bearing interest at 5.692%. Additional legislation, Assembly Bill 2756, reduced the interest rate 
of the repayment of the Emergency Apportionment to 1.52% thereby reducing annual payments by approximately 
$400,000. 

Following certain legislation adopted in 2004 and 2005, Assembly Bills 1554 and 1331. respectively, the 
District's Emergency Apportionment will be repaid from the proceeds of the California Infrastructure and Economic 
Development Bank State School Fund Apportionment Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (the "Infrastructure Bank 
Bonds"). The District will make future payments for its Emergency Apportionment to the California Infrastructure 
and Economic [)evelopment Bank through a lease-leaseback arrangement on one of its elementary schools. 
Payments are made on February I of each year from any available funds of the District. A schedule of Emergency 
Apportionment payments (comprised of principal and interest) remaining is shown below. 

REPAYMENT OF EMERGENCY APPORTIONMENT 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Year Ending June 30 

2009 
2010 
2011 

2012-2016 
2017-2018 

Total 

Amount Due 

$ 1,421,602 
1,421,602 
1,421,602 
7,108,010 
2,843,199 

$14,216,015 

General Obligation Bonds. On June 2, 1998, the District received authorization to issue $40 million in 
general obligation bonds (the "1998 Authorization"). All of the bonds under the 1998 Authorization have been 
issued. The bonds from the 1998 Authorization were refunded on November 6, 2001 with both the $28,610,000 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 2001 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series A (the "2001 
Refunding Bonds, Series A") and the $10,255,000 West Contra Costa Unified School District 2001 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series B (the "2001 Refunding Bonds, Series B"). 
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The District received notification by letter dated March 11, 2004, from the Tax Exempt Bond Division of 
the IRS ('TEB'') advising that the $I 0,000,000 of bonds issued under the I 998 Authorization in August 1998 (the 
"1998 Series A Bonds") had been selected for examination. By letter dated November 9, 2005, TEB notified the 
District that it had concluded the examination with no change to the position that interest received by the 
bondholders is excludible under section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

The District received notice in October 2006 of a TEB examination of the 200 I Refunding Bonds, 
Series A. The TEB is examining whether (i) escrow securities were purchased at fair market value, (ii) excessive 
fees related to the escrow were charged, and (iii) the escrow's yield exceeded the bond yield by more than allowed 
by the federal tax code. The District believes that all requirements relating to the tax-exemption of the bonds was 
satisfied. By letter dated August 27, 2008, TEB notified the District that it had concluded and closed the 
examination of the 2001 Refunding Bonds, Series A, as the result of a closing agreement entered into by a third 
party. 

On November 7, 2000, the District received authorization to issue $150 million in general obligation bonds 
(the "2000 Authorization"). All of the bonds under the 2000 Authorization have been issued. 

On March 5, 2002, the District received authorization to issue $300 million in general obligation bonds (the 
"2002 Authorization"). All of the bonds under the 2002 Authorization have been issued. 

On November 8, 2005, the District received authorization to issue $400 million in general obligation bonds 
pursuant to the 2005 Authorization. The District issued $70 million of the Series A Bonds pursuant to the 
2005 Authorization on May 17, 2006. The District issued $120 million of the Series B Bonds pursuant to the 
2005 Authorization on July 15, 2008. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the 2005 Authorization. 

Bonds issued under the 1998 Authorization, the 2000 Authorization, the 2002 Authorization and the 
2005 Authorization are payable from an unlimited tax upon all property subject to taxation within the District and 
the Board of Supervisors of the County is empowered and is obligated to levy such tax for the repayment of such 
bonds. 

Under Education Code Section 15270 the amount of general obligation bond indebtedness the District can 
issue is limited to 2.5% of the assessed value of all taxable property within the District. The District applied for and 
was granted a waiver of this limit by the State Board of Education allowing the Disllict to issue general obligation 
bonds in an amount not to exceed 3.5% of assessed value. Notification of the use of a waiver, if required, wao; 
included in the 2005 Authorization. As of the date hereof the District's general obligation bond indebtedness is 
below 3.5%. The waiver is autlwrized for a period beginning May 7, 2009 and ending May 7, 2014. 

Following is a schedule of principal payments remaining on the District's general obligation bonds: 
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GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
AS OF JUNE 30, 2009 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Final 
Maturity Interest Original 

Issue Date (August I) Rates Issue Amount 

1998 Authorization ($40 million) 
200 I Refunding Bonds. Series A 11 

l Nov. 6. 2001 2025 4.15-5.75% $ 28.610.000 
2001 Refunding Bomls, Series B\ 11 Nov. 16.2001 21124 4.30-6.01) 10.255.001) 

2000 Authorization ($150 million) 
Series 2000-A Bonds May 15.211111 21131 5.110-8.011 15JIIl0.11110 
Series 2000-B Bonds Fch. 26.2002 2031 4.00-6.00 40.000.000 
Series 2000-C Bonds Apr. 22. 2003 2032 2.50-5.25 95.000.000 

2002 Authorization ($300 million) 
Series 2002-A Bonds Jun.26.2002 2031 4.25-7.00 30.000.000 
Series 2002-B Bonds Aug. 25. 2003 2032 4.10-5.00 I 00.000.000 
Series 2002-C Current Interest Bonds Aug. I. 2004 2034 4.00-5.375 40.000.000 
Series 2002-C Capital Appreciation Bonds Aug. II. 2004 2034 2.40-5.81 29.999.377 
Series 2002-D Capital Appreciation Bonds Oc<. I 9. 2005 2034 3.15-5.05 99.998,106 

2005 Authorization ($400 million) 
Series 2005-A Bonds May 17. 2006 2035 4.00-5.00 70.000.000 
Series 2005-B Bonds July 15. 200X 2035 5.00-6.00 120.000.000 

Total $67H.862.4X3 

Principal 
Outstanding 

$21.650.1100 
7.895,000 

13.235,000 
36.185.000 
H6.895.000 

27.015.000 
89.690.000 
37.970,000 
29.589.577'" 
97 .925,654(:!) 

68.170.000 
120,000,000 

$636.220.230 

(1) The 2001 Refunding Bonds, Series A and B. were issued to refund four series of bonds in the initial aggregate principal 
amount of $40,000,000 issued under the 199~ Authorization. 

Cl Outstanding Denominational Ammmt of Capital Appreciation Bonds; docs not include accreted interest. 
Source: West Contra Costa Unified School District. 

Certificates of Participation. On May 15, 1988, the District, under its previous name, the Richmond 
Unified School District, caused the execution and delivery of the I 988 Certificates of Participation in the aggregate 
principal amount of $9,800,000 to provide working capital for the District's continuing operations, for a 
computerized management system, and for the constmction of one multipurpose room (the "1988 Certificates''). 
The 1988 Certificates were to be repaid solely from the semi-annual lease payments made to the Richmond Unified 
School District Financing Corporation (the ''Corporation'') under the terms of a lease-purchase agreement between 
the Corporation and the District. 

On July 15, 1991, the District defaulted on its obligation to make payments under the lease-purchase 
agreement that secured the 1988 Certificates. In October 1993, Assembly Bill 536 amended the Education Code to 
provide for the refunding of the 1988 Certificates by allowing the District to enter into a lease of its property and usc 
the proceeds of such lease for the purpose of tenninating the 1988 lease and repaying the 1988 certificates. On 
April I, 1994, the District caused the execution and delivery of the 1994 Certificates of Participation in the 
aggregate principal amount of $11, 150,000 to be repaid from any available funds of the District in order to cure the 
defaults with respect to, and defease to maturity, the 1988 Certificates (the "1994 Certificates"). On 
September 9, 2005, the District caused the execution and delivery of 2005 Taxable Refunding Certificates of 
Participation in the aggregate principal amount of $10,600,000 to defease the 1994 Certificates (the "2005 
Ce11ificates"). 
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The following table shows remaining base rental payments on the 2005 Cc11ificates. 

2005 CERTIFICATES 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Year Ending June 30 PrinciEal Interest Total 

2010 $ 435,000 $ 489,278.00 $ 924,278.00 
2011 455,000 469,008.00 924,008.00 
2012-2016 2,640,000 1,996,917.50 4,636,917.50 
2017-2021 3,360,000 I ,272,992.50 4,632,992.50 
2022-2024 2,890,000 324,450.00 3,214,450.00 

Total $9,780,000.00 $4,552,646.00.00 $14,332,646.00 

Voluntary Integration Program. The Voluntary Integration Program obligation represents cost 
disallowances of $7,652,000 based on State audits of program expenditures in fiscal years 1988-89 to 1989-90. 
Subsequently, the District entered into an agreement with the State to repay this amount from any source of 
available funds of the District to the Voluntary Integration Program beginning in June of 1993. During the 1992-93 
fiscal year, the original agreement was restmctured allowing the District to make the June 30, 1993, payment as 
scheduled, with the remaining balance scheduled to be paid over a longer period. Remaining payments of the 
Voluntary Integration Program obligation are shown below: 

PAYMENT OF THE VOLUNTARY INTEGRATION PROGRAM OBLIGATION 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Year Ending June 30 

2010 
2011 
2012 

Total 

Annual Payments 

$1,000,000 
1,000,000 

872,000 

$2,872,000.00 

Computer Equipment Acquisition Loans. During the fiscal year 1989-90, the District financed the 
acquisition of an administrative and instructional computer system with a loan from IBM. The acquired assets 
secure the loan. Subsequent to June 30, 1993, the District restructured the obligation allowing for one payment 
during fiscal year 1993-94 and the remaining payments of $3,623,744 comprised of $2,459, Ill of principal and 
$1,164,633 of interest payable in fiscal years 2007-08 through 2015-16. The Pooled Money Investment Rate at 
June 30, 1993, of 4.402%, was used to impute the interest costs implicit in the repayment amounts, which will be 
paid from any available funds of the District. At June 30, 2009, the imputed interest payable is $307,434. 
Therefore, the carrying balance of the loan at June 30, 2009, is $4,067,566. 

The restmcturing agreement with IBM provides that if, prior to August I, 2015, the District receives 
funding for the specific purpose of paying outstanding obligations, the above amounts wi11 be considered then due 
for purposes of that payment, and amounts owing to IBM will be paid to the same extent as outstanding debts of 
other creditors. 

Child Care Facilities Loan. On Februmy 7, 2001, the District received a no-interest loan from the 
Califomia Department of Education for the development and acquisition of child care facilities. The District 
received an initial amount of $573,048 with the District repaying $33,000 of the loan. In 2002-03, the District 
received an additional $598,060. The can·ying balance of the loan as of June 30, 2009 is $321,395. 

Statement of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Contained within the District are numerous overlapping local agencies providing public services. These 
local agencies have outstanding bonds issued in the form of general obligation, lease revenue and special assessment 
bonds and outstanding cettificates of participation. The following represents the total assessed valuation and the 
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direct and overlapping bonded debt of the District as of June I, 2009, according to California Municipal Statistics, 
Inc. The District makes no assurance as to the accuracy of the following table, and inquiries concerning the scope 
and methodology of procedures carried out to complete the information presented should be directed to California 
Municipal Statistics, Inc., Oakland, California. 

The first column in the table names each public agency which has outstanding debt as of the date of the 
report and whose territory overlaps the District in whole or in part. The second column shows the percentage of 
each overlapping agency's assessed value located within the boundaries of the District. This percentage, multiplied 
by the total outstanding debt of each overlapping agency (which is not shown in the table) produces the amount 
shown in the third column, which is the apportionment of each overlapping agency's outstanding debt to taxable 
property in the District. 
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DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(As of June I, 2009) 

2008~09 Assessed Valuation: 
Redcvclopmcntlncremcntal Valuation: 
Adjusted Assessed Valuation: 

$27.062.460.076 
(6.963,739.425) 

$20.098.720,651 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 
Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
East Bay Municipal Utility District, Special District No. 
Contra Costa Community College District 
West Contra Costa Unilicd School District 
East 8ay Regional Park District 
City of El Cerrito Parcel Tax Obligations 
West Contra Costn Healthcarc District Parcel Tax Obligations 
Richmond Redevelopment Community Facilities District No. 1998-1 
City and County 1915 Act Bonds 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT: 
Contra Costa County General Fund Ohligations 
Contra Costa County Pension Obligations 
Contra Costa Fire Protection District Pension Obligations 
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District Certificates of Participation 
Contra Costa Community College District Ccrtilicates of Participation 
West Contra Costa Unified School District Certificates of Participation 
City of El CctTito General Fund Obligations 
City of Hercules Certificates of Participation 
City of Pinole Pension Obligations 
City of Richmond General Fund Obligations 
City of Richmond Pension Obligations 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT 

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 

Excludes the Bonds described herein. 

% Applicable 

4.560% 
6.283 

14.563 
I 00.000 

6.723 
I 00.000 
92.323 

100.000 
I 00.000 

14.516% 
14.516 
4.192 

11.369 
14.563 

100.000 
100.000 
90.410 

100.000 
100.000 
100.000 

Debt 7/1/09 

$20.126,016 
1.871.392 

25.638.162 
636.220.234 (I) 

8,460,896 
3.395.000 

21.395.855 
3.770,000 

38.421.615 
$759,299, j 70 

$41.416.325 
67.565,448 

5.175,653 
4.861.953 

152.912 
23.390,000 

9.610.000 
13.453.008 
5.960.143 

99.530.000 
130.815.133 

$401.930.575 

$1.161.229,745 <21 

(I) 

c:n Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and 
non-bonded capital lease obligations. 

Ratios to 2008-09 Assessed Valuation: 
Direct Debt ($636.220,284).. .. ............. .. . ........ 2.35(7o 
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt .................. 2.81% 

Ratios to Adjustcd Assessed Valuation: 
Combined Direct Debt ($659,610.234) .............................................. 3.28% 
Combined Total Debt.... ..................... .................. .. ..... 5.78% 

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF 6/30/07: $0 
Source: California Municipal Statistics. Inc. 

The direct debt of the District after issuance of the Bonds will be approximately $636,220,284 or 2.35% of 
the approximately $27,062,460,076 2008-09 assessed valuation of taxable property within the District. The 
District's statutory general obligation bonding capacity is 2.5% of the assessed valuation of taxable property within 

the District, or approximately $676.5 million for fiscal year 2008-09. 
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GENERAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

State Funding of Education 

General. The State Constitution requires that from all State revenues there shall first be set apart the 
moneys to be applied by the State for the support of the public school system and public institutions of higher 
education. Proposition 98 guarantees K-14 schools a minimum share of the State's General Fund revenues. See 
"CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND 
APPROPRIATIONS- Proposition 98." State school districts receive a significant portion of their funding from 
State appropriations. State income tax and other receipts can fluctuate significantly from year to year, depending on 
economic conditions in the State and the nation. As a result, decreases in State revenues can affect appropriations 
made by the Legislature to school districts. In periods when State funding for public education is reduced or the 
State experiences budget problems, the District's financial position may be affected, even in the absence of 
significant education policy changes. The District has been unable to conduct a full and complete analysis of the 
Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act and its impact on the District's budget, however, the District expects the Revised 
2009-10 State Budget Act to have a slight negative impact on umestricted revenues as compared to the original 
adopted budget. See "STATE BUDGET- Revised State Budget for Fiscal Year 2009-10" for a description of the 
Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act. The District cannot predict how State income or State education funding will 
vary over the entire term to maturity of the Bonds. Sec "STATE BUDGET' herein. 

As is true for all school districts in the State, District operating income consists of four components: 
(I) Revenue Limit Sources (consisting of a mix of State and local property tax revenues), (2) Federal Sources, 
(3) Other State Sources and ( 4) Other Local Sources. The Revenue Limit Sources includes both a State portion 
funded from the State's General Fund and a locally-generated portion derived from the District's share of the I% 
local ad valorem property tax authorized by the State Constitution. In addition, school districts may be eligible for 
other funding, including State and Federal program funding, as well as revenue derived from local sources besides 
property taxes. See "Allocation of State Funding to Disu"icts" and "Other Sources of Education Funding" below. 

Allocation of State Funding to Districts 

Under Education Code Section 42238 et seq. each school district is determined to have a target funding 
level: a revenue limit (''Revenue Limit'') per student multiplied by the school district's student enrollment measured 
in units of average daily attendance ("ADA"), a measure based upon the actual attendance of students without 
provision for excused absences. Enrollment can fluctuate due to factors such as school district population, 
competition from private, parochial, and public charter schools, inter-district transfers in or out, and other causes. 
Losses in enrollment will lower a school district's Revenue Limit (and may result in loss of operating revenues), 
without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed operating costs. 

The Revenue Limit is calculated from the school district's prior-year funding level, as adjusted for a 
number of factors such as inflation, special or increased instructional needs and costs, and especially low enrollment. 
Generally, the amount of State funding allocated to each school district is the amount needed to reach that district's 
Revenue Limit after taking into account certain other revenues, in particular, locally generated property taxes. This 
is referred to as State equalization aid or colloquiaJly as '"backfi11". To the extent local tax revenues increase due to 
growth in local property assessed valuation, the additional revenue is offset by a dec1inc in the State's contribution. 

A school district's property tax revenues is comprised of the district's share of the local 1% property tax, 
received pursuant to Sections 75 et seq. and Sections 95 et seq. of the State Revenue and Taxation Code. Education 
Code Section 42238(h) itemizes the local revenues that are counted towards the base revenue limit before 
calculating how much the State must provide in equalization aid. The more local property taxes a school district 
receives, the less State equalization aid it is entitled to; ultimately, a school district whose local property tax 
revenues exceed its Revenue Limit is entitled to receive no equalization aid, and receives only its special categorical 
aid and the "basic aid" of $120 per student per year guaranteed by Article IX, Section 6 of the State Constitution. 
Such school distticts are known colloquially as "basic aid districts''. School districts that receive some equalization 
aid may be referred to as "revenue limit districts". 

The District is not a "basic aid district." 
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Sec 'THE DISTRICT- Average Daily Attendance and Revenue Limit'' for historical and projected ADA 
and Revenue Limit per ADA of the District. 

Other Sources of Education Funding 

In addition to the Revenue Limit, school districts in the State may receive other revenue from the State and 
from federal and local sources including grants and funding for specific programs. 

Federal Revenues. The federal government provides funding for several programs, including special 
education programs, programs under the Educational Consolidation and Improvement Act (Title I), No Child Left 
Behind funding, and specialized programs such as Drug Free Schools. 

Other State Revenues. In addition school districts receive Other State Revenues. These Other State 
Revenues are primarily restricted revenues that fund items such as special education programs, instructional 
materials, and mentor teachers. 

Included among Other State Revenues are moneys the school district receives from the State Lottery (the 
"Lottery"), which was established by a constitutional amendment approved in the November 1984 general election. 
Lottery revenues must be used for the education of students and cannot be used for non-instructional purposes, such 
as real property acquisition, facility constntction, or the financing of research. State Lottery net revenues (gross 
revenues less prizes and administration expenses) are allocated by computing an amount per ADA or full timC 
equivalent ("FTE"). This figure is derived by dividing the total net revenues figures by the total ADA for grades 
K-12 and community colleges, and by the total FTE for the University of California system and the California State 
University and College system. Each entity receives an amount equal to its total ADA or FTE, as applicable, 
multiplied by the per ADA or FTE figure. See 'THE DISTRICT- Lottery Income" for lottery income amounts 
received by the District. 

Other Local Reve11ues. In addition to property taxes, a school district may receive additional local 
revenues from items such as the leasing of property owned by the school district and other local fees and donations. 

School District Budgets 

State law requires school districts to maintain a balanced budget in each fiscal year. The State Department 
of Education imposes a uniform budgeting and accounting format for school districts. 

Under current law, a school district governing board must adopt and file with the county superintendent of 
schools a tentative budget by July 1 in each fiscal year. The District is under the jurisdiction of the Contra Costa 
County Superintendent of Schools. 

A county superintendent of schools must review and approve or disapprove the budgets for each school 
district under its jurisdiction no later than August 15. The county superintendent of schools is required to examine a 
school district's adopted budget for compliance with the standards and criteria adopted by the State Board of 
Education and identify technical corrections necessary to bring the budget into compliance with the established 
standards. If a budget is disapproved, it i.s returned to the school district with recommendations for revision. The 
school district is then required to revise the budget, hold a public hearing thereon, adopt the revised budget and file 
it with the county superintendent of schools no later than September 8. Pursuant to State law, the county 
superintendent of schools has available various remedies by which to impose and enforce a budget that complies 
with State criteria, depending on the circumstances, if a budget is disapproved. After approval of an adopted budget, 
the school district's administration may submit budget revisions for governing board approval. 

Subsequent to approval, the county superintendent of schools will moniwr each school district in its 
jurisdicti()n throughout the fiscal year pursuant to its adopted budget to determine on an ongoing basis if the district 
can meet its current and subsequent year financial obligations. If the county superintendent of schools determines 
that the district cannot meet its current or subsequent year obligations, the county superintendent of schools will 
notify the district's goveming board of the determination and may then do either or both of the following: (a) assign 
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a fiscal advisor to enable the district to meet those obligations or (b) if a study and recommendations are made and a 
district fails to take appropriate action to meet its financial obligations, the county superintendent will so notify the 
State Superintendent of Public Instruction, and then may do any or all of the following for the remainder of the fiscal 
year: (i) request additional information regarding the district's budget and operations; (ii) develop and impose, after 
also consulting with the district's governing board, revisions to the budget that will enable the district to meet its 
financial obligations; and (iii) stay or rescind any action inconsistent with such revisions. However, the county 
superintendent of schools may not abrogate any provision of a collective bargaining agreement that was entered into 
prior to the date upon which the county superintendent of schools assumed authority. 

A State law adopted in 1991 (known as "AB 1200") imposed additional financial reporting requirements on 
school districts, and established guidelines for emergency State aid app01tionments. Under the provisions of 
AB 1200, each school district is required to file interim CC!tifications with the county superintendent of schools (on 
December 15, for the period ended October 31, and by mid-March for the period ended January 31) a' to its ability 
to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the then-cunent fiscal year and, based on cunent forecasts, for 
the subsequent fiscal year. The county superintendent of schools reviews the certification and issues either a 
positive, negative or qualified certification. A positive certification is assigned to any school district that will meet 
its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years. A negative certification is 
assigned to any school district that is deemed unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal 
year or subsequent fiscal year. A qualified certification is assigned to any school district that may not meet its 
financial obligations for the cunent fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years. A school district that receives a 
qualified or negative certification may not issue tax and revenue anticipation notes or certificates of participation 
without approval by the county superintendent. 

On July 28, 2009, the California Secretary of State chaptered Chapter 2 into the Statutes of the 2009-10 
Fourth Extraordinary Session (known as "ABX4 2"). ABX4 2 amends AB 1200 for the 2009-10 fiscal year. Under 
ABX4 2, a county superintendent of schools and the superintendent of public instruction is prohibited from 
assigning a qualified or negative certification to a local education agency based substantially on a projected loss of 
federal funds provided through the Recovery Act in the 20 I 1-12 fiscal year. To ensure consistent statewide 
implementation and to provide guidance to reviewing agencies regarding the application, ABX4 2 authorizes the 
superintendent of public instruction to convene a standards and criteria committee, established pursuant to 
Section 33127 of the Education Code, to modify the budget and financial review criteria to incorporate such change 
for the 2009-10 fiscal year. 

The District's interim report, as of January 31, 2009, was cettified "qualified" by the County 
Superintendent. The qualified certification resulted in increased oversight of the District by the County Office of 
Education, including the requirement that the District submit by June I, 2009 a Third Interim Financial Report for 
the Fiscal Year 2008-09 (the "Third Interim Report"), reflecting data as of April 30, 2009. The District submitted 
the Third Interim Report on June I, 2009. The Board of Education was required to review the Third Interim 
Report's financial statements to ensure that cash and fund balances will be positive for year end. The impact of mid­
year cuts to the fiscal year 2008-09 budget is included in the Third Interim Report, however, because the Third 
Interim Report reflects information as of April 30, 2009, it does not take into account further loss of revenues 
resulting from the growing State deficit. According to the Third Interim Report, the District will meet its financial 
obligations this year and the District's General Fund will have a positive ending fund and cash balance for fiscal 
year 2008-09, although the District's 2009-10 budget includes deficit spending based upon current State budget 
proposals (see "GENERAL SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION- State Funding of Education") 
and the District's declining enrollment. See "THE DISTRICT - Comparative Financial Statements" for the 
projected year-end figures including the projected year-end General Fund balance as reported in the Third Interim 
Report. 

County Investment Pool 

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, each school disllict in the State maintains substantially 
all of its operating funds in the county treasury of the county in which it is located. Each county treasurer serves as 
ex officio treasurer for those school districts under jurisdiction of the county superintendent of schools of the county. 
Each county treasurer has the authority to implement and oversee the investment of school district funds held in the 
county treasury. Generally, the county treasurer pools county funds with school district funds and funds from 
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certain other public agencies and invests the cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost. Interest earnings arc 
accounted for on either a cash or accrual basis and apportioned to pool participants on a regular basis. 

Each county is required to invest funds, including those pooled funds described above, in accordance with 
Government Code Section 53601 et seq. In addition, each county is required to establish its own investment 
policies, which may provide further limitations beyond those required by the Government Code. 

See "COUNTY INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES" for a discussion of the County investment 
pool, valuation procedures, and investment policies. 

Accounting Practices 

The accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles in accordance 
with policies and procedures of the State School Accounting Manual. This manual, according to Section 41010 of 
the Education Code, is to be followed by all State school districts. Revenues are recognized in the period in which 
they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are 
recognized in the peri()d in which the liability is incurred. 

The financial statements of the District for fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, appearing in Appendix B of 
this Official Statement, have been audited by Pe1ry-Smith LLP, independent accountants (the "Auditors"), as set 
forth in their report thereon. The District considers its audited financial statements to be public information, and 
accordingly no consent has been sought or obtained from the Auditors in connection with the inclusion of such 
statements in this Official Statement. The Auditors have not made any representation in connection with inclusion 
of the audit herein that there has been no material change in the financial condition of the District since the audit was 
concluded. 

STATE BUDGET 

The State Budget Pr()cess 

The State's fiscal year begins on July I and ends on June 30. According to the State Constitution, the 
Govemor of the State (the "Governor") is required to propose a budget for the next fiscal year (the "Governor's 
Budget") to the State Legislature no later than January 10 of each year, a final budget must be adopted by a two­
thirds vote of each house of the State Legislature by no later than June 15 and the Govemor must sign the adopted 
budget by no later than June 30. The budget becomes law upon the signature of the Governor. In recent years, the 
State's final budget has not been timely adopted. The 2009 State Budget Act (the "2009 State Budget Act"), which 
set forth the State's Budget for the remainder of fiscal year 2008-09 and for the entirety of fiscal year 2009-10, was 
signed into law by the Governor on February 20, 2009, approximately five months prior to the deadline therefor. 
See"- State Budget for Fiscal Year 2009-10" for a desc1iption of the State's actions to address the projected deficit 
in fiscal year 2009-10 subsequent to the adoption of the 2009 State Budget Act. On July 28, 2009, the Governor 
signed certain amendments to the 2009 State Budget Act (as amended the "Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act") to 
address a then-projected $24.16 billion shortfall in revenues. See"- Revised State Budget for Fiscal Year 2009-
1 0" for a description of the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act. 

Under State law, the annual proposed Govemor's Budget cannot provide for projected expenditures in 
excess of projected revenues and balances available from prior fiscal years. Following the submission of the 
Governor's Budget, the State Legislature takes up the proposal. Under the State Constitution, money may be drawn 
from the State Treasuty only through an appropriation made by law. The primary source of the annual expenditure 
authorizations is the Budget Act as approved by the State Legislature and signed by the Governor. The Budget Act 
must be approved by a two-thirds majority vote of each House of the State Legislature. The Governor may reduce 
or eliminate specific line items in the Budget Act or any other appropriations bill without vetoing the entire bill. 
Such individual line-item vetoes are subject to override by a two-thirds majority vote of each House of the State 
Legislature. Appropriations also may be included in legislation other than the Budget Act. Bills containing 
appropriations (except for K-14 education) must be approved by a two-thirds majority vote in each House of the 
State Legislature and be signed by the Governor. Bills containing K-14 education appropriations require only a 
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simple majority vote. Continuing appropriations, available without regard to fiscal year, may also be provided by 
statute or the State Constitution. Funds necessary to meet an appropriation need not be in the State Treasury at the 
time such appropriation is enacted; revenues may be appropriated in anticipation of their receipt. However, delays 
in the adoption of a final State budget in any fiscal year may affect payments of State funds during such budget 
impasse. See "State Funding of Schools Without a State Budget" below for a description of payments of 
appropriations during a budget impasse. 

State Budget for Fiscal Year 2008-09 

On September 23, 2008, Govemor Schwarzenegger signed into law the State Budget Act for fiscal year 
2008-09 (the "Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act"). Due to significant negotiation and revision prior to its 
ultimate adoption, the Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act was adopted subsequent to the statutory deadline of 
June 30. 

The fiscal year 2007-08 State Budget Act projected a State General Fund balance at the end of fiscal year 
2007-08 of $3.3 billion and a total reserve of $4.1 billion. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act projected 
ending fiscal year 2007-08 with a State General Fund balance of $4.0 billion, of which $885 million was reserved 
for the liquidation of encumbrances and $3.1 billion was deposited in a reserve for economic uncertainties. 

The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act repm1ed that the State General Fund began fiscal year 2008-09 
with a balance of $4.0 billion. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act projected State General Fund revenues 
and transfers for fiscal year 2008-09 of $102.0 billion, a decrease of approximately 1.0% of the anticipated revenues 
and transfers for fiscal year 2007-2008, and State General Fund expenditures of $103.4 billion, an increase of 
approximately 0.06% above the anticipated expenditures for fiscal year 2007-08. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State 
Budget Act projects ending fiscal year 2008-09 with a State General Fund balance of $2.6 billion, of which 
$885 million was projected to be reserved for the liquidation of encumbrances and $1.7 billion was projected to be 
deposited in a reserve for economic uncertainties. 

The Governor's economic forecasts for fiscal year 2008-09 reflected weaker economic performance 
throughout the country and the State. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act attempted to address a projected 
$24.3 billion budget shortfall which was identified in the Governor's May Revision to the Proposed 2008-09 Budget 
with a combination of cuts in expenditures and projections of increased revenues. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State 
Budget Act included vetoes on behalf of the Governor in the amount of $5 lO million of spending approved by the 
State Legislature. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act contained a proposal to increase the State's Budget 
Stabilization Account (the "BSA'') from 5% of State General Fund expenditures to 12.5%. In addition, the Fiscal 
Year 2008-09 State Budget Act proposed an annual transfer to the BSA of 3% of the State General Fund and the 
elimination of the ability to suspend such annual transfers. During economic downturns, when the State 
Constitution pennits funds to be drawn from the BSA, such transfers would not occur. Further, the State would only 
be permitted to transfer funds from the BSA if (I) actual revenues during such fiscal year are below a specified level 
and (2) funds transferred from the BSA to the State General Fund are appropriated in a stand-alone bill. 

The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act contained the following m~jor components relating to K-12 
education funding: 

I. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act included a $244.3 million augmentation to provide a 
0.68% COLA for school appo11ionments ($239.8 million for school district revenue limits and $4.5 million is for 
county office of education revenue limits). The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act did not provide a COLA for 
categorical programs. 

2. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act projected $14.4 billion in property tax revenues for 
school districts and county offices of education in fiscal year 2008-09, an increase of $1.0 billion from the estimated 
property tax revenues in fiscal year 2007-08. Estimates of property tax revenues in fiscal year 2008-09 reflected the 
inclusion of redevelopment agency pass-through provisions enacted with the Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act. 
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3. Due to, among other things, a recent report by the State Controller's Office stating that 
redevelopment agencies in the State have not been passing through the full amount of property tax increment 
revenues to local taxing jurisdictions, the Fiscal Year 2008-09 Stale Budget Act included legislation requiring 
redevelopment agencies to report all payments and obligations to local taxing jurisdictions from fiscal year 2003-04 
through the current fiscal year for verification. Pursuant to such legislation, if approved, redevelopment agencies 
would be required to remit any outstanding obligations to local taxing jurisdictions; however, monies owed to school 
districts that offset Stale costs for apportionments would be deposited in the respective county's ERAF. This 
legislation also requires a one-time shift of $350 million from redevelopment agencies to the respective county's 
Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund and estimates that the transfer will total $98 million in fiscal year 
2008-09. 

4. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act provides a transfer in the amount of $101 million to the 
Emergency Repair Account established under the Williams settlement agreement. Such transfer will bring total 
transfers authorized to fund school facility emergency repair projects pursuant to the Williams settlement agreement 
to $392 million. 

5. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act includes $25.4 million to support the development of 
the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System and related school information services programs. The 
Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act estimated that total funding for these programs since fiscal year 2006-07, 
including support for each district's transition to the longitudinal system in the summer of 2010, would be 
$78.7 million. 

6. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 Stale Budget Act included a deferment of $150 million in settle-up 
payments that would have been appropriated to reduce outstanding costs incu!Ted by school districts and community 
college districts for unfunded mandated programs. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act authorized 
$402 million in settle-up funds to continue the Quality Education Investment Act of 2006, which funds are 
designated to reduce class sizes and improve teacher quality and training, and to improve counselor-to student ratios 
in low-performing high schools. 

7. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act included a package designed to increase benefits for 
retired teachers, whic:h included: (i) an increase up to 85% non-vested purchasing power protection for participating 
teachers receiving payments from the Supplemental Benefit Maintenance Account; (ii) an annual State General 
Fund contribution to the Supplemental Benefit Maintenance Account of 2.5% of teacher payroll less $66.4 million 
in fiscal year 2008-09, $70 million in fiscal year 2009-10, $71 million in fiscal year 20 I 0-11 and $72 million in each 
subsequent fiscal year; (iii) a shift from a lump sum payment on July I of each fiscal year to semi-annual payments 
on November I and April I; (iv) payments of $57 million for four fiscal years beginning in fiscal year 2009-10 to 
pay for interest accrued from a lawsuit in fiscal year 2007-08 concerning the State's one-time reduction of payments 
to CalSTRS' Supplemental Benefit Maintenance Account in fiscal year 2003-04; (v) an extended payroll reporting 
period to October 25 with the ability to amend the report until April 15 of each year; and (vi) an additional 
appropriation of up to $3 million in fiscal year 2009-10 to account for payroll reporting eiTors in prior fiscal years. 

8. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act eliminated the $6 million approved by the State 
Legislature that allocates funds to non-Title I Immediate Intervention Underperforming Schools Program school. 
Such schools include certain schools in the bottom half of the API rankings have not met API improvement targets 
set forth in the State Education Code and are still subject to State sanctions. In addition, operation staff of such 
schools may be assigned to work with an intervention team or receive additional assistance from the State. 

9. The Fiscal Year 2008-09 State Budget Act included an increase of $269 million for enrollment 
growth. This increase in funding due primarily to higher than estimated attendance and is reflected in school district 
revenue limits and C()mmunity college apportionments. 

State Budget for Fiscal Year 2009-10 

On Februm·y 20, 2009, the Governor signed the 2009 State Budget Act to address a then-projected 
$42 billion shortfall in revenues. The 2009 State Budget Act estimates fiscal year 2008-09 revenues and transfers of 
$89.37 billion, total expenditures of $94.09 billion and a yem·-end deficit of $2.34 billion, which includes a 
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$2.37 billion prior-year State General Fund balance, a $3.42 billion withdrawal from the reserve for economic 
uncertainties and an allocation of $1.08 billion to the reserve for the liquidation of encumbrances. The 2009 State 
Budget Act projects fiscal year 2009-10 revenues and transfers of $97.73 billion actual expenditures of 
$92.21 billion and a year-end surplus of $3.18 billion (net of the $2.34 billion deficit from fiscal year 2008-09), of 
which $1.08 billion will be reserved for the liquidation of encumbrances and $2.10 billion will be deposited in a 
reserve for economic uncertainties. 

Ce11ain of the features of the 2009 State Budget Act affecting school districts included the following: 

l. The 2009 State Budget Act reduced fiscal year 2008-09 Proposition 98 spending for school 
districts and community college districts to $50.7 billion from the $58.1 billion set forth in the 2008-09 Budget Act. 
The 2009 State Budget Act included allocations of $54.9 billion to Proposition 98 funding for fiscal year 2009-10. 

2. The 2009 State Budget Act included reductions in fiscal year 2008-09 of $2.4 billion from K-14 
programs, which amount includes $943.8 million from K-12 revenue limits, $943.8 million from approximately fifty 
K-12 categorical programs, $286.9 million from the elimination of the K-14 COLA and $210 million from other 
various K-12 programs as compared to amounts set fm1h in the 2008-09 Budget Act. The 2009 State Budget Act 
included additional reductions in fiscal year 2009-10 of $267.5 million from revenue limits and $267.5 million from 
categorical programs. 

3. The 2009 State Budget Act defened until July 2009 approximately $3.2 billion in K-14 principal 
apportionments of which $2.3 billion were to be allocated to K-12 programs, $570 million to K-3 class size 
reduction and $340 million to community colleges. In addition, the 2009 State Budget Act deferred until October 
2009 principal apportionments established for the months of July 2009 and August 2009 in the approximate amount 
of $2.5 billion. 

4. The 2009 State Budget Act eliminated the High Priority Schools program, which provides 
additional funding to low-performing schools in the State to improve academic performance. The elimination of the 
High Priority Schools program reduced amounts received by such schools in the aggregate amount of 
$114.2 million. 

5. The 2009 State Budget Act implemented provisions to grant school districts increased flexibility 
with respect to the use of certain funds received from the State to shift funds to meet their highest priority needs in 
fiscal years 2008-09 through 2012-13 and reduces penalties associated with the K-3 Class Size Reduction program 
through 2011-12. These flexibility provisions will not apply to programs protected under federal law or programs 
that were approved pursuant to voter initiatives. 

According to the Legislative Analyst's Office (the "LAO"), the 2009-10 Budget Act relied in par1icular 
upon the passage of three measures appearing on lhe ballot at a special election held in May 2009 (the "Special 
Election"), which accounted for an aggregate $5.8 billion in additional revenues to the State. None of these 
measures received the requisite voter approval. 

LAO Analysis of the 2009-10 Budget Act 

On March 13, 2009, the LAO issued a report entitled 'The Fiscal Outlook Under the February Budget 
Package'" (the "LAO Fiscal Outlook"), which provides analysis by the LAO of the 2009-10 Budget Act. The LAO 
Fiscal Outlook is available on the LAO website at www.lao.ca.gov. Information on the website is not incorporated 
herein by reference. 

According to the LAO Fiscal Outlook, the State's economic and revenue outlook has deteriorated since the 
adoption of the 2009 State Budget Act. The LAO stales that the State Legislature and the Governor should consider 
additional savings proposals, pursue broad based programmatic changes and maximize the use of any federal funds 
received to help balance the State budget in the current and future fiscal years. Also, the LAO notes that the 
2009 State Budget Act relies upon the passage of certain ballot measures at the Special Election and the failure of 
such measures would require the development of additional budgetary solutions. According to the LAO, given the 
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short-term nature of some of the budgetary strategies set forth in the 2009 State Budget Act, the State's deficit will 
reappear in future years and grow from $12.6 billion in fiscal year 20!0-ll to $26 billion in fiscal year 2013-14 
absent corrective actions. Further, the LAO cautions that the State could experience recurring cash flow pressures in 
the coming months and years, which could be aggravated if credit markets remain strained and the State's access to 
borrowing for cash flow purposes were restricted. 

May Revision to the 2009-10 State Budget 

On May 14,2009, the Governor released the May Revision to the 2009-10 State Budget (together with the 
contingency proposals referenced therein, the "May Revision"). The May Revision projects a budget gap of 
$2!.3 billion through the remainder of fiscal year 2008-09 and fiscal year 2009-10 due to continued shortfalls in 
revenue collections and increased costs and the failure of five of the six budget-related propositions included in the 
Special Election, which the May Revision proposes to address through program reductions and additional 
borrowings. The May Revision estimates fiscal year 2008-09 revenues and transfers of $85.95 billion, total 
expenditures of $94.89 billion and a year-end deficit of $3.63 billion, which includes a $2.31 billion prior-year State 
General Fund balance, a $4.71 billion withdrawal from the reserve for economic uncertainties and an allocation of 
$!.08 billion to the reserve for the liquidation of encumbrances. The May Revision projects fiscal year 2009-lO 
revenues and transfers of $92.22 billion, total expenditures of $85.46 billion and a year-end surplus of $3.13 billion 
(net of the $2.63 billion deficit from fiscal year 2008-09), of which $1.08 billion will be reserved for the liquidation 
of encumbrances and $2.05 billion will be deposited in a reserve for economic uncertainties. The May Revision 
indicates that the State's economic outlook inc1udes negative growth for the current calendar year, followed by weak 
growth in calendar year 20 l 0 and increased growth in calendar year 20 ll. 

Features of the May Revision affecting K-12 school districts in general include the following: 

I. The May Revision reduces Proposition 98 funding for fiscal year 2008-09 to $49.1 billion from 
the $50.7 billion set forth in the 2009 State Budget Act and reduces Proposition 98 funding for fiscal year 2009-10 
to $53.7 billion from the $55.9 billion set forth in the 2009 State Budget Act. The May Revision projects that such 
reductions will be largely offset by $3.3 billion in federal State Fiscal Stabilization Fund receipts and $2.8 billion in 
other federal funding increases, which are being provided to schools through the Recovery Act. In addition, the 
May Revision proposes a shift of 8% of city, county and special district property tax dollars to schools and 
community colleges, which is projected to provide a $2.0 billion reduction in the Proposition 98 spending obligation 
from the State General Fund. 

2. The May Revision proposes to eliminate funding for the High Priority Schools Program to reduce 
State expenditures of approximately $114 million. 

3. The May Revision proposes a reduction of $!.3 billion in fiscal year 2008-09 in revenue limit 
apportionments to school districts and proposes a reduction of $1.4 billion in fiscal year 2009-10 in revenue limit 
apportionments to school districts. 

4. The May Revision proposes a deferral of $1.7 bil1ion in school district apportionment payments 
from fiscal year 2009-l 0 to fiscal year 20 l 0-l l. 

5. The May Revision notes that, due to cash flow shortfalls, the State may move certain payments to 
K-12 school districts from the scheduled payment dates to a different date. The State may shift program payments 
to K-12 school districts from the beginning of July 2009 to the end of July 2009 and may shift a portion of the July 
2009 and August 2009 payments to October 2009. 

6. The May Revision proposes to change State law to give to school districts the option of reducing 
instructional time by the equivalent of up to 7.5 days a year for the next three years. 
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LAO May Overview of the May Revision 

On May 21, 2009, the LAO released an analysis of the May Revision entitled Overview of the 2009-10 
May Revision (the "LAO May Overview"). The LAO May Overview states that the economic and revenue 
forecasts and assessments of the State's budgetary problems set forth in the May Revision are generally reasonable 
in light of the effects of the economic slowdown throughout the United States, but indicates that General Fund 
expenditures across fiscal year 2008-09 and fiscal year 2009-10 could exceed revenues by approximately $3 billion 
more than the amount estimated in the May Revision. 

The LAO May Overview states that the May Revision relies on a number of proposals that could result in a 
General Fund reserve at the end of fiscal year 2009-10 of $2.1 billion, but that the largest proposals carry the largest 
risks. The LAO also notes that many of the proposals contained in the May Revision are one-time in nature and 
reconunends that the State Legislature reduce its reliance on one-time measures, which could contribute to long­
term negative effects for taxpayers and programs. The LAO May Overview sets forth several budget 
recommendations for the State Legislature, including eliminating ce11ain duplicative, inefficient, ineffective or over­
budgeted education programs, additional bonowing of transportation funds, increasing community college fees, 
reconsidering the dedication of cet1ain VLF fees to local public safety programs, implementing additional user fees 
for government services, modifying the proposed property tax revenues bon·owing to target specific agencies and 
reconsidering the use of revenue anticipation warrants for budget balancing and reserve building purposes, which, 
according to the LAO, sets a bad precedent and presents serious legal concerns. Further, the LAO recommended the 
Governor eliminate the deferral of expenditures to K-12 education programs and cautioned that sizeable deferrals in 
the future could make many districts more susceptible to becoming insolvent. 

The LAO May Overview states that the State Legislature will face a significant challenge to address the 
projected budget deficit in fiscal year 2008-09 and projected revenue shortfalls in fiscal year 2009-10 and must pay 
particular attention to closing the State's ongoing sti1Jctural mismatch between revenues and spending for future 
years. The LAO May Overview reiterated that the State Legislature should look to the alternatives to balance the 
State's finances on an ongoing basis while avoiding proposed solutions that do not prioritize program reductions, 
add additional borrowing or debt and lead to a diminution of the State Legislature's authority. 

Governor's Update to the May Revision to the 2009-10 State Budget Act 

On May 26, 2009 and on May 29, 2009, the Governor released updates to the May Revision (collectively, 
the "May Revision Update"). The May Revision Update projects a budget gap of $3.10 billion through the 
remainder of fiscal year 2008-09 due to shortfalls in revenue collections and increased costs and the failure of five of 
the six budget-related propositions included in the Special Election. The May Revision Update estimates fiscal year 
2008-09 revenues and transfers of $85.95 billion, total expenditures of $91.35 billion and a year-end deficit of 
$3.10 billion, which includes a $2.31 billion prior-year State General Fund balance and an allocation of $1.08 billion 
to the reserve for the liquidation of encumbrances. The May Revision Update projects fiscal year 2009-10 revenues 
and transfers of $92.22 billion, total expenditures of $83.52 billion and a year-end surplus of $5.60 billion (net of the 
$3.10 billion deficit from fiscal year 2008-09), of which $1.08 billion will be reserved for the liquidation of 
encumbrances and $4.52 billion will be deposited in a reserve for economic uncertainties. The May Revision and 
the May Revision Update, collectively, include proposals to reduce General Fund spending in the amount of 
$3.12 billion dming the remainder of fiscal year 2008-09 and $20.85 billion during fiscal year 2009-10 in order to 
eliminate the State's projected $21.3 billion through such period. The proposals contained in the May Revision 
Update replace the Governor's May Revision proposal to issue revenue anticipation wanants in the amount of 
$5.6 billion to address a portion of the State's General Fund deficit. 

The May Revision Update proposes a reduction of Proposition 98-related expenditures in the amount of 
$680 million during fiscal year 2009-10 contingent upon the occutTence of a projected $3 billion decline in General 
Fund revenues. The May Revision Update also proposes legislation, which, if enacted, will authorize the State 
Superintendent of Public lnstmction to adjust the deficit factor to restore some or all of the $680 million reduction in 
Proposition 98 funding if the State receives revenues in a larger amount than currently estimated. The May Revision 
and the May Revision Update propose an aggregate reduction of Proposition 98 funding in the amount of 
$1.41 billion during fiscal year 2008-09 and $3.80 billion during fiscal year 2009-10. 
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July Revision to 2009-10 State Budget Act 

On July I, 2009, the Governor proclaimed a fiscal emergency and called a legislative special session 
pursuant to Proposition 58 to address this emergency. In addition, the Governor exercised his executive authority to 
save cash for vital state functions and services by ordering three furlough days every month for certain State 
employees. Pursuant to Proposition 58, the State Legislature will have 45 days to pass and send a bill or bills to the 
Govemor to address the State's budget. If, after the 45 day period, the State Legislature has not passed a bill or bills 
to address the State's budgetary problems, it will not be permitted to adjourn or act on other legislation. 

In addition, on July I, 2009, the Department of Finance released updates to the May Revision (collectively, 
the "July Revision"). The July Revision estimates that revenues during fiscal year 2009-10 will be $3 billion less 
than projected in the May Revision Update. In addition, approximately $5.4 billion in proposals set forth in the May 
Revision and May Revision Update have been rejected. The rejected proposals included, among other things, a 
spending reduction in the amount of $1.6 billion attributable to Proposition 98 for fiscal year 2008-09 and 
$1.6 billion attributable to Proposition 98 for fiscal year 2009-10. The July Revision includes a proposal to suspend 
the Proposition 98 for fiscal year 2009-10 and provide funding at $3.0 billion less than the minimum guarantee. 
Accordingly, the total appropriation from the State General Fund would be $34.6 billion, which is $1.4 billion less 
than the level proposed in the May Revision. 

Revised State Budget for Fiscal Year 2009-10 

Revised State Budge/for Fiscal Year 2009-10. On July 28,2009, the Governor signed the Revised 2009-
10 State Budget Act to address a projected $24.16 billion shortfall in revenues. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget 
Act estimates fiscal year 2008-09 revenues and transfers of $84.1 billion, total expenditures of $91.5 billion and a 
year-end deficit of $3.38 billion, which includes a $4.07 billion prior-year State General Fund balance, a 
$4.46 billion withdrawal from the reserve for economic uncertainties and an allocation of $1.08 billion to the reserve 
for the liquidation of encumbrances. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act pr~jccts fiscal year 2009-10 revenues 
and transfers of $89.54 billion, actual expenditures of $84.58 billion and a year-end surplus of $1.58 billion (net of 
the $3.38 billion deficit from fiscal year 2008-09), of which $1.08 billion is expected to be reserved for the 
liquidation of encumbrances and $500 million is expected to be deposited in a reserve for economic uncertainties. 

Certain of the features of the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act affecting school districts include the 
following: 

I. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act reduces fiscal year 2008-09 Proposition 98 spending for 
school districts and community college districts by $2.06 billion to $34.05 billion. In addition, the Revised 2009-10 
State Budget Act reduces fiscal year 2009-10 Proposition 98 spending for school districts and community college 
districts by $4.46 billion to $35.03 billion. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act uses a shift of property tax 
revenues from redevelopment agencies to schools in the amount of $850 million to replace a portion of the reduction 
in Proposition 98 State General Fund spending in fiscal year 2009-10. Such amount will be shifted to K-12 schools 
that serve the redevelopment areas and the housing built by the redevelopment agencies. 

2. The outstanding maintenance factor or future funding obligation for fiscal year 2008-09 pursuant 
to Proposition 98 is estimated to be $11.2 billion. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act includes a payment of 
$1. 17 billion toward such amount, which leaves a remaining balance to be paid in future fiscal years of $10.1 billion. 

3. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act includes $6 billion in funds from the Recovery Act in 
fiscal years 2008-09 and 2009-10 to maintain the minimum spending level required for receipt of State Fiscal 
Stabilization Fund allocations for K-12 programs. 

4. In order to reduce the Proposition 98 minimum guarantee for fiscal year 2009-10 and in 
consideration of a funding fonnula under Proposition 98, which calculates a level of funding for the current fiscal 
year in part based upon funding allocated during the prior fiscal year, the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act 
retroactively reverts approximately $1.6 billion in fiscal year 2008-09 unallocated funds for categorical programs to 
the State General Fund. In addition, the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act delays for one year the $450 million 
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Proposition 98 settle-up payment from prior year obligations for the QEIA. The Proposition 98 revenue limit 
funding is reduced in fiscal year 2009-10 to backfill the reduction in categorical funding to continue the QEIA 
program. 

5. Flexibility with respect to 42 categorical programs through fiscal year 2012-13 will allow school 
districts to transfer funds to their higher priority needs. Pursuant to the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act, the State 
will continue its policy of reducing penalties associated with the K-3 Class Size Reduction program. The State will 
permit school districts to retain up to 70 percent of funding if pupil-to-teacher ratios increase more than 25-to-1 
through 2011-12. 

6. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act defers $1.8 billon in payments from fiscal year 2009-10 to 
August 2010 from school district revenue limits and community college apportionments. In addition, the State will 
defer approximately $2 billion in K-12 payments from their previously scheduled dates in fiscal year 2009-10 to 
December of 2009 and January 2010. The payment schedule for K-12 apportionment funding and categorical 
funding will be revised to distribute five percent of total payments in each of July and August and nine percent in 
each of the remaining months. 

7. The Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act provides to schools flexibility by reducing instruction by 
up to five days to accommodate a reduction of approximately $2.1 billion of revenue limit apportionments to school 
districts and county offices of education. In addition, the Revised 2009-10 State Budget Act will permit schools to 
reduce the amount of money that they are required to set aside for facility maintenance and to use funds from the 
sale of surplus property for non-facility related purposes. 

LAO Analysis of Federal Economic Stimulus Package 

On March 10,2009, the LAO issued a repot1 entitled "2009-10 Budget Analysis Series, Federal Economic 
Stimulus Package: Fiscal Effect on Califomia" (the "LAO Economic Stimulus Report''), which provides an analysis 
by the LAO of the Recovery Act and its fiscal effect on the State. The LAO Economic Stimulus Report is available 
on the LAO website at www.lao.ca.gov. lnfonnation on the website is not incorporated herein by reference. 

The LAO projects that the State will receive approximately $31 billion in federal funding to address budget 
deficits and to supplement existing State spending through fiscal year 2010-11. The LAO projects the State will 
receive Education Stabilization Funds in the approximate amounts of $3.3 billion in fiscal year 2009-10 and 
$1.6 billion in fiscal year 2010-11 to mitigate reductions to K-12 and higher education funding. Further, the LAO 
projects that the State will receive approximately $3.1 billion for K-12 education, of which $1.5 billion will be 
allocated to Title I programs, $1.3 billion to services provided pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act, $220 million to the Child Care and Development Block Grant and $71 million to classroom 
technology as part of the Enhancing Education Through Technology program. In addition, the LAO estimates that 
the State will receive from the Recovery Act $1.1 billion in fiscal year 2009-10 to be applied toward fiscal 
stabilization. In fiscal years 2009-10 and 2010-11, the LAO projects that the State will receive approximately 
$10.4 billion in federal funding that may be used to offset expenditures from the State Gen~ral Fund. 

The LAO also notes that the State may receive additional federal funding through competitive grants 
included in the Recovery Act. The LAO recommends that the State Legislature maximize the benefit received from 
such funds by offsetting expenditures from the State General Fund. dedicating limited-term federal assistance to 
limited-term State priorities, spreading out supplemental federal funding for ongoing programs to minimize the new 
level of spending and acting expediently to ensure that tlte State receives the maximum amount of funding from tlte 
Recovery Act. 

District Revenues from the Recovery Act 

In April 2009, the United States Department of Education announced the allocation to the State of 
$3.1 billion from the State Fiscal Stabilization Fund of the Recovery Act. In May 2009, the State Superintendent of 
Schools announced the preliminary entitlements for education entities through the State Fiscal Stabilization Fund's 
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allocation of funds from the Recovery Act. The State may apply for additional educational funding from the 
Recovery Act in the fall of 2009. 

Additional Information; Future State Budgets 

Information about the State budget and State spending for education is regularly available at various State­
maintained websites. Text of the State budget may be found at the website of the Department of Finance, 
www.dof.ca.gov, under the heading "2009-10 Budget". Various analyses of the budget may be found at the website 
of the LAO at www.lao.ca.gov. In addition, various State official statements, many of which contain a summary of 
the current and past State budgets and the impact of those budgets on school districts in the State, may be found via 
the website of the State Treasurer, www.treasurer.ca.gov. The information presented in these websires is not 
incorporated by reference in this Official Statement. 

The District cannot predict what actions will be taken in the future by the State Legislature and the 
Governor to address the State's current or future budget deficits. Future State budgets will be affected by national 
and State economic conditions, including the cunent economic downturn, over which the District have no control, 
and other factors over which the District will have no control. To the extent that the State budget process results in 
reduced revenues or increased expenses for the District, the Disttict will be required to make adjustments to its 
budget. 

State Funding of Schools Without a State Budget 

Although the State Constitution requires that the State Legislature adopt a State Budget by June 15 of the 
prior fiscal year and that the Governor sign a State Budget by June 30, this deadline has been missed from time to 
time. Delays in the adoption of a final State budget in any fiscal year could impact the receipt of State funding by 
the District. On May 29, 2002, the Califomia Court of Appeal for the Second District decided the case of Howard 
Jan,is Taxpayers Association. eta/. 1'. Kathleen Connell (as Controller of the State of California), et al. (also 
referred to as White v. Davis) ("Connell"). The Court of Appeal concluded that, absent an emergency appropriation, 
the State Controller may authorize the payment of State funds during a budget impasse only when payment is either 
(i) authorized by a "continuing appropriation" enacted by the State Legislature, (ii) authorized by a self-executing 
provision of the State Constitution, or (iii) mandated by federal law. The Court of Appeal specifically concluded 
that the provisions of Article XVI, Section 8 of the State Constitution- the provision establishing minimum funding 
of K-14 education enacted as part of Proposition 98- did not constitute a self-executing authorization to disburse 
funds, stating that such provisions merely provide formulas for detennining the minimum funding to be appropriated 
every budget year but do not appropriate funds. Nevertheless, the State Controller has concluded that the provisions 
of the Education Code establishing K-12 and county office of education revenue limit funding do constitute 
continuing appropriations enacted by the State Legislature and, therefore, has indicated that State payments of such 
amounts would continue during a budget impasse. The State Controller, however, has concluded that K-12 
categorical programs are not authorized pursuant to a continuing appropriation enacted by the State Legislature and, 
therefore, cannot be paid during a budget impasse. To the extent the Connell decision applies to State payments 
reflected in the District's budget. the requirement that there be either a final budget bill or an emergency 
appropriation may result in the delay of some payments to the District while such required legislative action is 
delayed, unless the payments are self-executing authorizations, continuing appropriations or are subject to a federal 
mandate. 

The State Supreme Court granted the State Controller's petition for review of the Connell case on a 
procedural issue unrelated to continuous appropiiations and on the substantive question as to whether the State 
Controller is authorized to pay State employees their full and regular salaries during a budget impasse. No other 
aspect of the Court of Appeal's decision was addressed by the State Supreme Court. On May I, 2003, with respect 
to the substantive question, the State Supreme Court concluded that the State Controller is required, notwithstanding 
a budget impasse and the limitations imposed by State law, to timely pay those State employees who are subject to 
the minimum wage and overtime compensation provisions of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act. 
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ECONOMIC PROFILE 

The information in this section regarding economic activity within the general area in which the District is 
located is provided as background information only, to describe the general economic health of the region. 
However, the District encompasses a relatively small area within the County, and the property tax required to be 
levied by the County to repay the Bonds will be levied only on property located in the District. 

Introduction 

The District is located in western Contra Costa County. Cities within the District include El Cenito, 
Hercules, Pinole, Richmond and San Pablo; also, within the District are certain unincorporated areas, including the 
communities of El Sobrante and Kensington. The County is situated northeast of San Francisco, bounded by San 
Francisco and San Pablo bays to the west and north, the Sacramento River delta to the north, San Joaquin County to 
the east, and by Alameda County on the south. Ranges of hills effectively divide the County into three distinct 
regions. The District is located in the County's western portion, which with its access to water, contains much of the 
County's heavy industry. The central section is rapidly developing from a suburban area into a major commercial 
and financial headquarters center. The eastern part of the County is also undergoing substantial change, from a 
rural, agricultural area to a suburban region. The County has extensive and varied transp011ation facilities - ports 
accessible to ocean-going vessels, railroads, freeways, and rapid transit lines connecting the area with Alameda 
County and San Francisco. These advantages, combined with a mild climate and available land, make Contra Costa 
County attractive for industrial and residential development. 

Population 

The following table summarizes the population statistics for the County and cities within the District. 

(I) 

POPULATION OF COUNTY AND CITIES WITHIN THE 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT"' 

Contra Costa City of City of City of 
Year County El Cerrito Hercules City of Pinole Richmond 

2000 948,816 23,171 19,488 19,039 99,216 
2001 966,012 23,412 19,826 19,326 100,363 
2002 981,536 23,476 20,109 19,400 100,925 
2003 993,668 23,460 20,429 19,472 101,089 
2004 1,005,590 23,388 21,696 19,531 101,618 
2005 I ,016,304 23,234 23,189 19,461 102,269 
2006 1,026,234 23,187 23,544 19,229 102,230 
2007 1,037,580 23,086 23,864 19,143 103,351 
2008 1,048,242 23,306 24,309 19,260 103,899 
2009 I ,060,435 23,440 24,480 19,383 104,513 

Excludes population statistics of unincorporated territory within the District. 
Source: California Department of Finance, estimates as of May 2009. 
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City of San 
Pablo 

30,256 
30,565 
30,598 
30,712 
31,020 
31,116 
30,841 
30,822 
31,172 
31,808 



Employment 

The following table summarizes historical employment and unemployment in the County. Such 
information is not seasonally adjusted and is based on the March 2008 Benchmark. 

CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT 
ANNUAL AVERAGES 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

2004 2005 2006 2007 

Civilian Labor Force11
> 

Employment 484,100 490,200 496,700 501,200 
Unemployment 27,900 25,200 22,300 24,900 

Total12
> 512,000 515,400 519,000 526,100 

Unemployment Rate13 l 5.4% 4.9% 4.3% 4.7% 

11 l Based on place of residence. 
C!J Totals may not udd due to rounding. 
Ol The unemployment rate is calculated using unroundcd data. 
Source: Califomia Employment Development Department. Lahor Market Information Division. 

2008 

496,400 
32,700 

529,200 
6.2% 

The fo11owing table summarizes the historical number of workers by industry in the Oakland-Fremont­
Hayward Metropolitan Division ("MD"), which includes Alameda and Contra Costa Counties. 

OAKLAND METROPOLITAN DIVISION 
Estimated Number of Wage and Salary Workers by Industry'" 

2005 2006 2007 2008 

Farm 1,600 1,500 1,500 1,400 
Natural Resources and Mining 1,100 1,200 1,200 1,200 
Construction 72,800 73,300 72,400 65,300 
Manufacturing 95,600 95,800 93,700 94,300 
Wholesale Trade 48,600 48,800 48,800 48,300 
Retail Trade 112,100 I 13,300 I 13,100 I 10,900 
Transportation & Public Uti1ities 34,300 35,000 36,100 36,800 
Information 30,700 30,100 29,400 28,000 
Financial Activities 69,500 67,700 62,300 58,000 
Professional and Business Services 150,600 154,900 155,500 162,800 
Education and Health I I 8,500 121,800 124,700 128,000 
Leisure and Hospitality 83,000 85,600 87,500 87,700 
Other Services 35,600 35,900 36,200 36,200 
Government 180,000 182,000 186,800 179,100 
Total All Industries 1,034,000 1,046,900 1,049,200 1,038,000 

!II Based on the March 2008 benchmark. 
Note: Docs not indudc proprietors. self~crnployed, unpaid volunteers or family workers. domestic workers in households. and 

persons involved in labor/managemcm trade disputes. Employment reported by place of work. Items may not add to totals 
due to independent rounding. Not seasonally adjusted. 

Source: Labor Market Information Division of lhc California Employment Development Departmcnl. 
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The following table summarizes the unemployment rates in Contra Costa County and the cities within the 
District as of March 2009. 

CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

(As of March 2009)'" 

Contra Costa County 9.8% 
City of El Cerrito 8.7% 
City of Hercules 6.6% 
City of Pinole 6.3% 
City of Richmond 15.8% 
City of San Pablo 19.4% 
State of California 11.5% 
United States 9.0% 

111 Preliminary. based on the March 2008 benchmark and place of residence: calculated based on unrounded data; not 
seasonally adjusted. 

Source: California Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division. 

Largest Employers 

The following table summarizes the largest employers in the East Bay, which includes Alameda and Contra 
Costa Counties. 

LARGEST EMPLOYERS 
EAST BAY: ALAMEDA AND CONTRA COSTA COUNTIES 

Employer 

University of California 
Kaiser Pennanente 
Safeway Inc. 
State of California 
Alameda County 
Contra Costa County 
United States Postal Service 
Chevron Corporation 
John Muir Health 
New United Motor Manufacturing Inc. 
Alta Bates Summit Medical Center 
Wells Fargo & Co. 
Oakland Unified School District 
Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory 
City of Oakland 
Mt. Diablo Unified School District 
Bay Area Rapid Transit 
Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory 
Pacific Gas & Electric Company 
Children's Hospital and Research Center Oakland 

Products/Services 

Public Education 
Health Care 
Supermarket Retail 
State Government 
Local Government 
Local Government 
Mail Services 
Energy 
Health Care 
Auto Manufacturing 
Health Care 
Financial Services 
Public Education 
Government Research & Development 
Local Government 
Public Education 
Public Transpm1ation 
Government Research & Development 
Utility 
Health Care 

Number of East Bay 
Employees 

25,500 
19,933 
10,839 
9,797 
9,000 
8,423 
7,808 
7,422 
6,085 
5,200 
5,193 
5,144 
5,002 
4,765 
4,325 
3,400 
3,313 
3,150 
2,850 
2,636 

Source: Scm Francisco Business Times, 2009 Book of Lists. Largest Employers in the East Bay published May 9, 2008. 
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Commercial Activity 

The following table summarizes historical taxable transactions in Contra Costa County. 

TAXABLE TRANSACTIONS 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Sales Tax Permits( 11 Taxable Transactions 

111 AsofJuly I. 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 

Source: California State Board of Equalization. 

23,253 
23,571 
23,692 
23,249 
23,181 

The following table summarizes historical taxable transactions in the District. 

TAXABLE TRANSACTIONS FOR CITIES IN THE 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT'" 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

City 2003 2004 2005 2006 

E1 Cen·ito $ 289,575 $ 296,705 $ 297,476 $ 339,605 
Hercules 76,716 108,473 113,121 127,680 
Pinole 288,363 292,036 301,110 310,239 
Richmond 1,054,029 1,109,659 1,122,912 1,129,643 
San Pablo 155,490 153,670 152,320 

0 J Excludes taxahlc transactions occurring in unincorporated territory within the District. 
Somcc: California State Hoard of Equalization. 

Median Household Income 

Shown below is a history of median household income in the County: 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

(For years 2003 Through 2007) 

146,901 

Year Contra Costa County 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau. 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
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$69,835 
67,823 
69,487 
74,241 
75,483 

$12,223,295 
12,990,538 
13,480,075 
13,867,661 
14,086,295 

2007 

$ 338,603 
124,879 
303,589 

1,228,740 
151,789 



Building Activity 

Shown below is a history of residential building activity in the County: 

Year 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 

RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 

Residential Permits 

6,883 
5,588 
6,438 
4,216 
2,638 

Residential Valuation 

$1,451,454 
1,240,803 
l ,70 l ,881 
1,110,803 

793,073 

Source: "Californi<t Building Permit Activity. Annual Summary." Economic Sciences Corporation. 

Shown below is the 2008 building activity for cities in the District: 

2008 BUILDING PERMIT VALUATION FOR CITIES IN THE 
WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 01 

El Ce1Tito 
Hercules 
Pinole 
Richmond 
San Pablo 

City Residential Units 

0 
4 
0 
0 

20 

(II Excludes building permit valuation for unincorporated tcrrito•y within the District. 

Residential Valuation 

0 
$745,000 

0 
0 

3,671,000 

Source: "Californi<l Building Permit Activity. Annual Summary." Economic Sciences Corporation. 

TAX MATTERS 

The following is a sununary of certain of the United States federal income tax consequences of the 
ownership of the Bonds as of the date hereof. Each prospective investor should consult with its own tax advisor 
regarding the application of United States federal income tax laws, as well as any state, local, foreign or other tax 
laws, to its particular situation. This summary is based on the Code, as well as the Treasury Regulations and 
administrative and judicial mlings and practice. Legislative, judicial and administrative changes may occur, 
possibly with retroactive effect, that could alter or modify the continued validity of the statements and conclusions 
set forth herein. This summary is intended as a general explanatory discussion of the consequences of holding the 
Bonds generally and does not purport to furnish information in the level of detail or with the investor's specific tax 
circumstances that would be provided by an investor's own tax advisor. 

Tax-Exempt Bonds Tax Matters 

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond counsel to the District ("Bond Counsel"), based 
upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the 
accuracy of cettain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series C-1 Bonds and the 
Refunding Bonds (the 'Tax-Exempt Bonds") is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
Section l 03 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and is exempt from State of California personal 
income taxes. Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds is not a specific 
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes. Interest on the 
Series C-1 Bond~ is not included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum 
taxable income. No opinion is expressed as to whether interest on any portion of the Refunding Bonds is excluded 
from adjusted cutrent earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. A complete copy 
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of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in APPENDIX A - "PROPOSED FORMS OF 
OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL" hereto. 

To the extent the issue price of the Tax-Exempt Bonds of any given maturity date is less than the amount to 
be paid at maturity of such Tax-Exempt Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually 
over the term of such Tax-Exempt Bonds), the difference constitutes "origina1 issue discount,'' the accrual of which, 
to the extent properly allocable to each beneficial owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and State of Califomia personal income taxes. 
For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Tax-Exempt Bonds is the first price at which a 
substantial amount of such maturity of the Tax-Exempt Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, 
or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The 
original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Tax-Exempt Bonds accrues daily over the tenn to 
maturity of such Tax-Exempt Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with 
straight-line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added to the 
adjusted basis of such Tax-Exempt Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale, 
redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Tax-Exempt Bonds. Beneficial owners of the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Tax-Exempt Bonds with 
original issue discount, including the treatment of beneficial owners who do not purchase such Tax-Exempt Bonds 
in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Tax-Exempt Bonds is 
sold to the public. 

Tax-Exempt Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their 
principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) ('"Premium Bonds") will be treated 
as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond premium in the case of 
bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a beneficial owner's basis in a Premium Bond. 
will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such beneficial owner. Beneficial 
owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable 
bond premium in their particular circumstances. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Tax-Exempt Bonds. The District has 
made certain representations and covenanted to comply with certain restrictions, conditions and requirements 
designed to ensure that interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds will not be included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy 
of these representations or failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds 
being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the 
Tax-Exempt Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes the accuracy of these representations and compliance 
with these covenants. Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions 
taken (or not taken), or events occurring (or not occmTing), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel's attention 
after the date of issuance of the Tax-Exempt Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, 
the Tax-Exempt Bonds. Accordingly, this opinion is not intended to, and may not, be relied upon in connection with 
any such actions, events or matters. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds is excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes, the ownership 
or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Tax-Exempt Bonds may otherwise affect a beneficial 
owner's federal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these other tax consequences depends upon the 
particular tax status of the beneficial owner or the beneficial owner's other items of income or deduction. Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences. 

Future legislation, if enacted into law, or clarification of the Code, or court decisions, may cause interest on 
the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, to federal income taxation or to be subject to or 
exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent beneficial owners from realizing the full cunent benefit 
of the tax status of such interest. The introduction or enactment of any such future legislation or clarification of the 
Code or court decision may also affect the market price for, or marketability of, the Tax-Exempt Bonds. Prospective 
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purchasers of the Tax-Exempt Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding any pending or proposed 
federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers ce11ain matters not directly 
addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel's judgment as to the proper treatment of the Tax­
Exempt Bonds for federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service ('"IRS") or the 
courts. Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about the future 
activities of the District, or about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the 
interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS. The District has covenanted, however, to comply with 
the requirements of the Code. 

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Tax-Exempt Bonds ends with the issuance of the Tax­
Exempt Bonds, and, unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the District or the 
beneficial owners regarding the tax exempt status of the Tax-Exempt Bonds in the event of an audit examination by 
the IRS. Under current procedures, parties other than the District and its appointed counsel, including the beneficial 
owners, would have little, if any, right to participate in the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving 
judicial review in connection with an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent 
review of IRS positions with which the District legitimately disagrees may not be practicable. Any action of the 
IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Tax-Exempt Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit, 
or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market price for, or the marketability of, the Tax­
Exempt Bonds, and may cause the District or the beneficial owners to incur significant expense. 

Series C-2 Bonds Tax Matters 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court 
decisions and assuming compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Series C-2 Bonds is exempt from State of 
California personal income taxes but is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
Section 103 of the Code. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the 
ownership or disposition of, or accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series C-2 Bonds. 

The following discussion summarizes certain U.S. federal tax considerations generally applicable to 
beneficial owners of the Series C-2 Bonds that acquire their Series C-2 Bonds in the initial offering. The discussion 
below is based upon laws, regulations, rulings, and decisions in effect and available on the date hereof, all of which 
are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. Prospective investors should note that no rulings have been 
or are expected to be sought from the IRS with respect to any of the U.S. federal income tax consequences discussed 
below, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not take contra1y positions. Further, the following discussion 
does not deal with all U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to any given investor, nor does it address the 
U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to categories of investors some of which may be subject to special 
taxing rules (regardless of whether or not such persons constitute U.S. Holders), such as CCI1ain U.S. expatriates, 
banks, real estate investment trusts, regulated investment companies, insurance companies, tax-exempt 
organizations, dealers or traders in securities or cun·encies, partnerships, S corporations, estates and trusts, investors 
who hold their Series C-2 Bonds as part of a hedge, straddle or an integrated or conversion transaction, or investors 
whose "functional currency" is not the U.S. dollar. Furthermore, the following discussion does not address 
(i) alternative minimum tax consequences or (ii) the indirect effecL.;;; on persons who hold equity interests in a 
beneficial owner of Series C-2 Bonds. In addition, this summary generally is limited to investors who become 
beneficial owners of Series C-2 Bonds pursuant to this offering for the issue price that is applicable to such Series 
C-2 Bonds (i.e., the price at which a substantial amount of the Series C-2 Bonds is sold to the public) and who will 
hold their Series C-2 Bonds as "capital assets" within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code. 

As used herein, "U.S. Holder" means a beneficial owner of a Series C-2 Bond who for U.S. federal income 
tax purposes is an individual citizen or resident of the United States, a corporation or other entity taxable as a 
corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof (including the District 
of Columbia), an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source or a 
trust where a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the 
trust and one or more United States persons (as defined in the Code) have the authority to control all substantial 
decisions of the trust (or a trust that has made a valid election under U.S. Treasury Regulations to be treated as a 
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domestic trust). As used herein, "Non-U.S. Holder" generally means a beneficial owner of a Series C-2 Bond (other 
than a partnership) who is not a U.S. Holder. If a partnership is a beneficial owner of Series C-2 Bonds, the tax 
treatment of such partnership or a partner in such partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner 
and upon the activities of the partnership. Partnerships that are beneficial owners of Series C-2 Bonds, and partners 
in such partnerships, should consuh their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of an investment in the 
Series C-2 Bonds (including their status as U.S. Holders or Non-U.S. Holders). 

U.S. Holders 

Interest. Interest on the Series C-2 Bonds generally will be taxable to a U.S. Holder as ordinary interest 
mcomc at the time such amounts are accrued or received, in accordance with the U.S. Holder's method of 
accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes. 

''Original issue discount'' will arise for U.S. federal income tax purposes in respect of any Series C-2 Bond 
if its stated redemption price at maturity exceeds its issue price by more than a de minimis amount (as determined 
for tax purposes). For any Series C-2 Bonds issued with original issue discount, the excess of the stated redemption 
price at maturity of that Series C-2 Bond over its issue price will constitute original issue discount for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes. The stated redemption price at maturity of a Series C-2 Bond is the sum of all scheduled 
amounts payable on that Series C-2 Bond other than qualified stated interest. U.S. Holders of Series C-2 Bonds 
generally will be required to include any original issue discount in income for U.S. federal income tax purposes as it 
accrues, in accordance with a constant yield method based on a compounding of interest (which may be before the 
receipt of cash payments attributable to such income). Under this method, U.S. Holders of Series C-2 Bonds issued 
with original issue discount generally will be required to include in income increasingly greater amounts of original 
issue discount in successive accrual periods. 

'"Premium" genefally will arise for U.S. federal income tax purposes in respect of any Series C-2 Bonds to 
the extent its issue price exceeds its stated principal amount. A U.S. Holder of a Series C-2 Bond issued at a 
premium may make an election, applicable to all debt securities purchased at a premium by such U.S. Holder, to 
amortize such premium, using a constant yield method over the term of such Series C-2 Bond. 

Disposition of the Series C-2 Bonds. Unless a nonrecognition provision of the Code applies, the sale, 
exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offer by the District), reissuance or other disposition of a 
Series C-2 Bond, will be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In such event, a U.S. Holder of a 
Series C-2 Bond generally will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between (i) the amount of cash plus the 
fair market value of property received (except to the extent attributable to accrued but unpaid interest on the 
Series C-2 Bond which will be taxed in the manner described above under "Interest") and (ii) the U.S. Holder's 
adjusted tax basis in the Series C-2 Bond (generally, the purchase p1ice paid by the U.S. Holder for the Series C-2 
Bond, increased by the amount of any original issue discount previously included in income by such U.S. Holder 
with respect to such Series C-2 Bond and decreased by any payments previously made on such Series C-2 Bond 
(other than payments of qualified stated interest) or decreased by any amortized premium). Any such gain or Joss 
generally will be capital gain or loss. Defeasance of any Series C-2 Bond may result in a deemed reissuance thereof, 
in which event a beneficial owner of the defeased Series C-2 Bonds generally will recognize taxable gain or loss 
equal to the difference between the amount realized from the sale, exchange or retirement (less any accmed 
qualified stated interest which will be taxable as such) and the beneficial owner's adjusted tax basis in the Se1ies C-2 
Bond. 

In the case of a non-corporate U.S. Holder of the Series C-2 Bonds, the maximum marginal U.S. federal 
income tax rate applicable to any such gain will be lower than the maximum marginal U.S. federal income tax rate 
applicable to ordinary income if such U.S. holder's holding period for the Series C-2 Bonds exceeds one year. The 
deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. 

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Payments on the Series C-2 Bonds generally will be 
subject to U.S. information reporting and "backup withholding." Under Section 3406 of the Code and applicable 
U.S. Treasury Regulations issued thereunder, a non-corporate U.S. Holder of Series C-2 Bonds may be subject to 
backup withholding at the current rate of 28% (subject to future adjustment) with respect to "reportable payments," 
which include interest paid on the Series C-2 Bonds and the gross proceeds of a sale, exchange, redemption, 
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retirement or other disposition of the Series C-2 Bonds. The payor will be required to deduct and withhold the 
prescribed amounts if (i) the payee fails to fumish a U.S. taxpayer identification number ('TIN") to the payor in the 
manner required, (ii) the IRS notifies the payor that the TIN furnished by the payee is incorrect, (iii) there has been a 
'·notified payee underreporting" described in Section 3406(c) of the Code or (iv) there has been a failure of the 
payee to certify under penalty of pe1jury that the payee is not subject to withholding under Section 3406(a)(l)(C) of 
the Code. Amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be refunded or credited against the U.S. 
Holder's federal income tax liability, if any, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. 

Non-U.S. Holders 

Interest. Subject to the discussion below under the heading ''Information Reporting and Backup 
Withholding," payments of principal of, and interest on, any Series C-2 Bond to a Non-U.S. Holder, other than a 
bank which acquires such Series C-2 Bond in consideration of an extension of credit made pursuant to a loan 
agreement entered into in the ordinary course of business, generally will not be subject to any U.S. withholding lax 
provided that the beneficial owner of the Series C-2 Bond provides a certification completed in compliance with 
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, which requirements are discussed below under the heading 
"Information Reporting and Backup Withholding," or an exemption is otherwise established. 

Disposition of the Bonds. Subject to the discussion below under the heading "Information Reporting and 
Backup Withholding," any gain realized by a Non-U.S. Holder upon the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement 
(including pursuant to an offer by the District) or other disposition of a Series C-2 Bond generally will not be subject 
to U.S. federal income tax, unless (i) such gain is effectively connected with the conduct by such Non-U.S. Holder 
of a trade or business within the United States; or (ii) in the case of any gain realized by an individual Non-U.S. 
Holder, such holder is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of such sale, exchange, 
redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offer by the District) or other disposition and cettain other 
conditions are met. 

U.S. Federal Estate Tax. A Series C-2 Bond that is held by an individual who at the time of death is not a 
citizen or resident of the United States will not be subject to U.S. federal estate tax as a result of such individual's 
death, provided that at the time of such individual's death, payments of interest with respect to such Series C-2 Bond 
would not have been effectively connected with the conduct by such individual of a trade or business within the 
United States. 

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. U.S. information reporting and "backup withholding" 
requirements apply to certain payments of principal of, and interest on the Series C-2 Bonds, and to proceeds of the 
sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offer by the District) or other disposition of 
beneficial ownership of a Series C-2 Bond, to cetiain non-corporate payees with respect to Series C-2 Bonds that are 
United States persons. Under cun·ent U.S. Treasury Regulations, payments of principal and interest on any 
Series C-2 Bonds to a payee that is not a United States person will not be subject to any backup withholding tax 
requirements if the payee with respect to the Series C-2 Bond or a financial institution holding the Series C-2 Bond 
on behalf of the beneficial owner in the ordinary course of its trade or business provides an approptiate certification 
to the payor and the payor does not have actual knowledge that the certification is false. If a payee provides the 
certification, the certification must give the name and address of such payee, state that such payee is not a United 
States person, or, in the case of an individual, that such payee is neither a citizen nor a resident of the United States, 
and the payee must sign the certificate under penalties of perjury. If a financial institution, other than a financial 
institution that is a qualified intermediary, provides the cetiification, the certification must state that the financial 
institution has received from the beneficial owner the certification set forth in the preceding sentence, set forth the 
information contained in such certification, and include a copy of such certification, and an authorized representative 
of the financial institution must sign the cetiificate under penalties of perjury. A financial institution generally will 
not be required to fumish to the IRS the names of the beneficial owners of the Series C-2 Bonds who are not United 
States persons or copies of such beneficial owners· certifications where the financial institution is a qualified 
intermediary that has entered into a withholding agreement with the IRS pursuant to applicable U.S. Treasury 
Regulations. 

In the case of payments to a foreign partnership, foreign simple trust or foreign grantor trust, other than 
payments to a foreign pat1nership, foreign simple trust or foreign grantor trust that qualifies as a withholding foreign 
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partnership or a withholding foreign trust within the meaning of applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations and payments 
to a foreign partnership, foreign simple trust or foreign grantor trust that are effectively connected with the conduct 
of a trade or business within the United States, the partners of the foreign partnership, the beneficiaries of the foreign 
simple trust or the persons treated as the owners of the foreign grantor trust, as the case may be, will be required to 
provide the certification discussed above in order to establish an exemption from withholding and backup 
withholding tax requirements. The current backup withholding tax rate is 28% (subject to future adjustment). 

In addition, if the foreign office of a foreign "broker," as defined in applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations, 
pays the proceeds of the sale of a Series C-2 Bond to the selling beneficial owner of the Series C-2 Bond, backup 
withholding and information reporting requirements will not apply to such payment provided that such broker 
derives less than 50% of its gross income for certain specified periods from the conduct of a trade or business within 
the United States, is not a controlled foreign COilJOration, as such term is defined in the Code, and is not a foreign 
partnership (I) one or more of the partners of which, at any time during its tax year, are U.S. persons (as defined in 
U.S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.1441-l(c)(2)) who, in the aggregate hold more than 50% of the income or 
capital interest in the partnership or (2) which, at any time during its tax year, is engaged in the conduct of a trade or 
business within the United States. Moreover, the payment by a foreign office of other brokers of the proceeds of the 
sale of a Series C-2 Bond, will not be subject to backup withholding unless the payer has actual knowledge that the 
payee is a U.S. person. Principal and interest so paid by the U.S. office of a custodian, nominee or agent, or the 
payment by the U.S. office of a broker of the proceeds of a sale of a Series C-2 Bond, is subject to backup 
withholding requirements unless the beneficial owner provides the nominee, custodian, agent or broker with an 
appropriate certification as to its non-U.S. status under penalties of perjury or otherwise establishes an exemption. 

THE FOREGOING SUMMARY IS INCLUDED HEREIN FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY AND 
DOES NOT DISCUSS ALL ASPECTS OF U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION THAT MAY BE 
RELEVANT TO A PARTICULAR HOLDER OF SERIES C-2 BONDS IN LIGHT OF THE HOLDER'S 
PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES AND INCOME TAX SITUATION. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS 
ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO ANY TAX CONSEQUENCES TO 
THEM FROM THE PURCHASE, OWNERSIDP AND DISPOSITION OF SERIES C-2 BONDS, 
INCLUDING THE APPLICATION AND EFFECT OF STATE, LOCAL, FOREIGN AND OTHER TAX 
LAWS. 

Circular 230 Disclaimer 

Investors are urged to obtain independent tax advice regarding the Series C-2 Bonds based upon their 
particular circumstances. The tax discussion above regarding the Series C-2 Bonds was not intended or written to be 
used, and cannot be used, for the purposes of avoiding taxpayer penalties. The advice was written to support the 
promotion or marketing of the Series C-2 Bonds. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Ratings 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P") and Fitch 
Ratings ("Fitch") (collectively, the "Rating Agencies") have assigned their undE.\ying and uninsured municipal 
bond ratings of "A2," "A," and "A-," respectively. to the Bonds. Moody's, S&P and Fitch are expected to assign 
their municipal bond ratings of "Aa2 (on review for possible downgrade)," "AAA (negative outlook)," and "AA 
(ratings watch negative)," respectively to the Insured Bonds with the understanding that upon the delivery of the 
Insured Bonds, the Bond Insurer will issue its financial guaranty insurance policy with respect to the Insured Bonds. 
Any rating issued reflects only the views of such rating agency, and any explanation of the significance of such 
rating should be obtained from such rating agency. The address of Moody's is 7 World Trade Center, 250 
Greenwich Street, 23"' Floor, New York, New York 10007. The address of S&P is 55 Water Street, New York, 
New York I 0041. The address of Fitch is One State Street Plaza, 3 I st Floor, New York, New York I 0004. 

Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it, and on 
investigations, studies, and assumptions of its own. In addition, the District has furnished certain information to the 
rating agencies not included in this Official Statement. There is no assurance that a rating assigned will continue for 
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any given period of time or that a rating will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by a rating agency if, in 
the judgment of the rating agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of a rating 
obtained may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. Each of the Rating Agencies has recently 
released statements on the potential effects of downturns in the market for structured finance instruments, including 
collateralized debt obligations and residential mortgage backed securities, on the claims-paying ability of the bond 
insurance companies. In various releases, the Rating Agencies have each outlined the processes that they intend to 
follow in evaluating the effect of this risk on their respective ratings of financial guarantors. For some financial 
guarantors, the result of such evaluations could be a ratings affirmation, a change in rating outlook, a review for 
downgrade, or a downgrade. Any such occurrence could adversely affect the market price for, and marketability of, 
the Bonds. Potential investors are directed to the Rating Agencies for additional information on their respective 
evaluations of the financial guaranty industry and individual financial guarantors, including the Bond [nsurer. 

Underwriting 

The Bonds will be purchased for reoffering by the Underwriters of the Bonds at an aggregate purchase 
price of $164,516,693.42 (which represents the aggregate principal par amount of the Bonds plus an original issue 
premium of $6,540,108.75) and less an underwriters' discount of $4,793,174.63 (comprised of $1,139,388.32 
retained by the underwriters as compensation. $3,151,841.55 premium for the financial guaranty insuraoce policy 
and $501,944.76 for costs of issuance for the Bonds). The Underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain 
dealers and others at prices lower than the offering prices stated on the cover page. The offering prices may be 
changed from time to time by the Underwriters. 

Piper Jaffray & Co., ("Piper") has entered into an agreement (the "Distribution Agreement") with Advisors 
Asset Management, Inc. ("AAM") for the distribution of certain municipal securities offerings allocated to Piper at 
the original offering prices. Under the Distribution Agreement, if applicable to the Bonds, Piper will share with 
AAM a portion of the fee or commission, exclusive of management fees, paid to Piper. 

Financial Advisor 

KNN Public Finance, Oakland, California, has served as Financial Advisor in connection with the issuance 
of the Bonds. Though the Financial Advisor has participated in the drafting of the Official Statement, the Financial 
Advisor has not independently audited, authenticated or otherwise verified the information set forth in the Official 
Statement with respect to accuracy and completeness and as such makes no guaranty, warranty or other 
representations respecting the accuracy and completeness of any of the information contained herein. 

Verification Agent 

Upon execution and delivery of the Refunding Bonds, Causey Demgen & Moore Inc. (the "Verification 
Agent"), a finn of independent certified public accountants, will deliver a report stating that the firm has verified the 
mathematical accuracy of the schedules with respect to the sufficiency of the escrow funds established to pay the 
Refunded Bonds in full on the dates of payment or redemption thereof. The scope of the verification will be ba~ed 
solely on information and assumptions provided to the Verification Agent by the Underwriters. 

Continuing Disclosure 

The District has covenanted for the benefit of the holders and beneficial Owners of the Bonds to provide 
certain financial information and operating data relating to the District (the "Annual Report") by not later than nine 
(9) months following the end of the District's fiscal year (currently ending June 30) commencing with the report for 
the 2008-09 fiscal year (which is due no later than March 31, 2010) and to provide notices of the occurrence of 
certain enumerated events, if material. The Annual Report will be filed by the District in readable PDF or other 
acceptable electronic form with the Electronic Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA") of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. The notices of material events, if any, will also be filed by the District with EMMA. 
The specific nature of the infmmation to be contained in the Annual Repot1 or the notices of material events is 
surrunarized below under the caption APPENDIX C - "FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
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CERTIFICATES". These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with 
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). 

With respect to the District's outstanding genera] obligation bonds, the District is required to file annual 
reports not later than nine months following the end of each fiscal year and to file material events notices. As of the 
date hereof, the District is in compliance with its continuing disclosure obligations. See ''THE DISTRICT -
District Debt Structure" herein for a summary of the District's outstanding debt obligations. 
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Additional Information 

The purpose of this Official Statement is to supply information to prospective buyers of the Bonds. 
Quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Bonds, the Resolution, and the constitutional provisions, 
statutes and other documents described herein do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to said 
documents, constitutional provisions and statutes for full and complete statements of their provisions. 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, 
are intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or 
agreement between the District and the purchasers or Owners of any of the Bonds. 

This Official Statement and its distribution have been duly authorized and approved by the District. 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By: Is! 
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Sheri Gamba 
Associate Superintendent for 

Business Services 
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APPENDIX A 

PROPOSED FORMS OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Appendix A-1: Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the 
Series C-1 Bonds and the Series C-2 Bonds 

Appendix A-2: Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Refunding Bonds 
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APPENDIX A 

PROPOSED FORMS OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
FOR THE 2009 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

[Delivery Date] 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Richmond, California 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-1 (Tax-Exempt) 

and 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-2 

(Federally Taxable-Issuer-Subsidy-Build America Bonds) 
(Final Opinion) 

We have acted as bond counsel to the West Contra Costa Unified School District (the "District'') in 
connection with the issuance by the County of Contra Costa (the "County"), on behalf of the District, which is 
located in the County, of its $52,084,759.30 aggregate principal amount of bonds designated as "West Contra Costa 
Unified School District 2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-1 (Tax-Exempt)" (the 
"Series C-l Bonds") and its $52,825,000 aggregate principal amount of bonds designated as "West Contra Costa 
Unified School District 2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-2 (Federally Taxable-Issuer­
Subsidy-Build America Bonds)" (the "Series C-2 Bonds," and, together with the Series C-1 Bonds, the "Bonds"). 
The Bonds represent part of an issue in the aggregate principal amount of $400,000,000 of bonds authorized at an 
election held in the District on November 8, 2005. The Series C-1 Bonds are issued under and pursuant to a 
resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County adopted on July 21, 2009 (the "County Resolution .. ), at the 
request of the District pursuant to a resolution of the District adopted on July 8, 2009 (the "District Resolution"). 
The Series C-2 Bonds are issued under and pursuant to a paying agent agreement, dated as of September I, 2009, by 
and among the Distiict, the County and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as paying agent (the 
"Paying Agent Agreement"), as approved by the District Resolution and the County Resolution. 

In such com1ection, we have reviewed the District Resolution, the County Resolution, the Paying Agent 
Agreement, the tax certificate of the District for the Series C-l Bonds dated the date hereof (the "Tax Certificate"), 
certificates of the District, the County, and others, and such other documents and matters to the extent we deemed 
necessary to render the opinions set forth herein. 

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court 
decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities. Such opinions may be affected by 
actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to determine, or to 
inform any person, whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur or any other matters come to 
our attention after the date hereof. Accordingly, this opinion speaks only as of its date and is not intended to, and 
may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or matters. Our engagement with respect to the 
Bonds has concluded with their issuance, and we disclaim any obligation to update this letter. We have assumed the 
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genuineness of all documents and signatures presented to us (whether as originals or as copies) and the due and legal 
execution and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any parties other than the District and the County. We have 
assumed, without undertaking to verify, the accuracy of the factual matters represented, warranted or certified in the 
documents referred to in the second paragraph hereof. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with all 
covenants and agreements contained in the District Resolution, the County Resolution. the Paying Agent Agreement 
and the Tax Certificate, including (without limitation) covenants and agreements compliance with which is 
necessary to ensure that future actions, omissions or events will not cause interest on the Series C-1 Bonds to be 
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. We call attention to the fact that the rights and 
obligations under the Bonds, the District Resolution, the County Resolution, the Paying Agent Agreement and the 
Tax Certificate and their enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, 
fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of 
equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, and to the limitations on legal 
remedies against school districts or counties in the State of California. We express no opinion with respect to any 
indemnification, contribution, penalty, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of venue, severability or waiver 
provisions contained in the documents mentioned in the preceding sentence. We also express no opinion regarding 
the accreted value table or calculation set forth or referred to in any of the Bonds. Finally, we undertake no 
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Official Statement or other offering materials relating 
to the Bonds and express no opinion with respect thereto. 

Based on and subject to the foregoing and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the following 
opinions: 

1. The Bonds constitute valid and binding obligations of the District. 

2. The District Resolution has been duly and legally adopted and constitutes a valid and binding 
obligation of the District. 

3. The County Resolution has been duly and legally adopted and constitutes a valid and binding 
obligation of the County. 

4. The Paying Agent Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the District and the County 
and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the District and the County. 

5. The Board of Supervisors of the County has power and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes 
without limitation as to rate or amount upon all property within the District's boundaries subject to taxation by the 
District (except cc1tain personal property wh~ch is taxable at limited rates) for the payment of the Bonds and the 
interest thereon. 

6. Interest on the Series C-1 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Interest on the Series C-1 Bonds is not a specific 
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate.altemative minimum taxes, nor is it included in 
adjusted cunent earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Interest on the 
Series C-2 B()nds is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section I 03 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. 
We express no opinion reg~ding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the 
accrual or receipt of it).terest on, the Bonds. 

Faithfully yours, 

ORRICK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP 

per 
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PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
FOR THE 2009 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

[Delivery Date] 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Richmond, California 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

(Final Opinion) 

We have acted as bond counsel to the West Contra Costa Unified School District (the "District"), which is 
located in the County of Contra Costa, Califomia (the "County"), in connection with the issuance by the District of 
$57,860,000 aggregate principal amount of bonds designated as "West Contra Costa Unified School District 2009 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds'' (the "Bonds"), as authorized by a resolution of the Board of Education of the 
District adopted on July 29, 2009 (the "Resolution"), and in accordance with the terms of a Paying Agent 
Agreement dated as of September I, 2009 (the "Paying Agent Agreement"), by and between the District and The 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as paying agent (the "Paying Agent"). The Bonds are issued to 
refund all or a portion of the West Conu·a Costa Unified School District General Obligation Bonds (Election of 
2000), Series A and Series B, and the West Contra Costa Unified School District General Obligation Bonds 
(Election of 2005), Series A and Series B. 

In such connection, we have reviewed the Resolution, the Paying Agent Agreement, the Tax Certificate of 
the District dated the date hereof (the "Tax Certificate"), certificates of the District, the Paying Agent, the County, 
and others, and such other documents and matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth 
herein. 

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court 
decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities. Such opinions may be affected by 
actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to determine, or to 
inform any person, whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur or any other matters come to 
our attention after the date hereof. Accordingly, this opinion speaks only as of its date and is not intended to, and 
may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or matters. Our engagement with respect to the 
Bonds has concluded with their issuance, and we disc1aim any obligation to update this letter. We have assumed the 
genuineness of all documents and signatures presented to us (whether as originals or as copies) and the due and legal 
execution and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any parties other than the District. We have assumed, 
without undertaking to verify, the accuracy of the factual matters represented, wan·anted or certified in the 
documents referred to in the second paragraph hereof. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with all 
covenants and agreements contained in the Resolution, the Paying Agent Agreement, and the Tax Certificate, 
including (without limitation) covenants and agreements compliance with which is necessary to ensure that future 
actions, omissions or events will not cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income 
tax purposes. We call attention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Resolution, the 
Paying Agent Agreement, and the Tax Certificate, and their enforceability, may be subject to bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting 
creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases, 
and to the limitations on legal remedies against school districts and counties in the State of California. We express 
no opinion with respect to any indemnification, contribution, penalty, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of 
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venue, waiver or severability provisions contained in the documents mentioned in the preceding sentence. Finally, 
we undertake no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or faimess of the Official Statement or other offering 
materials relating to the Bonds and express no opinion with respect thereto. 

Based on and subject to the foregoing and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the following 
opm10ns: 

I. The Bonds constitute valid and binding obligations of the District. 

2. The Resolution has been duly and legally adopted and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of 
the District. 

3. The Paying Agent Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District, 
and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, constitutes a valid and binding 
ob1igati{)n of the District. Assuming due authorization, execution and delivery of the Paying Agent Agreement and 
authentication of the Bonds by the Paying Agent, the Bonds are entitled to the benefits of the Paying Agent 
Agreement. 

4. The Board of Supervisors of the County has power and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes 
without limitation as to rate or amount upon all property within the District's boundaries subject to taxation by the 
District (except certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates) for the payment of the Bonds and the 
interest thereon. 

5. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under 
Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. 
Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative 
minimum taxes. No opjnion is expressed as to whether interest on any portion of the Bonds is excluded fi·om 
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. We express no opinion 
regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest 
on, the Bonds. 

Faithfully yours, 

ORRICK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP 

per 
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PERRY-SMITHI"'LLP 
ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Honorable Board of Education 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Richmond, California 

400 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

www.perry-smith.com 
916.441.1000 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of West Contra Costa Unified School District, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise West Contra Costa Unified 
School District's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

The basic financial statements referred to above do not include the Trust and Agency Fund 
financial statements for the associated student body accounts which should be included to conform 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The amount that should 
be recorded in the basic financial statements is not known. 

In our opinion, except that the omission described in the preceding paragraph results in an 
incomplete presentation, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of West Contra Costa Unified School District as of 
June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for 
the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 11, 2008 on our consideration of West Contra Costa Unified School District's internal control 
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

SACRAMENTO I\ SAN FRANCISCO "' ROSEVILLE 

http://www.perry-smith.com


PERRY-SMITH~LLP 
ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Continued) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements, 
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries 
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise West Contra Costa Unified School District's basic financial statements. The 
accompanying financial and statistical information listed in the Table of Contents, including the 
Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards, which is required by U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements of West Contra Costa Unified School District. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Sacramento, California 
December 11, 2008 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
1108 Bissell Avenue 

Bruce Harter, Ph.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Richmond, CA 94801-3135 
Telephone (510) 231-1100 

Sheri Gamba 
Associate Superintendent 

Business Services 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

IN'TRODUC'TION 

Management's discussion and analysis of West Contra Costa Unified School District's 
(District) financial performance provides an overview of the District's financial activities for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. It should be read in conjunction with the District's 
financial statements. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model 
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic 
J:"inancial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Ana/ysi>-for State and Local Governments, 
issued June 1999; GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Stafement.f--and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis-for Stale and Local Governments: Omnibus, an amendment to GASB 
Statements No. 21 and No. 34, issued in June 2001; GASB Statement No. 38, Certain 
Financial Statement Note Disclosures issued in 2001 and GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Emp!tJyers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensiom, issued in 2004. 
Certain comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to 
be presented in the MD&A. 

FINANCIAL AND EDUCATIONAL ffiGHLIGHTS 

The District's financial position deteriorated over the past year. Overall expenditures of 
$378.5 million exceeded revenues by $32.1 million. Total net assets decreased by 12% over 
the course of the year. 

In October 2007, the District implemented a spending freeze on hiring and overtime for 
positions within the school district. On February 6, 2008, the School Board took action to 
reduce the budget for 2008-09, and to provide savings in the current year, by eliminating 
certain non-classroom vacancies. 

The District filed a qualified certification for the Second Interim financial statements. A 
qualified certification is assigned to a school district that, based upon current projections, 
may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal 
years. 

The District is making progress in improving our educational facilities. Construction at El 
Cerrito High School, Helms Middle School, and Downer Elementary School continues 
through the use of bond funds. 
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' 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 

The complete annual fmancial report is a product of three separate parts: the basic fmancial 
statements, supplementary information, and this section, Management's Discussion and 
Analysis. The three sections together provide a comprehensive overview of the District. 
The basic f!nancials are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial 
information from different perspectives, District-wide and funds. 

~ District-wide financial statements, which comprise the fust two statements, 
provide both short-term and long-term information about the District's overall 
financial position. 

~ Individual parts of the District, which are reported as fund financial statements, 
focus on reporting the District's operations in more detail. These fund financial 
statements comprise the remaining statements. 

•:• Basic services funding (i.e., regular and special education) is described in the 
governmental funds statements. 

•:• Short and long-term financial information about the activities of the District 
that operate like businesses (self-insurance funds) are provided in the 
proprietary funds statements. 

•:• Financial relationships, for which the District acts solely as an agent or 
trustee, for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong, are 
presented in the fiduciary fund statements. 

· Notes to the flnancials, which are included in the financial statements, provide more detailed 
data and explain some of the information in the statements. A comparison of the District's 
budget for the year is included as required supplementary information. 
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The following matrix summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, 
including the portion of the District's activities they cover and the types of information they 
contain. The remainder of the overview section of management's discussion and analysis 
highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements. 

Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
Fund Statements 

Type of Statement District-wide Governmental Funds Pr"l'_rietary Funds Fiduciary Funds 
Entire district, e:xcept The activities of the Activities the district Instances in which 
fiduciary activities district that are not operates similar to the district 

proprietary or private businesses: administers resources 
Scope fiduciary, such as such as the self- on behalf of 

special revenue and insurance fund someone else, such as 
debt service funds student activities and 

retiree benefits funds 
Statement of net Balance sheet Statement of net Statement of 
assets assets fiduciary net assets 
Statement of Statement of Statement of Statement of changes 

Required financial activities revenues, revenues, expenses & in fiduciary net assets 
statements expenditures & changes in fund net 

changes in fund assets 
balances Statement of cash 

flows 

Accounting basis and Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting Accrual accounting 
measurement focus and economic accounting and and economic and economic 

resources focus current financial resources focus resources focus 
resources focus 

Type of asset/liability All assets and Only assets expected All assets and All assets and 
information liabilities, both to be used up and liabilities, both liabilities, both short-

financial and capital, liabilities that come financial and capital, term and long-term; 
short-term and long- due during the year short-term and long- Standard funds do 
term or soon thereafter; no term not currently contain 

capital assets included non-financial assets, 
thoug_h they can 

Type of All revenues and Revenues for which All revenues and All revenues and 
inflow I outflow expenses during year, cash is received expenses during year, expenses during year, 
information regardless of when during or soon after regardless of when regardless of when 

cash is received or the end of the year; cash is received or cash is received or 
paid expenditures when paid paid 

goods or services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during year or soon 
thereafter 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The District's basic fmancial statements are comprised of three components: 1) District-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to the basic financial 
statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of the District's finances in a manner similar to a private sector's 
business. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The District as a whole is reported in the District-wide statements and uses accounting 
methods similar to those used by companies in the private sector. All of the District's assets 
and liabilities are included in the statement of net assets. The statement of activities reports 
all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The District's financial health or position (net assets) can be measured by the difference 
between the District's assets and liabilities. 

>- Increase or decrease in the net assets of the district over time are indicators of 
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

~ Additional non-financial factors such as condition of school buildings and other 
facilities and changes in the property tax base of the district need to be considered in 
assessing the overall health of the district. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities show all District operations as 
governmental activities, the basic services provided by the District, such as regular and 
special education, administration and transportation. Property taxes and state formula aid 
finance most of these activities. 

The District-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15 through 16 of this report. 

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. Fund fmancial statements report essentially the same functions as those 
reported in the District-wide financial statements. However, unlike the District-wide 
financial statements, fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the 
fiscal year. 
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The District has three kinds of funds: 

Governmental funds 

Most of the District's basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally 
focus on: 

1. How cash and other financial assets can be readily converted to cash flow (in and 
out). 

2. The balances left at year-end that are available for spending. 

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view. These help 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near 
future for financing the District's programs. Because this kind of information does not 
encompass the additional long-term focus of the District-wide statements, additional 
information is provided on page 7 that explains the differences (or relationships) between 
them. 

Proprietary funds 

The proprietary fund category includes Internal Service Funds. 

Internal Service funds report activities that provide supplies and serv1ces for the other 
programs and activities of the District. 

~ The district has one internal fund: a self-insurance fund. 

Fiduciary funds 

For assets that belong to others, such as the scholarship fund and/ or student activities fund, 
the District acts as the trustee, or fiduciary. The District is responsible for ensuring that the 
assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes. A separate 
statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of change in fiduciary net assets report the 
District's fiduciary activities. These activities are excluded from the District-wide financial 
statements, as the District cannot use the assets to finance the operations. 

THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE 
Net Assets - The District's combined net assets were lower on June 30, 2008 than they 
were the year before-decreasing by $32.1 million to $236.3 million as reflected on the next 
page. 
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Net Assets 

GOVERNMENTAL 

ACTIVITIES 

2008 2007 

Current Assets $ 219,764,450 s 347,125,159 

Capital Assets 681,170,469 559,702,811 

Total Assets 900,934,919 906,827,970 

Current Liabilities 73,538,489 70,925,436 

Long-teem Liabilities 591,064,105 567,489 > 172 

Total Liabilities 664,602,594 638,414,608 

Net Assets: 

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 147,674,919 64,631,801 

Restricted For: 

Capital Projects 56,258,980 142,172,323 

Debt Service 25,893,539 31,276,479 

Educational Programs 24,272,690 19,117,248 

Other Purposes (Expendable) 11,493,688 II ,207,327 

Other Purposes (Unexpendable) 2,147,479 2,505,063 

Unrestricted (31 ,408,970) (2,3 1 6,879) 

Total Net Assets $ 236,332,325 $ $ 268,413,362 

The District's financial position is the product of many factors. However, two events of the 
last year stand out: 

• Through the bond program, together with State apportionments for school facilities, 
the District has continued construction of new schools and has continued the 
process of renovating its existing schools. These activities have increased the capital 
assets of the District. 

• Additional revenue sources from developer fees in the Capital Facilities Fund and 
State Apportionments for Facilities in the County School Facilities Fund provided 
significant revenues. 
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Changes in Net Assets - The District's total expenditures exceeded its revenues by $32.1 
million. Property taxes, State Aid and otber general sources accounted for most of tbe 
District's revenues contributing approximately 69 cents per every dollar of revenue received 
while Federal, State and local grants and contributions for specific purposes provided 
approximately 31 cents of every dollar of revenue. 

Revenues: 

Program revenues: 

Charges for Service~'~ 

Operating Grants and Contributions 

Capital Grants and Contributions 

Total Program Revenues 

General Revenues: 

Property Taxes 

Federal and State Aid 

Interest and Investment Earnings 

Interagency revenues: 

Miscellaneous 

Special extraordinary items 

Total General Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Expenses: 

Instruction 

Support Services: 

Administrative 

Student Support 

Non~Student Support 

Plant Services 

Ancillary Services 

Transfers between agencies 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total Expenses 

Change in Net Assets 

Governmental Activities 

$ 

$ 

GOVERNMENTAL 

ACTIVITIES 

2008 2007 

1,773,900 $ 1,540,634 

105,914,809 99,849,521 

192,995 1,634,026 

107,881 ,704 103,024,181 

115,260,971 112,242,862 

115,304,637 123,892,423 

6,931,223 14,088,554 

1,075,382 4,483,568 

778,468 

238,572,213 255,485,875 

346,453,917 358,510,056 

206,647,051 182,279,832 

48,121,091 41,530,509 

31,758,964 28,386,102 

16,820,257 16,013,860 

35,185,962 30,551,629 

7,240,074 4,485,025 

152,651 1,401,831 

32,608,904 24,974,128 

378,534,954 329,622,916 

(32,081,037) $ 28,887,140 

The following table presents tbe costs of five major activities: Instruction, Support Services, 
Facility and Plant Services, Ancillary Services and Otber. The table also shows each activity's 
net cost (total cost less fees generated by tbe activities and intergovernmental aid provided 
for specific programs). The net cost of services shows tbe financial burden tbat was placed 
on tbe District for each of tbcse functions. 
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The cost of all prowams was $378.5 million for this fiscal year. The users of District 
programs as well as Federa~ State and local governments who provided funds for specific 
prowams provided $107.9 million. The balance of the District's expenditures were paid for 
by State apportionments for ADA and by local property taxes. Property taxes comprised of 
$115,260,971 of this amount while State education aid formulas contributed the remaining 
$115,304,637. 

Net Net 

Total Cost (Expense) Revenue Total Cost (Expense) Revenue 

2008 2008 2007 2007 

Instruction s 206,647,051 $ (161 ,450,658) $182,279,832 $ (131 ,088,777) 

Support Services 96,700,312 (47,253,204) 85,930,471 (43,821,651) 

Facilities and Plant 35,185,962 (30,658,173) 30,551,629 (29,572,469) 

Ancillary Services 7,240,074 (1,501,654) 4,485,025 (1,312,981) 

Other 32,761,555 (29,789,561) 26,375,959 (20,802,85?) 

Total s 378,534,954 $ (270,653,250) $ 329,622,916 $ (226,598,735) 

THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS 
The financial position of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental fund 
statements. As the District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a 
combined fund balance of $168 million, well below last year's combined ending fund 
balance of $297.7 million. This decrease is due to activities in the District's Capital 
Projects Fund and Building Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year, the District revises the annual operating budget several times 
due to changes in State and federal funding. The District is requited to prepare financial 
reports for the school board twice a year. This is done through the preparation of the First 
and Second Interim Reports, which are prepared based on information available as of 
October 31 and January 31 respectively. Budget adjustments and revisions can be classified 
into three types: 

o Appropriation of prior year ending fund balances and deferred revenues derived 
primarily from Federal, State and local government sources for specific prowams. 

o New appropriations or budget augmentations for prowams and expenditures that were 
not known or anticipated at the time of budget development. 

The final revised General Fund budget of the District reflected anticipated revenues of $296 
million against appropriated expenditures of $315.6 million thus anticipating a decrease of 
$19.6 million in overall fund balance. 

'lbe District took a pro-active approach to reduce expenditures without affecting the 
instructional programs to the weatest extent possible. 
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Actual revenues were less than anticipated while actual expenditures were also less than 
anticipated. The combination of these variances resulted in a higher ($45.8 million) then 
projected ($28.4 million) ending fund balance. 

Summary of Revenues for Governmental Function 

The following schedule represents a summary of the general operating fund, special revenue, 
capital projects fund and debt service fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, 
and the increase and decrease (in amount and percentage) in relations to prior year amounts. 

Increase 

(Decrease) Percent Increase 

2008 Percent of From Prior (Decrease) From 

Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Prior Fiscal Year 

Revenue Limit Sources $ 166,817,807 48% $ (3,075,989) (1.81%) 

Federal 34,831,968 10% 1,638,518 4.94% 

Other State 80,193,619 23% (1,365,391) (1.67%) 

Other Local 64,610,527 19% (8,675,055) (11.84%) 

Total Revenues $ 346,453,921 100% s (11,477,91?) (3.21%) 

The following schedule represents a summary of the general operating fund, special revenue, 
capital projects fund, and debt service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2008, and the increase and decrease (in amount and percentage) in relations to prior year 
amounts. 

Summary of Expenditures by Object Code 

Increase 

(Decrease) Percent Increase 

2008 Percent of From Prior (Decrease) From 

Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Prior Fiscal Year 

Certificated salaries $ 124,574,291 26% $ 2,517,326 2% 

Classified salaries 51,203,205 11% 4,849,778 10% 

Employee benefits 69,590,159 14% 5,823,754 9% 

Books and supplies 19,277,429 4% 1,844,144 11% 

Services, other operation expenses 47,093,067 10% 3,763,497 9% 

Capital Outlay 131,843,678 27% 45,122,648 52% 

Debit Service: 

Principal 11,852,282 2% 2,486,271 27% 

Interest 20,671,237 4% 743,282 4% 

Other outgo 51,834 0% (1 ,246,409) (96%) 

Total Expenditures $ 476,157,182 100% s 65,904,291 16% 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

By June 30, 2008, the District had invested $900.8 million in a broad range of capital assets 
including land, school buildings, athletic facilities, computer and audio-visual equipment as 
well as support facilities as reflected in the following table. Additional information about the 
capital assets of the District can also be found in footnote 4. Total depreciation expense for 
the year was $18 million while additions to net capital assets amounted to approximately 
$139.1 million. 

Construction, planning and design activities continued during the year related to the 
renovation of the District's elementary and secondary schools. 

Capital Assets 

Governmental activities: 

Land 

Site Improvements 

Buildings 

Machinery and Equipment 

Construction In Progress 

Totals at historical cost 

Less: accumulated depreciation 

Site Improvements 

Buildings 

Machinery and Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Governmental activities, capita1 

Assets, Net 

Long -Term Liabilities 

GID!:~::mm!;:ntal Activities 

Balance, Balance, 

July 1, 2007 Additions Reductions June 30, 2008 

s 52,352,775 $ \8,5\6 s 52,37\,291 

48,154,355 1,1\9,733 49,274,088 

462,479,198 102,664,116 565,143,314 

11,646,023 968,671 $ 380,619 12,234,075 

187,027,182 138,358,367 103,612,724 221,772,825 

761,659,533 243,129,403 l 03,993,343 900.795,593 

(37,578,695) (2,284,599) (39,863,294) 

(159,333,815) (14,834,786) (174,168,601) 

(5,044,212) (893,993) (344,976) (5,593,229) 

(201,956,722) (18,013,378) (344,976) (219 ,625, 124) 

s 559,702,811$ 225,116,025 s \03,648,367 $ 681,170,469 

In recent years the District has received approval from the voters to issue $890 million in 
bonds. Measure E was approved for $40 million in November 1998 to fund various capital 
improvement projects and to construct a new middle school. Measure M in the amount of 
$150 million was approved in November 2000 to renovate the elementary schools of the 
District. Measure D was approved in March 2002 to renovate the secondary schools of the 
District as well as provide additional funds to supplement Measure M. This measure is in 
the amount of $300 million. Finally, Measure J was approved for $400 million in November 
2005. The District will continue to sell and issue bonds authorized by these measures in 
amounts necessary to meet the cash flow needs of the construction projects as they progress 
over the next several years. 
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At year end the District had $608 million in general obligation bonds and other long-term 
liabilities outstanding, a slight increase over the prior year. 

This is the first year the District has been required to report its Other Post Employment 
Benefit (OPEB) liability within its fmancial statements. That liability is reflected in the 
following table. 

"fhe activities of the District's long-term liabilities are reflected in the table below as well as 
the footnotes to the financial statements in note number 6. The General Obligation Bonds 
have been sold with insurance at the highest rating possible, AAA. 

Emergency Apportionment Loan 

General Obligation Bonds 

Accreted Interest 

1994 Certificates of Participation 

Voluntary Integration Program 

Computer equipment acquisition 

Compensated absences 

OPEB Obligation 

Child care facilities loan 

Balance 

July I, 2007 

I 14,290,742 

536,503,517 

9,504,043 

10,340,000 

4,452,000 

4,494,709 

3,517,902 

516,443 

I 

G:gvemm~nli!l Activige!i: 

Amounts 

Balance Due Within 

Additions Deductions June 30, 2008 One Year 

- I 1,202,668 $ 13,088,074 $ 1,221,093 

9,487,090 527,016,427 10,796,196 

11,961,909 21,465,952 

275,000 10,065,000 285,000 

790,000 3,662,000 790,000 

197,857 4,692,566 625,000 

317,586 3,200,316 3,200,316 

24,469,980 24,469,980 

97,524 418,919 97,524 

Total Long·term liabilities I 583,619,356 I 36,629,746 $ 12,169,868 S 608,079,234 I 17,015,129 

The State limits the amount of general obligation debt the District can issue to 2.5 percent of 
the assessed value of all taxable property within the District's boundaries. The district has 
applied for and been granted a waiver of this limit by the California State Board of 
Education allowing the District to issue bonds up to an amount not to exceed 3.0% of 
assessed value. 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

The Notes to Basic Financial Statements complement the financial statements by describing 
qualifying factors and changes throughout the fiscal year. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Revenue limit P-2 funded Average Daily Attendance (ADA) decreased by 240 from the 
prior year. Revenue limit P-2 funded ADA has decreased by 4,205 over the last five years. 
Declining enrollment is impacting 50 percent of all school districts in California. The District 
continues to monitor this situation and has made budget reductions to counter the loss of 
revenue from declining enrollment. 
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The District provides post-employment health benefits to retirees who meet plan eligibility 
reqwrements. The present value of future post-employtnent health care benefits is $727.7 
million. 

The escalating cost of health care benefits is a major concern. The District provides health 
care benefits for employees and retirees. The District paid $28.2 million for employees and 
$14.5 million for retirees in the current year. 

The State of California continues to experience budget difficulties at the present time. As 
the majority of our revenue comes from the State, we will most certainly continue to 
experience budget challenges in the coming years. 

The adopted budget for the 2008-2009 school year included a structural deficit of $7.7 
million. The State of California's economic condition has gone from bad to worse. The 
Governor's proposal, which is currently under consideration by the legislature, would reduce 
the revenue of the District this year by an estimated $10 million. 

In order to address the structural deficit in the coming years, the District is using a balanced 
approach which will include seeking cost containment through collective bargaining, school 
closure and additional district wide staff reductions. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note 2) 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Stores inventory 
Capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation (Note 4) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment 

expenses (Note 5) 
Deferred revenue 
Long-term liabilities (Note 6): 

Due within one year 
Due after one year 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted (Note 7) 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

June 30, 2008 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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Governmental 
Activities 

$ 187,823,918 
29,222,742 

2,077,479 
640,311 

681.170 469 

900 934 919 

52,077,599 

500,000 
3,945,761 

17,015,129 
591.064 105 

664 602 594 

147,674,919 
120,066,376 
(31.408.970) 

$ 236.332,325 



Governmental activities (Note 4 ): 
Instruction 
Instruction-related !;ervices: 

Supervision of im;truction 
Instructional JJbral}', media and 

technology 
School site admir,istration 

Pupil services: 
Home·to-schoof transportation 
Food services 
All other pupil services 

General administration: 
Data processing 
All other general administration 

Plant services 
Ancillary services 
Enterprise activities 
Other outgo 
Interest on long~term liabilities 

Total governmental activities 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Program Revenues 
Charges Operating 

for Grants and 
EXQ!nses Services Contributions 

$ 206,647,051 $ 143,851 $ 44,859,547 

24,617,106 23,904,284 

3,028,823 111,806 
20,475,162 96,600 2,215,217 

7,489,577 2,481,078 
11,530,422 1,418,002 8,837,992 
12,738,965 5,176,524 

3,094,297 1,028,718 
13,725,960 81,307 4,095,580 
35,185,962 34,140 4,493,649 

7,145,247 5,738,420 
94,827 

152,651 2,971,994 
3~ 608 904 

$ 378 534 954 $ 1 773,900 $ 105914809 

General revenues: 
Taxes and subventions: 

Taxes levied for general purposes 
Taxes levied for debt service 
Taxes levied for other specific purposes 

Federal and state aid not restricted to specific purposes 
Interest and investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, July 1, 2007 

Net assets, June 30, 2008 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements, 
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Net (Expense) 
Revenues and 

Changes in 
Net Assets 

Capital 
Grants and Governmental 

Contributions Activities 

$ 192,995 $ (161 ,450,658) 

(712,822) 

(2,917,017) 
(18, 163,345) 

(5,008,499) 
(1 ,274,428) 
(7,562,441) 

(2,065,579) 
(9,549,073) 

(30,658, 173) 
(1 ,406,827) 

(94,827) 
2,819,343 

(32,608 904) 

$ 192 995 1270,653 250) 

68,785,391 
29,110,935 
17,364,645 

115,304,637 
6,931,223 
1 075 382 

238 572 213 

(32,081,037) 

268413362 

~ 236,~32 325 

http://f270.653.2501


WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

June 30, 2008 

General Building 
Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments: 
Cash in County Treasury $ 25,790,323 $ 59,741,398 
Cash on hand and in banks 71,499 
Cash in revolving fund 70,000 
Cash awaiting deposit 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 12,006,621 
Investments 11,006,525 22,620,032 

Accounts receivable 23,073,315 741,321 
Due from other funds 
Stores inventory 230 039 

Total assets $ 60,241.701 $ 95,109 372 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 11,702,228 $ 28,259,236 
Deferred revenue 948,099 
Due to other funds 1 751 608 

Total liabilities 14,401,935 28,259,236 

Fund balances 45 839.766 66 850 136 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 60 241,701 ~ 95,109,372 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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All 
Non-Major 

Funds 

$ 46,224,929 
32,607 

1,300 
1,755,341 
7,489,822 
3,470,606 
3,601,608 

410 272 

$ 62,986 485 

$ 2,838,502 
2,997,662 
1 850 000 

7,686,164 

55,300.321 

~ 62,986,485 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 131 '756,650 
104,106 

70,000 
1,300 

13,761,962 
41,116,379 
27,285,242 

3,601,608 
640,311 

$ 218 337,558 

$ 42,799,966 
3,945,761 
3 601.608 

50,347,335 

167 990.223 

~ 218,337,558 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET­
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

June 30, 2008 

Total fund balances -Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
assets in governmental funds. The cost of the assets 
is $900,795,593 and the accumulated depreciation is 
$219,625,124 (Note4). 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the 
governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2008 
consisted of (Note 6): 

General Obligation Bonds 
Accreted interest 
Certificates of Participation 
Emergency Apportionment Loan 
Voluntary Integration Plan 
Computer equipment acquisition loan 
Child care facilities loan 
OPEB Obligation 
Compensated absences 

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities 
for which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost­
recovery basis. Net assets of the Self-Insurance Fund are: 

In the governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is 
not recognized until the period in which it matures and is 
paid. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is 
recognized in the period that it is incurred: 

Costs associated with the issuance of long-term liabilities 
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
as assets in governmental funds. 

Total net assets- governmental activities 

$ (527,016,427) 
(21 ,465,952) 
(10,065,000) 
(13,088,074) 

(3,662,000) 
(4,692,566) 

(418,919) 
(24,469,980) 

(3 200.316) 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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$ 167,990,223 

681 '170,469 

(608,079,234) 

1,429,025 

(8,255,637) 

2 077 479 

$ 236 332,325 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

General Building 
Fund Fund 

Revenues: 
Revenue limit sources: 

State apportionment $ 99,648,215 
Local sources 67 169 592 

Total revenue limit 166 817 807 

Federal sources 25,621,521 
Other state sources 71,167,149 
Other local sources 21 327 703 $ 5 764 674 

Total revenues 284,934180 5 764 674 

Expenditures: 
Certificated salaries 121 ,060,184 
Classified salaries 44,592,168 867,437 
Employee benefits 66,089,445 326,728 
Books and supplies 12,340,626 2,180,367 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 41,425,355 3,511,475 
Capital outlay 889,702 121,366,873 
Other outgo 51,834 
Indirect cost reimbursement (802,241) 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 790,000 
Interest 

Total expenditures 286,437 073 128,252 880 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures (1 ,502 893) (122,488 206) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 2,839,820 
Operating transfers out (3 551,157) (2 539,820) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (711 ,337) (2,539,820) 

Net changes in lund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2007 

Fund balances, June 30, 2008 

(2,214,230) (125,028,026) 

48 053,996 191 878,162 

$ 45,839 766 ~ 66,850,136 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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All 
Non-Major 

Funds 

$ 9,210,447 
9,026,470 

37,518,150 

55 755 067 

3,514,107 
5,743,600 
3,173,986 
4,756,436 

2,156,237 
9,587,103 

802,241 

11,062,282 
20,671 237 

61.467.229 

(5,712 162) 

3,563,250 
(312.093) 

3,251,157 

(2.461 ,005) 

57 761 326 

~ 55,300,321 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 99,648,215 
67,169.592 

166 817 807 

34,831,968 
80,193,619 
64,610,527 

346,453,921 

124,574,291 
51,203,205 
69,590,159 
19,277,429 

47,093,067 
131,843,678 

51,834 

11,852,282 
20,671,237 

476 157 182 

(129 703.261) 

6,403,070 
(6 403,070) 

(129,703,261) 

297 693,484 

~ 167,990,223 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS-

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Net changes in fund balances- Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

Acquisition of capital assets is an expenditure in the 
governmental funds, but increases capital assets in 
the statement of net assets (Note 4). $ 139,516,679 

Depreciation of capital assets is an expense that is not 
recorded in the governmental funds (Note 4). 

Gain or loss from disposal of capital assets are reported 
as revenue for entire proceeds in the governmental funds, 
but in the statement of activities, only the resulting gain 
or loss is reported (Note 4). 

Imputed interest on the computer equipment acquisition loan 
is an increase to long-term liabilities that is not recorded in 
the governmental funds (Note 6). 

Repayment of principal on long-term liabilities is an expend­
iture in the governmental funds, but decreases the long­
term liabilities in the statement of net assets (Note 6). 

Issuance costs and discounts related to the issuance of 
long-term liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but increases the assets in the statement of net 
assets. 

In governmental funds, interest on long-term liabilities is 
recognized in the period that it becomes due. In the 
government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized 
in the period that it is incurred. 

Internal service funds are used to conduct certain activities 
for which costs are charged to other funds on a full cost 
recovery basis. Change in net assets for the Self-Insurance 
Fund was: 

In government funds, OPEB costs are recognized when 
employer contributions are made. In the statement of 
activities, OPEB costs are recognized on the accrual 
basis. This year, the difference between OPEB costs 
and actual employer contributions was (Note 6): 

In the statement of activities, expenses related to compen­
sated absences are measured by the amounts earned 
during the year. In the governmental funds, expenditures 
are measured by the amount of financial resources used 
(Note 6). 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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(18,013,378) 

(35,643) 

(197,857) 

11,852,282 

(100,817) 

(11,739,810) 

493,162 

(24,469,980) 

317 586 

$ (129,703,261) 

97 622 224 

$ (32,081.037) 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS- PROPRIETARY FUND 

SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

June 30, 2008 

ASSETS 

Cash in County Treasury 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Restricted 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

993,521 
20,000 

1,937,500 

2.951,021 

1,021,996 
500,000 

1,521.996 

1,429,025 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN 
FUND NET ASSETS -PROPRIETARY FUND 

Operating revenues: 
Self-insurance premiums 

Operating expenses: 
Classified salaries 
Employee benefits 
Books and supplies 
Contract services 

SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Total net assets, July 1, 2007 

Total net assets, June 30, 2008 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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$ 5,357,768 

6,718 
732 

31,994 
4,825,162 

4,864,606 

493,162 

935,863 

~ 1 429,025 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS· PROPRIETARY FUND 

SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from self-insurance premiums 
Cash paid for salaries and benefits 
Cash paid for books and supplies 
Cash paid for claims 
Cash paid for contract services 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2007 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2008 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
used in operating activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

used in operating activities: 
Increase in: 

Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 

Net cash used in operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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$ 3,420,268 
(7,447) 

(31,994) 
{1,469,439) 
(2, 737 .955) 

(826,567) 

(826,567) 

1,840.088 

~ 1,013,521 

$ 493,162 

(1,937,500) 
617 771 

$ (826,567) 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

ALL TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS 

June 30, 2008 

Trust 
Fund 

Retiree 
Benefits 

Trust 

ASSETS 

Cash in County Treasury (Note 2) $ 2,637,738 $ 
Investments (Note 2) 
Accounts receivable 

· Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Due to regulatory agencies 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Restricted (Note 7) 

6,866,552 
60.019 

9.564.309 

21 

21 

$ 9 564,288 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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~ 

Agency 
Fund 

Payroll 
Clearing 

Fund 

1,661,683 

39 933 

1 701 616 

1 701 616 

1,701.616 

Total 

$ 4,299,421 
6,866,552 

99 952 

11.265.925 

21 
1 701 616 

1 701 637 

~ 9,564,288 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

RETIREE BENEFITS TRUST FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Revenues: 
Other local sources 

Expenditures: 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures (Note 9) 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, July 1, 2007 

Net assets, June 30, 2008 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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$ 15,875,768 

14 809 317 

1,066,451 

8 497 837 

$ 9.564.288 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

West Contra Costa Unified School District (the "District") accounts for its financial 
transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the California 
Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The accounting 
policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The following is a summary of 
the more significant policies: 

Reporting Entity 

The Board of Education is the level of government which has governance 
responsibilities over all activities related to public school education in the District. The 
Board is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board since Board members have decision­
making authority, the power to designate management, the responsibility to significantly 
influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 

On January 13, 1994, certain members of the District's Board of Education and District 
employees formed a nonprofit benefit corporation, known as the West Contra Costa 
Unified School District Financing Corporation (the "Corporation"), which is organized 
under the Nonprofit Benefit Corporation Law of the State of California. The purpose of 
this Corporation is to provide financial assistance to the District by financing, 
constructing and leasing various public facilities, land, and equipment for the use, 
benefit, and enjoyment of the public served by the District. The Corporation issued 
Certificates of Participation (COPs), a form of long-term debt, which the District used to 
finance continuing operations. The COPs are collateralized by an underlying lease­
purchase agreement between the Corporation and the District. 

The District and the Corporation have a financial and operational relationship that meets 
the reporting entity definition of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, 
for inclusion of the Corporation as a component unit of the District. The basic, but not 
the only criterion for including a governmental department, agency, institution, 
commission, public authority, or other governmental organization in a governmental 
unit's reporting entity for general purpose financial reports is the ability of the 
governmental unit's elected officials to exercise oversight responsibility over such 
agencies. Oversight responsibility implies that the nongovernmental unit is dependent 
on another and the dependent unit should be reported as part of the other. 

Oversight responsibility is derived from the governmental unit's power and includes, but 
is not limited to: 

Financial interdependency 
Selection of governing authority 
Designation of management 
Ability to significantly influence operations 
Accountability for fiscal matters 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

ReRorting Entity (Continued) 

Accordingly, for the year ended June 30, 2008, the financial activities of the Corporation 
have been blended into the financial statements of the District. The Corporation's 
financial activities are presented in the Corporation Debt Service Fund. COPs issued by 
the Corporation are included as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial 
statements. 

Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously 
approved Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. 

The basic financial statements include a Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD & A) section providing an analysis of the District's overall financial position and 
results of operations, financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all 
of the District's activities, including infrastructure, and a change in the fund financial 
statements to focus on the major funds. 

Basis of Presentation - Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities displays information about 
the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds are not included in the 
government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and the Statement of Change in Fiduciary Net Assets 
at the fund financial statement level. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are prepared using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and 
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, 
expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from nonexchange transactions 
are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. 

Program revenues: Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities derive 
directly from the program itself or from parties outside the District's taxpayers or 
citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost of the function to be financed 
from the District's general revenues. 

Allocation of indirect expenses: The District reports all direct expenses by function in 
the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
function. Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in 
the direct expense of each function. Interest on general long-term liabilities is 
considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of 
Activities. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are 
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. District 
resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose 
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. The District's accounts are organized into three broad categories which, in 
aggregate, include seven fund types as follows: 

A Governmental Fund Types 

1. General Fund: 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and 
accounts for all revenues and expenditures of the District not 
encompassed within other funds. All general tax revenues and other 
receipts that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some 
other fund are accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures 
and the capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds 
are paid from the General Fund. 

2. Special Revenue Funds: 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. This classification includes the Adult Education, Child 
Development, Cafeteria, Deferred Maintenance and Special Reserve for 
Other Than Capital Outlay Projects Funds. 

3. Capital Projects Funds: 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for resources used for 
the acquisition or construction of capital facilities by the District. This 
classification includes the Building, Capital Facilities, Special Reserve for 
Capital Outlay Projects and County School Facilities Funds. 

4. Debt Service Funds: 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term liabilities principal, 
interest, and related costs. This classification includes the Bond Interest 
and Redemption, Corporation Debt Service and Debt Service Funds. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting (Continued) 

B Proprietary Fund 

1. Self-Insurance Fund: 

The Self-Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for 
services rendered on a cost-reimbursement basis within the District. The 
Self-Insurance Fund is used to account for resources committed to pay 
for costs arising from property losses and liability claims that are covered, 
or only partially covered, through purchased insurance. 

C Fiduciary Funds 

1. Trust Fund: 

The Retiree Benefits Trust Fund is a Trust Fund used to account for the 
District's defined post-employment healthcare plan. 

2. Agency Fund: 

The Payroll Clearing Fund is an Agency Fund used by the District to 
account for assets held by the District as trustee. The "due to regulatory 
agencies" account within the Payroll Clearing Fund is used to hold 
dedicated funds for payroll and related expenses. 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of 
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 

Accrual 

Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary 
and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when 
incurred. 

Modified Accrual 

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" 
means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. 
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal 
and interest on general obligation long-term liabilities, if any, is recognized when due. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

By state law, the Board of Education must adopt a final budget by July 1. A public 
hearing is conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The Board of Education 
complied with these requirements. 

The District employs budget control by major object code and by individual appropriation 
accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object code. 
The budgets are revised during the year by the Board of Education to provide for 
unanticipated revenues and expenditures. The originally adopted and final revised 
budgets for the General Fund and the Building Fund are presented as supplementary 
information. 

Stores Inventory 

Inventories in the General and Cafeteria Funds are valued at average cost. Inventory 
recorded in the General and Cafeteria Funds consists mainly of school supplies and 
consumable supplies. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the time the 
individual inventory items are transferred from the warehouse to schools and offices. 

Cafeteria Food Purchases 

Cafeteria purchases include food purchased through the State of California Office of 
Surplus Property, for which the District is required to pay only a handling charge. The 
state does not require the Cafeteria Fund to record the fair market value of these 
commodities. The expenditures for these items would have been greater had the 
District paid fair market value for the government surplus food commodities. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired, with an original cost of $5,000 or more, are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported 
at fair market value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital 
outlay that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs 
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Capital assets are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over 4 - 30 years depending on asset types. 

Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences totaling $3,200,316 are recorded as a liability of the District. 
The liability is for the earned but unused benefits. 

Accumulated Sick Leave 

Sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is 
to record sick leave as a operating expenditure or expense in the period taken since 
such benefits do not vest nor is payment probable; however, unused sick leave is added 
to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits for certain STRS 
and CarPERS employees, when the employee retires. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Deferred Revenue 

Revenue from federal, state, and local special projects and programs is recognized 
when qualified expenditures have been incurred. Funds received but not earned are 
recorded as deferred revenue until earned. 

Restricted Net Assets 

Restrictions of the ending net assets indicate the portions of net assets not appropriable 
for expenditure or amounts legally segregated for a specific future use. The restrictions 
for revolving cash fund, prepaid expenses and stores inventory reflect the portions of net 
assets represented by revolving cash fund, prepaid expenses and stores inventory, 
respectively. These amounts are not available for appropriation and expenditure at the 
balance sheet date. The restriction for unspent categorical program revenues are state 
programs where the revenue received is restricted for expenditures only in that 
particular program. The restriction for the future payment of self-insurance claims 
represents the portion of net assets to be used for future payment of self-insured claims. 
The restriction for special revenues represents the portion of net assets restricted for 
special purposes. The restriction for debt service repayments represents the portion of 
net assets which the District plans to expend on debt repayment. The restriction for 
capital projects represents the portion of net assets restricted for capital projects. The 
restriction for retiree benefits represents the portion of net assets which will be used for 
payment of health insurance premiums for current and future retirees. 

Property Taxes 

Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. 
Taxes are due in two installments on or before December 10 and April 10. Unsecured 
property taxes are due in one installment on or before August 31. The County of 
Contra Costa bills and collects taxes for the District. 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable 
appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded 
for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. 
Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid. 

Eliminations and Reclassifications 

In the process of aggregating data for the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the funds were 
eliminated or reclassified. lnterfund receivables and payables were eliminated to 
minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental 
activities column. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures 
during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those estimates. 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and investments at June 30, 2008 consisted of the following: 

Governmental Activities 
Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary 

Funds Fund Total Activities 

Pooled Funds: 
Cash in County Treasury $131,756,650 $ 993,521 $132,750,171 $ 4,299,421 
Cash awaiting deposit 1,300 1,300 

Deposits: 
Cash on hand and in banks 104,106 104,106 
Cash in revolving fund 70 000 70 000 

Total pooled funds and 
deposits 131,932,056 993 521 132,925 577 4 299 421 

Investments: 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 13,761,962 20,000 13,781,962 
Investments- Local Agency 

Investment Fund 41116 379 41,11§ 379 6 866 552 

Total investments 54878341 20 000 54,89§,341 6 866 552 

Total $186,810,397 $ 1 013,521 $187,823,918 $ 11 165,973 

Pooled Funds 

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially 
all of its cash in the Contra Costa County Treasury. The County pools these funds with 
those of school districts in the County and invests the cash. These pooled funds are 
carried at cost which approximates fair value. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into 
participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the 
pool. Earnings are calculated on an annual basis and funds allocated to participating 
funds are adjusted to the calculated annual rate at year-end. 

Because the District's deposits are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund 
under the care of a third party and the District's share of the pooled investment fund 
does not consist of specific, identifiable investment securities owned by the District, no 
disclosure of the individual deposits and investments or related custodial credit risk 
classifications is required. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Pooled Funds (Continued) 

In accordance with applicable state laws, the Contra Costa County Treasurer may invest 
in derivative securities. However, at June 30, 2008, the Contra Costa County Treasurer 
has represented that the Treasurer's pooled investment fund contained no derivatives or 
other investments with similar risk profiles. 

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk 

Cash balances held in banks and revolving funds are insured up to $100,000 by the 
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of June 30, 2008, the carrying 
amount of the District's accounts were $174,106, and the bank balances were $169,145. 
All of the bank balances were insured by the FDIC insurance. 

Cash with Fiscal Agent 

The Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Building Fund represents contract retentions that are 
placed with an independent third party. These amounts are carried in the contractor's 
name and all investment risk resides with the contractor. 

The Cash with Fiscal Agent in the Corporation Debt Service, Debt Service and Self­
Insurance Funds represents amounts held by third parties in the District's name. 

Local Agency Investment Fund 

West Contra Costa Unified School District places certain funds with the State of 
California's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The District is a voluntary participant 
in LAIF, which is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the 
oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California and the Pooled Money Investment 
Board. The State Treasurer's Office pools these funds with those of other governmental 
agencies in the state and invests the cash. The fair value of the District's investment in 
the pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements based upon the District's 
pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation 
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The monies held in the pooled investments 
funds are not subject to categorization by risk category. The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded 
on an amortized cost basis. Funds are accessible and transferable to the master 
account within twenty-four hours notice. Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are 
collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed 
securities, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government­
sponsored enterprises and corporations. LAIF is administered by the State Treasurer. 
LAIF investments are audited annually by the Pooled Money Investment Board and the 
State Controller's Office. Copies of this audit may be obtained from the State 
Treasurer's Office: 915 Capitol Mall; Sacramento, California 95814. The Pooled Money 
Investment Board has established policies, goals, and objectives to make certain that 
their goal of safety, liquidity and yield are not jeopardized. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits cash and investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. At June 30, 2008, the District had no significant interest rate 
risk related to cash and investments held. 

Credit Risk 

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits its investment choices 
other than the limitations of state law. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The District does not place limits on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. At 
June 30, 2008, the District had no concentration of credit risk. 

3. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

lnterfund Activity 

Transactions between funds of the District are recorded as interfund transfers, except 
for the Self-Insurance Fund activity which is recorded as income and expenditures of the 
Self-Insurance Fund and the funds which incur payroll costs, respectively. The unpaid 
balances at year end, as a result of such transactions, are shown as due to and due 
from other funds. 

lnterfund Receivables/Payables 

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2008 were as follows: 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Fund Receivables Payables 

Major Fund: 
General Fund $ 1,751,608 

Non-Major Funds: 
Cafeteria 1,850,000 
Capital Facilities $ 1,850,000 
Debt Service 1 751 608 

Totals $ 3,§01,608 ~ 3,601,6Q8 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

3. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 

lnterfund Transfers 

lnterfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving revenue to funds 
through which the resources are to be expended. 

lnterfund transfers for the 2007-2008 fiscal year were as follows: 

Transfer from the General Fund to the Corporation Debt 
Service Fund for COP payment. 

Transfer from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund 
for state loan repayment. 

Transfer from the General Fund to the Deferred Maintenance 
Fund for the required match. 

Transfer from the Special Reserve for Other Than Capital 
Outlay Projects Fund to the General Fund for payment 
of Bi-Tech Human Resources and Financial Services. 

Transfer from the Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects 
Fund to the Debt Service Fund to transfer the proceeds from 
the sale of property. 

Transfer from the Building Fund to the General Fund for 
contribution to the routine restricted maintenance fund. 

Transfer from the Building Fund to the General Fund for 
contribution to the routine restricted maintenance fund to 
provide the funds necessary to make the District's matching 

$ 1,040,066 

1,171,271 

1,339,820 

300,000 

12,093 

1,200,000 

contribution to the Deferred Maintenance Fund. 1.339.820 

$ 6.403.070 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

4. CAPITAL ASSETS 

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2008 is shown 
below: 

Governmental Activities 

Land 
Buildings 
Site improvements 
Equipment 
Work-in-process 

Totals, at cost 

Less accumulated 
depreciation: 

Buildings 
Site improvements 
Equipment 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Capital assets, net 

Balance 
July 1, 
2007 

$ 52,352,775 
462,479,198 
48,154,355 
11,646,023 

187,027,182 

761 ,659,533 

(159,333,815) 
(37,578,695) 

15,044,212) 

(201 ,956 722) 

:t 559,702,811 

Transfers Transfers 
and and 

Additions Deductions 

$ 18,516 
102,664,116 

1,119,733 
968,671 $ 380,619 

138,358 367 103612724 

243, 129,4Q3 103,993,343 

(14,834,786) 
(2,284,599) 

1893,993) 1344,976) 

(18,013,378) (344 976) 

:t 225,116,025 :t 103,648,367 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

Instruction 
Supervision of instruction 
Instructional library, media and technology 
School site administration 
Food services 
All other pupil services 
Data processing 
All other general administration 
Plant services 

Total depreciation expense 

5. SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS 

Balance 
June 30, 

2008 

$ 52,371,291 
565,143,314 
49,274,088 
12,234,075 

221,772 825 

900,795,593 

(174,168,601) 
(39,863,294) 

15 593,229) 

(219 625, 124) 

:t 681,170469 

$ 16,611,895 
49,885 
23,691 

240,663 
438,297 

2,861 
413,523 

31,826 
200,737 

$ 18,013,378 

The District is self-insured for property and liability claims. For accounting and reporting 
purposes, the District has established a separate Self-Insurance Fund for the payment 
of claims. For the year ended June 30, 2008, the District provides coverage up to a 
maximum of $100,000 for each property or liability claim. The District participates in a 
joint powers authority for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund (Note 1 0). 

The liability for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses represents the ultimate 
cost of claims that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been 
incurred but not reported. These claims will be paid in future years. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

5. SELF-INSURANCE CLAIMS (Continued) 

District management recomputes the liability annually using available updated claims 
data. Every three years, the District contracts with an actuary who performs an actuarial 
study using a variety of statistical techniques to produce current estimates that consider 
claim frequency and other economic factors. 

The liabilities for unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are as follows: 

June 30, June 30, 
2008 2007 

Unpaid claim and claim adjustment expenses, 
beginning of year $ 500,000 $ 500,000 

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment 
expenses 1,469,439 895,143 

Total payments (1 ,469,439) (895, 143) 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
expenses at end of year $ 500,000 ~ 500,00Q 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

General Obligation Bonds 

Bond 

Measure E, Refunding Series A 
Measure E, Refunding Series B 
Measure M, Series A 
Measure M, Series 8 
Measure M, Series C 
Measure D, Series A 
Measure 0, Series B 
Measure D, Series C, Current Interest 
Measure D, Series C Capital Appreciation 
Measure D, Series 0, Capital Appreciation 
Measure J, Series A 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

Amount of 
Interest Date of Maturity Original 
Rate% Issuance Date Issuance 

4.15%-5.7% 2001 2025 $ 28,610,000 $ 
4.3%-6.0% 2001 2024 10,255,000 
5.0%-6.0% 2001 2031 15,000,000 
4.0%-6.0% 2002 2031 40,000,000 
2.5%-5.0% 2003 2032 95,000,000 
4.25%-7.0% 2002 2031 30,000,000 
4.1%-5.0% 2003 2032 100,000,000 
4.0%-5.0% 2004 2034 40,000,000 
2.4%-5.8% 2004 2034 29,999,377 

3.15%-5.05% 2006 2034 99,998,106 
4.0%-5.0% 2006 2035 70,000,000 

Outstanding 
July 1, 
2007 

23,520,000 
8,530,000 

13,880,000 
37,825,000 
91,105,000 
28,295,000 
94,005,000 
39,355,000 
29,990,411 
99,998,106 
70 000 000 

$ 558.862A83 $ 536.503,517 

38 

Issued Redeemed Outstanding 
Current Current June 30, 

Year Year 2008 

$ 915,000 $ 22,605,000 
305,000 8,225,000 
315,000 13,565,000 
800,000 37,025,000 

2,065,000 89,040,000 
625,000 27,670,000 

2,120,000 91,885,000 
675,000 38,680,000 
139,973 29,850,438 
962,117 99,035,989 
565.000 69,435,000 

s $ 9.487,090 s 527.016,427 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2001 Refunding Measure E, Series A, General 
Obligation Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 955,000 $ 1,208,702 $ 2,163,702 
2010 1,005,000 1 '164,687 2,169,687 
2011 1,040,000 1 '116,998 2,156,998 
2012 1,110,000 1,066,349 2,176,349 
2013 1 '160,000 1,011,442 2,171,442 

2014-2018 6,830,000 4,094,330 10,924,330 
2019-2023 9,010,000 2,010,138 11,020,138 
2024-2028 1 495 000 130 381 1,625,381 

~ 22,605,000 ~ 11,803,027 ~ 34,4Q8,027 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2001 Refunding Measure E, Series B, General 
Obligation Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 330,000 $ 471,148 $ 801 '148 
2010 345,000 455,326 800,326 
2011 360,000 438,110 798,110 
2012 380,000 419,768 799,768 
2013 395,000 399,843 794,843 

2014-2018 2,380,000 1,641,891 4,021,891 
2019-2023 3,220,000 840,450 4,060,450 
2024-2028 815 000 48 900 863 900 

$ 8,225,000 ~ 4,715,436 ~ 12,940,436 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2001 Measure M, Series A, General Obligation 
Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 330,000 $ 688,888 $ 1,018,888 
2010 345,000 663,828 1,008,828 
2011 360,000 642,968 1,002,968 
2012 370,000 624,718 994,718 
2013 385,000 605,843 990,843 

2014-2028 2,180,000 2,718,090 4,898,090 
2019-2023 2,710,000 2,105,901 4,815,901 
2024-2028 3,440,000 1,336,428 4,776,428 
2029-2033 3.445.000 364 514 3,809,514 

$ 13,~65,000 ~ 9,751,178 ~ 23,316 178 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2001 Measure M, Series 8, General Obligation 
Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 840,000 $ 1,758,300 $ 2,598,300 
2010 885,000 1,718,550 2,603,550 
2011 925,000 1,682,350 2,607,350 
2012 965,000 1,744,550 2,709,550 
2013 1,005,000 1 ,705,150 2,710,150 

2014-2018 5,800,000 7,309,509 13,109,509 
2019-2023 7,405,000 5,756,188 13,161,188 
2024-2028 9,560,000 3,654,500 13,214,500 
2029-2033 9,640.000 995,250 10,635,250 

$ 37,025,000 ~ 26 324,347 ~ 63,349 347 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2003 Measure M, Series C, General Obligation 
Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 2,145,000 $ 4,246,713 $ 6,391,713 
2010 2,230,000 4,167,150 6,397,150 
2011 2,320,000 4,073,362 6,393,362 
2012 2,415,000 3,978,662 6,393,662 
2013 2,490,000 3,880,562 6,370,562 

2014-2018 13,805,000 17,740,650 31,545,650 
2019-2023 16,735,000 13,922,368 30,657,368 
2024-2028 20,740,000 9,226,250 29,966,250 
2029-2033 26,160,000 3,393,250 29,553,250 

~ 89,040,00Q ~ 64,628,967 ~153,668,967 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2002 Measure D, Series A, General Obligation 
Bo11ds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 655,000 $ 1,325,695 $ 1,980,695 
2010 690,000 1 ,288,107 1 ,978,107 
2011 725,000 1,258,038 1,983,038 
2012 750,000 1,226,695 1,976,695 
2013 780,000 1,194,183 1,974,183 

2014-2018 4,415,000 5,426,331 9,841,331 
2019-2023 5,525,000 4,249,375 9,774,375 
2024-2028 7,060,000 2,685,000 9,745,000 
2029-2033 7,070,000 729 500 7,799,500 

~ 27,670,000 ~ 19,3!!2,924 ~ 47,052,924 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2003 Measure D, Series B, General Obligation 
Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 2,195,000 $ 4,363,958 $ 6,558,958 
2010 2,270,000 4,266,240 6,536,240 
2011 2,360,000 4, 159,116 6,519,116 
2012 2,455,000 4,041,691 6,496,691 
2013 2,555,000 3,929,216 6,484,216 

2014-2018 14,225,000 17,988,501 32,213,501 
2019-2023 17,335,000 14,360,625 31,695,625 
2024-2028 21,505,000 9,530,625 31,035,625 
2029-2033 26,985,000 3.498 875 30.483,875 

~ 91,885,000 ~ 66,138,847 ~ 158,023,847 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2005 Measure D, Series C, Current Interest 
General Obligation Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 710,000 $ 1,841,398 $ 2,551,398 
2010 745,000 1,812,298 2,557,298 
2011 780,000 1,781,798 2,561,798 
2012 820,000 1,749,798 2,569,798 
2013 860,000 1,716,198 2,576,198 

2014-2018 4,965,000 8,005,067 12,970,067 
2019-2023 6,265,000 6,783,551 13,048,551 
2024-2028 8,070,000 4,931,850 13,001,850 
2029-2033 10,455,000 2,613,625 13,068,625 
2034-2038 5 010,000 253,750 5,263,750 

$ 38,680,00Q ~ 31,489,333 ~ 70,169,333 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2005 Measure D, Series C, Capital 
Appreciation General Obligation Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are 
as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 260,861 $ 64,139 $ 325,000 
2010 372,121 117,879 490,000 
2011 470,644 184,356 655,000 
2012 567,683 267,317 835,000 
2013 656,115 363,885 1,020,000 

2014-2018 4,117,155 3,472,845 7,590,000 
2019-2023 5,182,913 7,527,087 12,710,000 
2024-2028 6,789,919 15,005,081 21,795,000 
2029-2033 7,510,191 24,299,809 31,810,000 
2034-2038 3,922,836 16 127 164 20,050,000 

~ 2!;!,85Q 438 ~ 67,429,5§2 ~ 97,280,000 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2006 Measure D, Series D, Capital 
Appreciation General Obligation Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are 
as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 1,110,335 $ 459,665 $ 1,570,000 
2010 1,254,996 610,004 1,865,000 
2011 1 ,420,186 814,814 2,235,000 
2012 2,105,460 519,540 2,625,000 
2013 2,327,598 717,402 3,045,000 

2014-2018 15,024,043 8,275,957 23,300,000 
2019-2023 19,584,694 19,805,306 39,390,000 
2024-2028 20,998,966 34,586,034 55,585,000 
2029-2033 23,600,021 57,309,979 80,910,000 
2034-2038 11,609,690 35,925,310 47,535 000 

~ 99,035,989 ~ 159,024,011 ~258,060,000 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

General Obligation Bonds (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize the 2006 Measure J, Series A, General Obligation 
Bonds Payable, outstanding as of June 30, 2008, are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 1,265,000 $ 3,259,902 $ 4,524,902 
2010 1,340,000 3,207,802 4,547,802 
2011 1,415,000 3,152,702 4,567,702 
2012 1,485,000 3,094,702 4,579,702 
2013 1,560,000 3,033,802 4,593,802 

2014-2018 8,890,000 14,142,106 23,032,106 
2019-2023 10,900,000 12,001,547 22,901,547 
2024-2028 13,530,000 9,013,000 22,543,000 
2029-2033 16,910,000 5,225,000 22,135,000 
2034-2038 12.140,000 928 750 13,068,750 

$ 69.435,000 $ 57,059,313 $126,494,313 

Certificates of Participation (COPs) 

On August 24, 2005, the West Contra Costa Unified School District Financing 
Corporation issued Certificates of Participation (COPs). The proceeds of this issuance 
were used to refund a 1994 COPS issuance. Semi-annual payments are made and 
include interest at amounts varying from 4.34% to 5. 15%. 

Scheduled payments for the COPs are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 285,000 $ 502,360 $ 787,360 
2010 435,000 489,278 924,278 
2011 455,000 469,008 924,008 

'2012 475,000 447,576 922,576 
2013 500,000 424,966 924,966 

2014-2018 2,905,000 1 '731,406 4,636,406 
2019-2023 3,715,000 923,720 4,638,720 
2024-2028 1,295,000 66 692 1,361,692 

$ 10,065,000 ~ 5,055,006 ~ 15, 120,Q06 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Emergency Apportionment Loan 

In July 1990, the District obtained an emergency apportionment loan from the State of 
California in the amount of $9,525,000. In May 1991, the District received an additional 
loan from the State of California for $19,000,000 under the conditions of a court order. 
The State of California agreed to restructure the repayment of these loans on June 30, 
1993. The restructure provided for the consolidation of the two loans and a 15 year 
repayment period with annual interest rate of 4.543%. On October 13, 1997, the State 
of California agreed to restructure the remaining debt following the District's fiscal year 
1997-98 payment. The outstanding balance is to be repaid using the straight line 
amortization method over a 20 year term and bearing interest at 5.692%. Additional 
legislation, Assembly Bill 2756 on June 21, 2004, reduced the interest rate of the 
repayment of the emergency apportionment thereby reducing annual payments by 
approximately $400,000. Payments are made on February 1 of each year from any 
available funds of the District and are calculated using a future interest rate of 1.532%. 

The revised future principal and interest payments of the loan are as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 Principal Interest Total 

2009 $ 1,221,093 $ 200,509 $ 1,421,602 
2010 1,239,800 181,802 1,421,602 
2011 1,258,794 162,808 1,421,602 
2012 1,278,078 143,524 1,421,602 
2013 1,297,658 123,944 1,421,602 

2014-2018 6.792,651 315 354 7.108,005 

$ 13,088,074 $ 1,127,941 $ 14.216.015 

Volunta!Y Integration Plan 

The Voluntary integration Program debt represents cost disallowances of $7,652,000 
based on state audits of program expenditures in fiscal years 1988-89 and 1989-90. 
Subsequently, the District entered into an agreement with the State of California to 
repay this amount beginning in June 1993. During fiscal year 1992·93, the original 
agreement was restructured to allow the District to make the June 30, 1992, payment of 
$200,000 as scheduled, with the remaining balance scheduled to be repaid beginning in 
1998. Repayment of the voluntary integration debt is shown as follows: 

Year Ending Total 
June 30 Payments 

2009 $ 790,000 
2010 1,000,000 
2011 1,000,000 
2012 ~72 000 

Total payments $ 3,662.000 
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Computer Equipment Acquisition Loan 

During fiscal year 1989-90, the District financed the acquisition of an administrative and 
instructional computer system with a loan from IBM. The acquired assets collateralized 
the loans. Subsequent to June 30, 1993, the District restructured the debt to allow for 
one payment during fiscal year 1993-94 and the remaining payments of $3,623,7 44, 
represented by $2,459,111 of principal and $1,164,633 of interest, payable in fiscal 
years 2007-08 through 2015-16. The Pooled Money investment rate of 4.402% as of 
June 30, 1994, was used to impute the interest costs implicit in the repayment amounts. 
For the year ended June 30, 2008, the accrued imputed interest is $197,857. 
Therefore, the carrying amount of the loan at June 30, 2008 is $4,692,566. 

Year Ending 
June 30 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Less amount representing interest 

Total payments 

Child Care Facilities Loan 

Total 
· Payments 

$ 625,000 
625,000 
625,000 
625,000 
625,000 
625,000 
625,000 
625 000 

5,000,000 

(307.434) 

$ 4,692,566 

On February 7, 2001, the District received a no-interest loan from the California 
Department of Education for the development and acquisition of child care facilities. 
The District received an initial amount of $573,048 with the District repaying $33,000 of 
the loan. In 2002-03, the District received an additional $598,060. The carrying balance 
of the loan as of June 30, 2008 is $418,919. The loan balance is to be repaid in ten 
annual installments. 

The following is a schedule of loan repayments: 

Year Ending 
June 30 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 

Total payments 
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~ 

Total 
Payments 

97,524 
97,524 
97,524 

126 347 

418,919 
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2008 is shown 
below: 

Balance Balance Amounts 
July 1, June 30, Due Within 
2007 Additions Deductions 2008 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
General Obligation Bonds $ 536,503,517 $ 9,487,090 $ 527,016,427 $ 10,796,196 
Accreted interest * 9,504,043 $ 11,961,909 21,465,952 
Certificates of Participation 10,340,000 275,000 10,065,000 285,000 
Emergency Apportionment 

Loan 14,290,742 1,202,668 13,088,074 1,221,093 
Voluntary Integration Plan 4,452,000 790,000 3,662,000 790,000 
Computer equipment 

acquisition loan 4,494,709 197,857 4,692,566 625,000 
Child care facilities loan 516,443 97,524 418,919 97,524 
OPEB Obligation 24,469,980 24,469,980 
Compensated absences 3 517 902 317 586 3,200,316 3,200 316 

Total ~ 583 619 356 ~ 36,629 746 ~ 12169868 ~ 608 079,2~4 ~ 17,015 129 

• The accreted interest amounts are included in the future interest payments reflected on pages 39-45. 

Payments on the General Obligation Bonds are made from the Bond Interest and 
Redemption Fund. Payments on the Certificates of Participation are made from the 
Corporation Debt Service Fund. Payments on the Emergency Apportionment Loan are 
made from the Debt Service Fund. Payments on the Voluntary Integration Plan are 
made from the General Fund. Payments on the child care facilities acquisition loan are 
made from the Child Development Fund. Payments on compensated absences are 
made from the fund for which the related employee worked. 

7. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Restricted net assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2008: 

Restricted for revolving cash 
Restricted for prepaid expenses 
Restricted for stores inventory 
Restricted for unspent categorical 

program revenues 
Restricted for future payment of 

self-insured claims 
Restricted for special revenues 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for capital projects 
Restricted for retiree benefits 

Total restricted net assets 
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Governmental 
Activities 

$ 70,000 
2,077,479 

640,311 

24,272,690 

1,429,025 
9,424,352 

25,893,539 
56,258,980 

~120,066,376 

Fiduciary 
Funds 

~ 9,564,288 

~ 9,564 288 
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B. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
maintained by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members 
of the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS}, and classified employees are 
members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaiPERS). 

Plan Description and Provisions 

California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaiPERS) 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CaiPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public 
employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CaiPERS. 
The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, 
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are 
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' 
Retirement Law. CaiPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report 
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of 
the CaiPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CaiPERS Executive 
Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814. 

Funding Policy 

Active plan members are required to contribute 7% of their salary and the District is 
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CaiPERS Board of 
Administration. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2007-2008 was 
9.306% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are 
established by state statute. The District's contributions to CaiPERS for the fiscal years 
ending June 30, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were $3,069,566, $3,258,705 and $3,738,408, 
respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. 

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) 

Plan Description 

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost­
sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension 
plan administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability and survivor 
benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as 
legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS issues a 
separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be 
obtained from the STRS Executive Office, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, 
California 95826. 
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8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Plan Description and Provisions (Continued) 

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS) (Continued) 

Funding Policy 

Active plan members are required to contribute 8% of their salary. The required 
employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2007-2008 was 8.25% of annual payroll. The 
contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. The 
District's contributions to STRS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2006, 2007 and 
2008 were $8,401,418, $9,146,343 and $9,928,367, respectively, and equal 100% of 
the required contributions for each year. 

9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 8, the District provides post­
employment health benefits to all employees (1} hired prior to December 31, 2006 and 
who have attained five continuous years of service with the District (as defined by 
PERS/STRS); (2) are hired after January 1, 2007 and have attained ten continuous 
years of service with the District (as defined by PERS/STRS). Dental benefits are 
provided to employees who meet the rule of "75" (number of years worked plus age 
equals 75 or more) to qualify for post employment dental benefits. As of 
June 30, 2008, a total of 2,114 retirees met the health care benefit requirement. 

The District offers retirees a choice of two health maintenance organizations (HMO's) for 
health benefits and a supplemental Medicare Part A Plan; dental benefits are offered 
through one insurer. The District pays 100% for the monthly HMO up to the cost of the 
CaiPERS Northern California Blue Shield health plan and 100% dental for eligible 
employees and their spouses who retired prior to January 1, 2007. Employees who 
retire after January 1, 2007 are covered by the terms of their bargaining union that are 
in effect at their retirement date. All eligible retirees and their spouses who qualify for 
Medicare benefits must apply for and pay for the Part B premium as required by law. 
Expenditures for post-employment health care benefits are recognized when paid. 
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

Annual OPES Cost and Net OPES Obligation 

The District's annual other postemployment benefit (OPES) cost (expense) is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover 
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) 
over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of 
the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, 
and changes in the District's net OPES obligation: 

Annual required contribution 

Interest on net OPES obligation 

Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual OPES cost 

Contributions made 

Increase in net OPES obligation 

Net OPES obligation - beginning of year 

Net OPES obligation - end of year 

$ 38,986,982 

38,986,982 

14,517,002 

24,469,980 

$ 24,469,980 

The District's annual OPES cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the 
plan, and the net OPES obligation for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2008 

Annual 
OPES Cost 

$ 38,986,982 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

Percentage 
of Annual 

OPES Cost 
Contributed 

37.23% 

Net OPES 
Obligation 

$ 24,469,980 

As of June 30, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 1.7 percent 
funded. The actuarial liability for benefits was was $495,877,303 and the actuarial value 
of assets was zero, resulting in a unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
$495,877,303. However, the District has set aside $9,564,288 in the Retiree Benefits 
Trust Fund for future payment of these benefits. 
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued) 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and 
the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about 
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the 
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of 
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the July 1, 2007 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions included a 4.5 percent investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment 
returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated based on the 
funded level of the plan on the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate 
of 8.5 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.5 percent after 10 
years. Both rates included a 3.25 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of 
assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in 
the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized 
as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization 
period at June 30, 2008, was 29 years. 

10. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS 

Contra Costa County Schools Insurance Group 

The District is a member with other school districts of a Joint Powers Authority, Contra 
Costa County Schools Insurance Group (CCCSIG), for the operation of a common risk 
management and insurance program for workers' compensation coverage. The 
following is a summary of financial information for CCCSIG at June 30, 2008: 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total net assets 
Total revenues 
Total expenses 
Change in net assets 
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$ 86,398,920 
$ 70,146,611 
$ 16,252,309 
$ 31' 170,705 
$ 17,367,825 
$ 13,802,880 
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10. JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS 

Northern California Regional Liability Excess Fund (Nor Cal RelieD 

The District is a member with other agencies of a Joint Powers Authority, Northern 
California Regional Liability Excess Fund (Nor Cal Relief), for the operation of a 
common risk management and insurance program for property and liability coverage. 
The following is a summary of financial information for Nor Cal Relief at June 30, 2008: 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total net assets 
Total revenues 
Total expenses 
Change in net assets 

$ 42,279,966 
$ 35,209,485 
$ 7,070,481 
$ 40,376,865 
$ 38,450,808 
$ 1,926,057 

The relationship between the District and the Joint Powers Authorities is such that the 
Joint Powers Authorities are not component units of the District for financial reporting 
purposes. 

11. CONTINGENCIES 

The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in ordinary course of 
business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to 
these actions will not materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the 
District. 

The District has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject 
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could result in 
expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is management's opinion that 
any required reimbursements or future revenue offsets subsequently determined will not 
have a material effect on the District's financial position. 

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On July 1, 2008, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Election 2005, Series B, 
totaling $120,000,000. The Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County is empowered 
and obligated to annually levy ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or amount, 
upon all property subject to taxation within the District for the payment of interest, 
principal and premium, if any. The bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 5.00% to 
6.00% and are scheduled to mature in August 2028. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL 

MAJOR FUND- GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Budget 

Original Final 

Revenues: 
Revenue limit sources: 

State apportionment $ 105,733,295 $ 97,626,210 
Local sources 61 699,470 69 175,645 

Total revenue limit 167 432 765 166,801,855 

Federal sources 24,347,195 31,595,544 
Other &tate sources 66,541,577 75,948,179 
Other local sources 19 531,245 21653,990 

Total revenues 277,852,782 295 999,568 

Expenditures: 
Certificated salaries 115,645,258 126,796,14 7 
Classified sa/aries 40,330,721 44,896,436 
Employee benefits 68,686,736 69,378,067 
Books and supplies 12,334,607 21,394,752 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 37,380,806 49,256,193 
Capital outlay 634,278 4,099,685 
Other <lutgo 60,000 52,000 
Indirect cash reimbursement (802,241) (802,241) 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 300,000 300,000 
Interest 197,8§7 197 857 

Total expenditures 274,768,022 315,568,896 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 3,084,7§0 (19,569,328) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 3,841,462 3,841,156 
Operating transfers out (2,974,812) (3 883 833) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 866 6§0 (42 677) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, July 1, 2007 

Fund balance, June 30, 2008 

3,951,410 (19,612,005) 

48,053,9~6 48,053 996 

$ 52,005 4Q6 ~ 28,441 291 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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Actual 

$ 99,648,215 
67 169,592 

166 817 807 

25,621,521 
71,167,149 
21,327,703 

284,934,180 

121,060,184 
44,592,168 
66,089,445 
12,340,626 

41,425,355 
889,702 

51,834 
(802,241) 

790,000 

286 437 073 

(1 ,502,893) 

2,839,820 
{3,551 157) 

(711 337) 

(2,214,230) 

48,053 996 

~ 45,839,766 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable! 

$ 2,022,005 
(2,006 053) 

15 952 

(5,974,023) 
(4,781 ,030) 

(326,287) 

(11 065,388) 

5,735,963 
304,268 

3,288,622 
9,054,126 

7,830,838 
3,209,983 

166 

(490,000) 
197 857 

29,131 823 

18,066,435 

(1 ,001 ,336) 
332 676 

(668 660) 

17,397,775 

~ 17,397,775 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET (NON-GAAP} AND ACTUAL 

Revenues: 
Other local sources 

Expenditures: 
Classified salaries 
Employee benefits 
Books and supplies 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues under 
expenditures 

Other financing uses: 
Operating transfers out 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, July 1, 2007 

Fund balance, June 30, 2008 

MAJOR FUND- BUILDING FUND 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Budget 

Original Final 

$ 5,415,000 ~ 6,00§ 809 

765,886 1,006,789 
329,755 408,748 

3,063,749 

1,031,575 4,525,942 
169,258 815 162,929 534 

171386031 171 934 762 

(165,971,031} (165,928,953} 

(15,994 011) (2,539,820) 

(181,965,042) (168,468, 773} 

191 878,162 191 878 162 

$ ~913,120 i 23,409 389 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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Actual 

~ 5,764 674 

867,437 
326,728 

2,180,367 

3,511,475 
121 366,873 

128,252,880 

(122,488,206} 

(2,539,820) 

(125,028,026} 

191,878 162 

~ 66,850 136 

Variance 
Favorable 

!Unfavorable) 

~ (241,135} 

139,352 
82,020 

883,382 

1,014,467 
41562661 

43 681,882 

43,440,747 

43,440,747 

~ 43,440 747 



ASSETS 

Cash in County Treasury 
Cash on hand and in banks 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 
Cash awaiting deposit 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Stores inventory 

T a tal assets 

Liabilities: 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

Tala/liabilities 

Fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

June 30, 2008 

Adult 
Education 

Fund 

2,016,654 
19,025 

1,699,879 
504,344 

4,239.902 

297,858 
204,866 

502,724 

3.737,178 

4,239.902 

Child 
Development 

Fund 

$ 324,904 

15,327 

$ 340.231 

$ 121,158 

121,158 

219 073 

$ 340.231 

(Continued) 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Cafeteria 
Fund 

62,887 
13,582 

1,300 

2,718,867 

410 272 

3.206.908 

294,925 

1 850,000 

2,144,925 

1 061 983 

3,206,908 

Special Reserve 
for Other Than 

Deferred Capital Outlay 
Maintenance Projects 

Fund Fund 

$ 4,983,914 $ 289,090 

2,002 
22,601 710 

$ 5.006.515 $ 291.802 

$ 481,927 

481,927 

4 524 588 $ 291 802 

$_ 5 006,5 Ui $ 291.802 

Subtotal 

$ 7,677,449 
32,607 

1,300 
1,701,881 
3,261,849 

410 272 

$ 13,08~358 

$ 1 '195,868 
204,866 

1,850,000 

3,250,734 

9,834,624 

$ 13.0~358 



ASSETS 

Cash in County Treasury 
Cash on hand and in banks 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 
Cash awatting deposit 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Stores inventory 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES 

Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

$ 

$ 

$ 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Capital 
Facilities 

Fund 

3,037,617 

465,882 

1,111,617 
56,005 

1,850,000 

6.521.121 

1,611,523 

1,611,523 

4.909.598 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
(Continued) 

June 30, 2008 

Special 
Reserve for 

Capital OuUay 
Projects 

Fund 

$ 6,442,437 

14,062 

$ 6.456.499 

$ 31,111 
2,792,796 

2,823,907 

3.632.592 

$ 

County 
School 

Facilities 
Fund 

5,041,839 

22,346 

~.064.185 

$ _5.064.185 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Bond 
Interest and 
Redemption 

Fund 

20,321,654 

62,007 

20,383,661 

20.383,661 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Corporation 
Debt 

Service 
Fund 

1,289,459 

1.289.459 

1.289.459 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

3,703,933 

4,676,324 
54,337 

1,751,608 

10.186.202 

1_0.186.202 

Total 

$ 46,224,929 
32,607 

1,755,341 
1,300 

7,489,822 
3,470,606 
3,601,608 

410 272 

$ 62,986.485 

$ 2,838,502 
2,997,662 
1,850,000 

7,686,164 

55.300.321 

$ 6,521,121 $ 6.456.499 $ 5.064185 $ 20,383.661 $ 1.289.459 $ 10186,202 $ 62.986485 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNirlt:U ~\,;.MUUL UIO) I rm ... 1 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Special Reserve 
for Other Than 

Adult Child Deferred Capital Outlay 
Education Development Cafeteria Maintenance Projects 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Subtotal 
Revenues: 

Federal sources $ 348,607 $ 305,990 $ 8,555,850 $ 9,210,447 
Other slate sources 3,999,516 2,529,258 800,383 $ 1,220,442 8,549,599 
Other local sources 448 489 167 484 1 520 435 197 913 ~ 19 359 2,353 680 

Total revenues 4 796 612 3 002,732 10 876 668 1418355 19 359 20 113.726 

Expenditures: 
Certificated salaries 2,194,655 1,319.452 3,514,107 
Classified salaries 813,715 825,640 4,103,779 466 5,743,600 
Employee benefits 693,844 761,125 1,718,967 50 3,173,986 
Books and supplies 165,614 60,525 4,542,689 4,768,828 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 331,225 91,152 297,138 630,155 1,349,670 
Capital outlay 49,490 57,707 1,664,753 1,771,950 
Indirect cash reimbursement 158,046 149,868 494,327 802.241 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 97,524 97,524 
Interest 

T alai expenditures 4.357.099 3.3_5<!.776 11.214,607 2.295.424 21.221.906 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 439.!513 (3!52,044) (33U!39) (877.0_69) 19.359 (1.108.180) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 1,339,820 1,339,820 
Operating transfers out (300 000) (300 000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1 339 820 (300 000)' 1 039 820 

Net change in fund balances 439,!513 (352.044) (337,939) 462,751 (280,641) (68,360) 

Fund balances, July 1, 2007 3 297 665 571 117 1 399,922 4 061 837 572 443 9 902 984 

Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ 3,73L178 ~ 219,073 $ 1 ,06_lll83 $ 4.524,588 $ 291.802 $ 9.834.624 

(Continued) 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

Revenues: 
Federal sources 
Other stale sources 
Other local sources $ 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Certificated salaries 
Classified salaries 
Employee benefits 
Books and supplies 
Contract services and operating 

expenditures 
Capital outlay 
Indirect cost reimbursement 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, July 1, 2007 

Fund balances, June 30, 2008 

ALL NON-MAJOR FUNDS 
(Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Special 
Reserve for County 

Capital Capital Outlay School 
Facilities Projects Facilities 

Fund Fund Fund 

$ 156,172 $ 
2,373 524 2 923 242 ~ 192,995 

2 373 524 3079414 192 995 

5,324 (17,716) 

712,524 94,Q43 
7,476,257 338,896 

8 194 105 432 939 !17,716) 

(5.820.581) 2,646,475 --- 210.711 

{12,093) 

{12 093) 

(5,820,581) 2,634,382 210,711 

10 730 179 998 210 4 853474 

4.909.598 $ 3.632.sa2 i_____9,064.185 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 

"0 

Bond Corporation 
Interest and Debt 
Redemption Service 

Fund __ F_und 

320,699 
29 224 806 ~ 30,823 

29,545,505 30823 

9,487,090 275,000 
19 937 568 514 735 

29.424.658 789.735 

120.847 ___1758.912) 

1,040,066 

1 040 066 

120,847 281,154 

20,262,814 1,008,305 

20.38M61 $ 1.289.459 

Debt 
Service 
Fund Total 

$ 9,210,447 
9,026,470 

~ 419,080 37 518 150 

419 080 55,755 067 

3,514,107 
5,743,600 
3,173,986 
4,756,436 

2,156,237 
9,587,103 

802,241 

1,202,668 11,062,282 
218 934 20 671 237 

1.421.602 61.467.229 

(1.002,522) _____lti12.162) 

1,183,364 3,563,250 
{312,093) 

1 183 364 3 251 157 

180,642 (2,461 ,005) 

10,005,360 57 761 326 

$ 10.186.202 $ 55.300.321 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ORGANIZATION 

June 30, 2008 

West Contra Costa Unified School District became established as the Richmond Unified 
School District on July 1, 1965, and, with the passage of AB 535, was renamed the West 
Contra Costa Unified School District on March 17, 1993. The District is comprised of an area of 
approximately 112 square miles located in Contra Costa County in the State of California. 
There were no changes in the boundaries of the District during the current year. The District is 
currently operating one special education pre-school, thirty seven elementary, one kindergarten 
through eight, six middle, one middle/high and five high schools. The District also maintains 
eight alternative high schools, an elementary community day school and a school for continuing 
adult education. 

Name 

Ms. Karen Pfeifer 
Ms. Madeline Kronenberg 
Mr. Charles Ramsey 
Mr. David Brown 
Ms. Audrey Miles 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Office 

President 
Clerk 

Member 
Member 
Member 

ADMINISTRATION 

Bruce Harter, Ph.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Alan DeiSimone 

Term Expires 

December 1 , 2008 
December 1, 2010 
December 1, 2010 
December 1, 2008 
December 1, 2010 

Interim Assistant Superintendent for Student Support Services/Safety 

Jeff Edmison 
Associate Superintendent for Operations 

Wendell Greer 
Associate Superintendent, K-12 

Sheri Gamba 
Associate Superintendent for Business Services 

Jessica Romeo 
Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 

Nia Rashidchi 
Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATIENDANCE 

Elementary: 
Kindergarten 
First through Third 
Fourth through Eighth 
Home and Hospital 
Special Education 
Non Public Schools 
Community Day School 
Opportunity Schools 

Total Elementary 

Secondary: 
Regular Classes 
Special Education 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Compulsory Continuation Education 
Opportunity Schools 
Home and Hospital 
Non Public Schools 

Total Secondary 

Classes for Adults: 
Concurrently Enrolled 
Classes for Adults 

Total for Adults 

Second 
Period 
Report 

2,278 
6,839 
9,887 

3 
934 

26 
19 
46 

20 032 

7,204 
515 
351 

13 
9 

54 

8 146 

7 
1 303 

1 310 

29488 

Annual 
Report 

2,278 
6,825 
9,904 

4 
958 

28 
22 
46 

20 065 

7,114 
501 
347 

13 
11 
57 

8 043 

11 
1 364 

1 375 

29 483 

Hours of Attendance 

Summer School: 
Elementary 
Secondary 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 
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221,651 222,748 
121 088 121.088 

342 739 ~43,836 



Grade Level 

Kindergarten 

Grade 1 

Grade 2 

Grade 3 

Grade 4 

Grade 5 

Grade 6 

Grade 7 

Grade 8 

Grade 9 

Grade 10 

Grade 11 

Grade 12 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

1986-87 
Minutes 
Require-

ment 

36,000 

50,400 

50,400 

50,400 

54,000 

54,000 

54,000 

54,000 

54,000 

64,800 

64,800 

64,800 

64,800 

1982-83 2007-08 
Actual Actual 

Minutes Minutes 

31,500 36,000 

45,160 50,490 

45,160 50,490 

45,160 50,490 

45,160 54,070 

45,160 54,070 

45,160 54,070 

45,160 57,050 

45,160 57,050 

52,898 64,989 

52,898 64,989 

52,898 64,989 

52,898 64,989 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 
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Number 
of Days 

Traditional 
Calendar 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

180 

Status 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 

In Compliance 



Federal 
Catalog 
Number 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

Pass­
Through 

Entity 
Identifying 

Number 

U. S. Department of Education 

Special Education Cluster: 
84.027 Special Education IDEA: Basic Local Assistance 

Entitlement, Part B, Sec. 611 (Formerly 94-142) 13379 
84.027A Special Education IDEA: Preschool Local Entitle-

ment, Part B, Sec. 611 (Age 3-5) 13682 
84.027A Special Education IDEA: Local Staff Development 

Grants, Part B, Sec. 611 13613 
84.027 Special Education -Alternative Dispute Resolution, 

Part B, sec. 611 13007 
84.027 Special Education IDEA: Quality Assurance & Focused 

Monitoring, Part B, Sec. 611 13693 
64.173 Special Education IDEA: Preschool Grant, Part B, 

Sec 619 (Age 3-4-5) 13430 
84.027 Special Education IDEA: Local Assistance Part B, 

Sec 611 Private School ISPs 10115 

Subtotal Special Education Cluster 

84.010 NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low Income 
and Neglected 14329 

84.010 NCLB: Title I, Comprehensive School Reform 
(SB IX Immediate lntervention/Underperforming 
Schools) 13966 

84.186 NCLB: Title IV, Safe and Drug Free Schools and 
Communities, Formula Grants 14347 

84.216 NCLB: Title I, Capital Expenses/Private Schools 13953 
84.287 NCLB: Title IV, 21st Century Community Centers 

Learning Program 14350 
84.366 Mathematics and Science Partnerships 
84.316 NCLB: Title II, Improving Teacher Quality 14341 
84.318 NCLB: Title II, Part D, Enhancing Education Through 

Technology (EETI), Formula Grants 14334 
84.318 NCLB: Title II, Part D, Enhancing Education Through 

Technology (EETI), Competitive Grants 14334 
84.298 NCLB: Title VI, Innovative Education 14326 
84.357 NCLB: Title I, Part B, Reading First Program - LEA 

Subgrant 14328 
84.365 NCLB: Title Ill Immigrant Education Program 14346 
64365 NCLB: Title Ill, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 

Student Program 10084 
84.181 Special Education IDEA: Early Intervention Grants, 

Part C 23761 

(Continued) 
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$ 

Federal 
Expend­

itures 

5,633,334 

449,028 

5,172 

15,000 

56,974 

346,417 

40 969 

6 546,894 

9,301,407 

43,314 

143,465 
6,500 

1,741,551 
1,072,531 
1,314,175 

81,083 

19,544 
685,235 

1,509,567 
73,430 

705,681 

83,664 



Federal 
Catalog 
Number 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
(Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Pass-
Through 

Entity 
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Identifying 

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number 

U.S. Department of Education (Continued) 

84.215E Elementary Counseling PR Award 
84.048 Vocational Programs: Voc. and Applied Tech. Prep, 

Title II, Sec. 203 (Carl Perkins Act) 
84.196 Homeless Children Education (Stewart McKinney) 

Grants 
84.330 Advanced Placement Test Fee 
84.215 Character Education 

84.1848 Mentoring Program Grants 
84.351C Learning Without Borders 
84.126A Transition Program - Department of Rehabilitation 
84.002A Adult Education: Adult Basic Education and ESL 
84.002A Adult Education: Adult Secondary Education 
84.002 Adult Education: Family Literacy 

84.002A Adult Education: English Literacy and Civics 
Education 

84.002A Adult Education: Voc. and Applied Tech Education 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

u.s. Department of Health and Human Services 

us. 

93.778 Department of Health Services: Medi-Cal Billing 
Option (DHS) 

94.004 CaiServe - Learn and Serve America Service Grants 
93.575 Child Development: Quality Improvement-

Playground Equipment 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Department of Agriculture 

10.555 
10.553 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 
School Programs (NSL Sec. 4) 
School Programs (School Breakfast Basic) 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Total Federal Programs 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 
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13920 

13697 
13917 
03063 

• 
• 
• 

13973 
13978 
13977 

14109 
14109 

10013 
13161 

13942 

13391 
13390 

Federal 
Expend-

itures 

$ 429,422 

303,643 

119,921 
366,869 
107,877 
105,624 
394,308 
215,840 
129,640 

17,281 
128,250 

50,326 
23 110 

25,720 152 

439,064 
113,437 

3 464 

555 965 

8,037,153 
518 698 

8 555 851 

~ 34,831,968 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

There were no audit adjustments proposed to any funds of the District. 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 
(In Thousands) 

(Budget) 
2009 2008 2007 2006 

General Fund 

Revenues and other 
financing sources $ 275.832 $ 287 774 $ 290.701 $ 270,289 

Expenditures 282,929 286,437 272,545 259,093 
Other uses and transfers out 787 3 551 3 238 4 378 

Total outgo 283 716 289 988 275 783 263 471 

Change in fund balance $ (7 884) $ (2 214) $ 14,918 $ 6,818 

Ending fund balance $ 37 956 $ 45 840 $ 48,054 $ 33.136 

Available reserves $ 12 794 $ 20,360 $ 17.600 $ 13,419 

Designated for economic 
uncertainties $ 9,000 $ 9.000 $ 9,080 $ 8.240 

Undesignated fund balance $ 3 794 $ 11,360 $ 8,520 ~ 5179 

Available reserves as 
percentages of total 
outgo 4.51% 7.02% 6.38% 5.09% 

All Funds 

Total long-term liabilities $ 710,439 $ 608,079 $ 583,619 $ 583,389 

Average daily attendance 
at P-2, excluding Adult 
and Charter School 27 8li!5 28 178 28 413 29 293 

The General Fund fund balance has increased by $19,522 over the past three years. The fiscal year 
2008-2009 budget projects a decrease of $7,884. For a district this size, the State of California 
recommends available reserves of at least 3 percent of total General Fund expenditures, transfers out, 
and other uses. The District has met this requirement. 

The District has incurred operating surpluses in two of the past three years, and anticipates incurring an 
operating deficit during the 2008-2009 fiscal year. 

Total long-term liabilities have increased by $24,690 over the past two years, due primarily to the issuance 
of General Obligation Bonds (Note 6 to the financial statements). 

Average daily attendance has decreased by 1,115 over the past two years. The District anticipates a 
decrease of 283 ADA for the 2008-2009 fiscal year. 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 

65 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Charter Schools Chartered by District 

Manzanita Charter School 
Leadership High Charter School 
Richmond College Prep K-5 
West County Community High School 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 
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Included in District 
Financial Statements, or 

Separate Report 

Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 
Separate Report 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXCESS SICK LEAVE 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Contract or 
Bargaining Agreement 

Contract allows for 24 days of sick leave. 

Contract allows for 15 days of sick leave. 

Title of Employee 

Superintendent 

Assistant Superintendent 

See accompanying notes to 
supplementary information. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

1. PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

A Schedule of Average Daily Attendance 

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending 
classes of the District. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal 
standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state funds are 
made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the 
attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs. 

8 Schedule of Instructional Time 

The District has received incentive funding for increasing instructional time as 
provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day and Year. This 
schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by 
the District, and whether the District complied with the provisions of Education 
Code Sections 46201 through 46206. 

C Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards 

OMB Circular A-133 requires a disclosure of the financial activities of all 
federally funded programs. This schedule was preparecl to comply with A-133 
requirements, and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

D Reconciliation of Unaudited Actual Financial Report with Audited Financial 
Statements 

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the Unaudited 
Actual Financial Report to the audited financial statements. 

E Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 

This schedule provides information on the District's financial condition over the 
past three years and its anticipated condition for the 2008-2009 fiscal year, as 
required by the State Controller's Office. 

F Schedule of Charter Schools 

This schedule provicles information for the California Department of Education 
to monitor financial reporting by Charter Schools. 

G Schedule of Excess Sick Leave 

This schedule provides information to the California State Teachers' Retirement 
System to monitor the granting of excess sick leave by school districts. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Continued) 

2. EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

Education Code Section 14502 requires certain disclosure in the financial statements of 
districts which adopt Early Retirement Incentive Programs pursuant to Education Code 
Sections 22714 and 44929. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the District did not 
adopt this program. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Honorable Board of Education 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Richmond, California 

We have audited the compliance of West Contra Costa Unified School District with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the State of California's Standards and 
Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local Educational Agencies (the "Audit Guide") to the 
state laws and regulations listed below for the year ended June 30, 2008. Compliance with the 
requirements of state laws and regulations is the responsibility of West Contra Costa Unified 
School District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on West Contra 
Costa Unified School District's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the State of California's Standards and Procedures for Audits of California K-12 Local 
Educational Agencies. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the state laws and regulations listed 
below occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about West Contra 
Costa Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
of West Contra Costa Unified School District's compliance with those requirements. 

Audit Guide Procedures 
Description Procedures Performed 

Regular and Special Day Classes 8 Yes 
Kindergarten Continuance 3 Yes 
Independent Study 23 Yes 
Continuation Education 10 Yes 
Adult Education 9 Yes 
Regional Occupational Center and Programs 6 No, see below 
Instructional Time: 

School Districts 6 
County Offices of Education 3 No, see below 

Community Day Schools 9 No, see below 
Morgan-Hart Class Size Reduction Program 7 No, see below 
Instructional Materials: 

General requirements 12 Yes 
Grades K-8 1 Yes 
Grades 9-12 1 Yes 

Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers 1 Yes 
Classroom Teacher Salaries 1 Yes 
Early Retirement Incentive Program 4 No, see below 
Gann Limit Calculation 1 Yes 
School Construction Funds: 

School District Bonds 3 No, see below 
State School Facilities Funds 1 No, see below 

Excess Sick Leave 3 Yes 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

(Continued) 

Description 

Notification of Right to Elect California State Teachers 
Retirement System (CaiSTRS) Membership 

Proposition 20 Lottery Funds 
State Lottery Funds 
California School Age Families Education (Cal-SAFE) Program 
School Accountability Report Card 
Mathematics and Reading Professional Development 
Class Size Reduction Program: 

General requirements 
Option one classes 
Option two classes 
Districts with only one school serving K-3 

After School Education and Safety Program: 
General requirements 
After school 
Before school 

Contemporaneous Records of Attendance, 
for charter schools 

Mode of Instruction, for charter schools 
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study, 

for charter schools 
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based 

Instruction, for charter schools 
Annual Instructional Minutes- Classroom-Based, 

for charter schools 

Audit Guide 
Procedures 

1 
2 
2 
3 
3 
4 

7 
3 
4 
4 

4 
4 
5 

1 
1 

15 

3 

3 

Procedures 
Performed 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

No, see below 
No, see below 

Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

No, see below 
No, see below 

Yes 
Yes 

No, see below 

No, see below 
No, see below 

No, see below 

No, see below 

No, see below 

We did not perform any procedures related to Regional Occupational Center Program 
because the District does not offer this program. 

We did not perform any procedures related to the Instructional Time for County Offices 
of Education because the District is not a County Office of Education. 

We did not perform testing for Community Day Schools because the ADA reported is 
below the level required for testing. 

We did not perform any procedures related to Morgan-Hart Class Size Reduction 
because the District does not participate in the program. 

We did not perform any procedures related to Early Retirement Incentive Program 
because the District did not offer this program in the current year. 

We did not perform any procedures related to School Construction Funds - School 
District Bonds and County School Facilities Fund because the District has only Proposition 39 
Bonds and did have any expenditures from the County School Facilities Fund in the current 
year. 

We did not perform any procedures related to California School Age Families Education 
Program ("Cal-SAFE") because the District did not operate a Cal-SAFE program in the current 
year. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

(Continued) 

The 2007-2008 School Accountability Report Cards specified by Education Code 
Section 33126 are not required to be completed, nor were they completed, prior to the 
completion of our audit procedures for the year ended June 30, 2008. Accordingly, we could 
not perform the portions of audit steps (a), (b) and (c) of Section 19837 of the 2007-2008 Audit 
Guide relating to the comparison of tested data from the 2007-2008 fiscal year to the 2007-
2008 School Accountability Report Cards. 

We did not perform any procedures related to Class Size Reduction Program - Option 
Two classes, and the Districts with only one school serving K-3 because the District does not 
offer Option Two, and the District has more than one school serving K-3. 

We did not perform any procedures related to After School Education and Safety 
Program . "Before School" because the District did not operate a Before School program. 

We did not perform any procedures related to Contemporaneous Records of 
Attendance for charter schools, Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study for charter 
schools, Additional Nonclassroom-Based Instructions for charter schools, Determination of 
Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction for charter schools and Annual Instructional 
Minutes Classroom-Based for charter schools because the District's charter schools are not 
included in the District's financial statements. 

In our opinion, West Contra Costa Unified School District compHed with the state laws 
and regulations referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2008, except as described in the 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs section of this report. Further, based on our 
examination, for items not tested, nothing came to our attention to indicate that West Contra 
Costa Unified School District had not complied with the state laws and regulations. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Education, 
management, the State Controller's Office, the California Department of Education and the 
California Department of Finance, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its 
distribution is not limited. 

Sacramento, California 
December 11, 2008 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Board of Education 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Richmond, California 

We have audited the financial statements of West Contra Costa Unified School District 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 11, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered West Contra Costa Unified School 
District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of West Contra Costa Unified School 
District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion of 
the effectiveness of West Contra Costa Unified School District's internal control over financial 
reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control 
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's ability to 
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a 
misstatement of the District's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be 
prevented or detected by the District's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant 
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
(Continued) 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether West Contra Costa Unified 
School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Education, 
management, the California Department of Education, the California State Controller's Office 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Sacramento, California 
December 11, 2008 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Honorable Board of Education 
West Contra Costa Unified School District 
Richmond, California 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of West Contra Costa Unified School District with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. West Contra Costa Unified School District's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
Schedule of Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of West Contra Costa Unified School District's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on West Contra Costa Unified School District's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. 
Those standards and OMS Circular A-133 require that we· plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about West Contra Costa 
Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination 
on West Contra Costa Unified School District's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, West Contra Costa Unified School District complied, in all material 
respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The ma·nagement of West Contra Costa Unified School District is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered West Contra Costa Unified School District's internal control 
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on compliance but, not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do riot express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of West Contra Costa Unified School District's internal control over 
compliance. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
(Continued) 

Internal Control Over Compliance (Continued) 

A control deficiency in the District's internal control over compliance exists when the 
design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's 
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than 
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the District's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant 
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the 
District's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies 
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Education, 
management, the California Department of Education, the California State Controller's Office 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of 
public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Sacramento, California 
December 11, 2008 
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FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION I ·SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weakness(es)? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weakness(es)? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Circular A-133, 
Section .510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Qualified 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

___ Yes 

Unqualified 

___ Yes 

X No 

X None reported 

X No 

X No 

X None reported 

----<.X,__ No 

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.010 NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low Income 
and Neglected 

84.027, 84.027A, 84.173 
10.553, 10.555 

Special Education Cluster 
Child Nutrition Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

STATE AWARDS 

Internal control over state programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
state programs: 
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___ Yes 

__ Yes 

__ Yes 

Qualified 

----LX,__ No 

X No 

X None reported 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

1. CASH RECONCILIATION (30000) 

Criteria 

Internal Controls- Safeguarding of Assets 

Condition 

One of the District's revolving cash accounts with a balance at June 30, 2008 of $20,000 
in the Self-Insurance Fund, held at a third party administrator, was not reconciled and 
reviewed on a monthly basis. 

There is a potential for misappropriation of assets. 

Cause 

District personnel were not following appropriate reconciliation and review procedures. 

Fiscal Impact 

Not applicable. 

Recommendation 

All bank accounts should be reconciled to the book balance and be reviewed in a timely 
manner. 

Corrective Action Plan 

The District concurs with the finding. This account was created to pay claims and other 
expenses related to our Self Insurance Program and is maintained under contract by our 
third party administrator, Keenan and Associates. This account is reimbursed as 
needed based on detailed invoicing from the administrator, which is reviewed and 
approved by District staff prior to authorizing reimbursement. The District shall review 
and reconcile this account on a monthly basis. 

2. INTERNAL CONTROL- ACCRUED VACATION (30000) 

Criteria 

Internal Controls - Safeguarding of Assets 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION II -FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
(Continued) 

2. INTERNAL CONTROL- ACCRUED VACATION (30000) (Continued) 

Condition 

The District is not enforcing its vacation carryover policy. Employees have exceeded 
their maximum allowable vacation carryover. 

Several employees have accrued vacation in excess of the maximum hours/days 
permitted by policy. Total excess liability at June 30, 2008 is approximately $880,000 

Cause 

The District is not enforcing the approved vacation policy. 

Fiscal Impact 

Not determinable. 

Recommendation 

All employees should be required to take their earned vacation hours/days in the 
respective year. Also, the accrual should stop once an employee has reached the 
maximum permitted per policy. 

Corrective Action Plan 

The District concurs with this finding. The District has implemented procedures to 
reduce the vacation accrual balance. The vacation accrual balance has declined over 
the last two years. The District management will continue to work with their staff to 
reduce the excess vacation accrual to the District's allowable limit. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION Ill -FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

No matters were reported. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION IV- STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

3. STATE COMPLIANCE- ATIENDANCE (10000) 

Criteria 

Attendance Accounting and Reporting in California Public Schools, Title 5, CCR, 
Sections 401 and 421 (b) and Education Code Section 44809 - Each LEA must develop 
and maintain accurate and adequate records to support the attendance reported to the 
State. 

Condition 

At Potola Middle School, we noted one student was improperly counted as present for 
one day. 

The effect of this finding is an extrapolated overstatement of 0.44 ADA 

Cause 

The errors were the result of clerical errors in accounting for attendance. 

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact as the error is below 0.5 ADA. 

Recommendation 

The District should implement procedures to ensure that attendance is correctly 
reported. 

Corrective Action Plan 

The District concurs with this finding. The District will continue to audit attendance 
accounting at school sites and provide additional training to site personnel. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION IV- STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

4. STATE COMPLIANCE- ADULT EDUCATION ATIENDANCE (10000) 

Criteria 

Attendance Accounting and Reporting in California Public Schools, Title 5, CCR, 
Sections 401 and 421 (b) and Education Code Section 44809- Each LEA must develop 
and maintain accurate and adequate records to support the attendance reported to the 
State. 

Condition 

Attendance was recorded for two additional hours for one student. The attendance 
summary did not correspond to the scantrons used to initially record attendance. 

There is an overstatement of 6.45 ADA. 

Cause 

The attendance system did not accurately record attendance based on the attendance 
scantrons. 

Fiscal Impact 

There is no fiscal impact as the Adult Education Program is over the cap for allowable 
hours. 

Recommendation 

The District should implement the necessary controls to ensure an effective review 
process. Within the review process, the District should ensure the attendance system is 
accurately reading the attendance scantrons. 

Corrective Action Plan 

The District concurs with this finding. The District will revise and resubmit the Period 
Two and Annual Reports of Attendance to reflect the change in ADA. The District will 
provide training for the Adult Education attendance personnel. 
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WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

SECTION IV- STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

5. STATE COMPLIANCE- CALSTRS {41000) 

Criteria 

Within thirty days of hire, the District must provide a CaiSTRS membership election form 
consistent with the provisions of subdivision (b) of Education Code Section 22455.5 to 
each newly hired substitute teacher or part-time employee who will render creditable 
service as defined in Education Code Section 22119.5. 

Condition 

CaiSTRS election forms were not included in six personnel files selected for testing. 

The District is not in compliance with State requirements for CaiSTRS membership 
election. 

Cause 

The District does not collect the required CaiSTRS form which documents that 
substitute and part-time employees elected not to participate in CaiSTRS. 

Fiscal Impact 

Not Applicable. 

Recommendation 

The membership election form for CaiSTRS must be provided to all newly hired 
substitute and part time certificated employees and proper follow up should be 
performed to collect the documents from the new employee within 30 days of hire. 

Corrective Action Plan 

The District concurs with this finding. The District has established new procedures to 
ensure that the CaiSTRS election forms, which documents the substitute and/or part 
time employee's election not to participate in CaiSTRS, is in their personnel fie. 
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Finding/Recommendation 

2007-1 

The District is not enforcing its vacation 
carryover policy. Employees have 
exceeded their maximum allowable 
vacation carryover. 

All employees should be required to take 
their earned vacation hours/days in the 
respective year. Also, the vacation 
accrual should stop once an employee 
has reached the maximum permitted per 
policy. 

2007-2 

The District used school construction 
funds totaling $17,716 for the purchase of 
books, maps and globes. 

We recommend the District transfer the 
unapproved expenditure to an appropriate 
resource code during the 2007-08 fiscal 
year and verify all expenditures in the 
school construction fund resource code 
for compliance with State adopted 
standards. 

2007-3 

At Shannon Elementary School, two 
students were claimed for apportionment 
for three days when the District had 
documentation that the studenls were 
actually absent. 

The District should implement procedures 
to ensure that attendance is correctly 
reported. 

Current Status 

Not implemented. 

lmplemenled. 

Not implemented. 
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District Explanation 
If Not Implemented 

See currenl year finding 
#2. 

See current year finding 
#3. 



WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
(Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2008 

Finding/Recommendation 

2007-4 

The Adult Education program at Serra 
Adult Education understated 210.50 
attendance hours. 

We recommend that the District ensure all 
attendance scantrons be submitted prior 
to completing and filing the Period Two 
and Annual Reports of Attendance. 
Additionally, the District should revise and 
resubmit the Period Two and Annual 
Reports of Attendance to reflect the 
additional ADA. 

Current Status 

Not Implemented. 

85 

District Explanation 
If Not Implemented 

See current year finding 
#4. 
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APPENDIXC 

FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATES 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

(2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, 
Series C-1 (Tax-Exempt) 

and 
Series C-2 (Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy- Build America Bonds) 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (this "Disclosure Cettificate") is executed and delivered by the West 
Contra Costa Unified School District (the "District") in connection with the issuance of $52,084,759.30 aggregate 
principal amount of West Contra Costa Unified School District 2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, 
Series C-1 (Tax-Exempt) (the "Series C-1 Bonds'') and $52,825,000 aggregate principal amount of West Contra 
Costa Unified School District 2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-2 (Federally Taxable­
Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds) (the "Series C-2 Bonds," and, together with the Series C-1 Bonds, 
collectively, the "Bonds"). The Series C-1 Bonds are being issued pursuant to a resolution (the "County 
Resolution") adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Contra Costa (the "County") on July 21, 2009, at 
the request of the Board of Education of the District by it< resolution adopted on July 8, 2009 (the "District 
Resolution"). The Series C-2 Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Paying Agent Agreement, dated as of 
September I, 2009, among the County, the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as 
paying agent. The District covenants and agrees as follows: 

SECTION I. Pumose of this Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed and 
delivered by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the 
Patticipating Underwriters in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). 

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the District Resolution, which apply 
to any capitalized te1m used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following 
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as described in, 
Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Ce1tificate. 

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which has or shares the power, directly or indirectly, to make 
investment decisions conceming ownership of any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through nominees, 
depositories or other intermediaries). 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the District, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing 
by the District and which has filed with the District a written acceptance of such designation. 

"Holder'' shall mean the person in whose name any Bond shaH be registered. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section S(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other entity designated or 
authorized by the Secmities and Exchange Commission to receive reports pursuant to the Rule. Until otherwise 
designated by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission, filings with the MSRB are to be made 
through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the MSRB, cmTently located at 
http://emma.msrb.org. 

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply 
with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 
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"Rule" shall mean Rule 1Sc2-12(b)(S) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not Jater than nine months 
after the end of the District's fiscal year (currently ending June 30), commencing with the report for the 2008-09 
Fiscal Year (which is due not later than March 31, 2010), provide to the Participating Underwriter and to the MSRB 
an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual 
Report must be submitted in electronic format, accompanied by such identifying information as is prescribed by the 
MSRB, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided, 
that the audited financial statements of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual 
Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that 
date. If the District's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed 
Event under Section S(c). 

(b) Not later than IS Business Days prior to said date specified in subsection (a) of this 
Section, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the District). lf the 
District is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a) of this Section, 
the District shall send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the District) file 
a report with the District ce11ifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, 
stating the date it was provided to the MSRB. 

SECTION 4. 
reference the following: 

* 

Content of Annual Reports. The District's Annual Report shall contain or include by 

Audited financial statements of the District for the preceding fiscal year, prepared in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California and including all statements and 
information prescribed for inclusion therein by the Controller of the State of California. 
If the District's audited financial statements arc not available by the time the Annual 
Report is required to be provided to the MSRB pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual 
Report shall contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial 
statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the audited financial statements 
shall be provided to the MSRB in the same manner as the Annual Report when they 
become available. 

To the extent not included in the audited financial statement of the District, the Annual Report shall also include the 
following: 

* 

* 

* 

* 

Adopted budget of the District for the cunenl fiscal year, including any interim budget 
reports adopted prior to the date of filing the Annual Report, or a summary thereof. 

Assessed value of taxable property in the District as shown on the recent equalized 
assessment role. 

Property tax levies, collections and delinquencies for the District, for the prior fiscal year, 
if the District is no longer a pmticipant in the County's Teeter Plan. 

Top ten property owners in the District for the then cunent fiscal year, as measured by 
secured assessed valuation, the amount of their respective taxable value, and their 
percentage of total secured assessed value. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be set forth in one or a set of documents or may be included by specific 
reference to other documents, including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, 
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which have been made available to the public on the MSRB's website. If the document included by reference is a 
final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The District shall clearly identify each such other 
document so included by reference. 

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be given, 
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material: 

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
2. Non-payment related defaults; 
3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to peifmm; 
6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; 
7. Modifications lo rights of Holders of the Bonds; 
8. Optional, unscheduled or contingent Bond calls; 
9. Defeasances: 
10. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; 
II. Rating changes. 

(b) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the Distlict 
shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(c) If the District detmmines that knowledge of the occunence of a Listed Event would be 
material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with the 
MSRB. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of the Listed Event described in subsections (a)(8) and (a)(9) of this 
Section need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given 
to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Resolution. The notice of Listed Event must be submitted in electronic 
formal, accompanied by such identifying information as is prescribed by the MSRB. 

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District's obligations under this Disclosure 
Ce11ificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If 
such tetmination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give notice of such termination in 
the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section S(c). 

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge 
any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be 
responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the District pursuant to this Disclosure 
Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the District. 

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Certificate, 
the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Cet1ificate may be waived, 
provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, or 5(a), it may 
only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, 
change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, 
or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the 
original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as 
well as any change in circumstances; and 
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(c) The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, 
materially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall describe 
such amendment in the next Annual Report. and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason 
for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the 
presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the District. In addition, if the 
amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such 
change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Report for the 
year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in nanative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative 
form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared 
on the basis of the former accounting principles. 

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 
prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this 
Disclosure Ce11ificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual 
Report or notice of occun·ence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. 
If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occunence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall have no obligation 
under this Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occmTence of 
a Listed Event. 

SECTION I 0. Default. In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions a.s may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with 
its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate; provided, that any such action may be instituted only in Superior 
Court of the State of California in and for the County of Contra Costa or in U.S. District Court in or nearest to the 
County. The sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with 
this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel pe1formance. 

SECTION II. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the District, 
the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of 
the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

SECTION 12. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid illegal or unenforceable in any respect such invalidity illegality or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other provision hereof. 

SECTION 13. State of California Law Governs. The validity interpretation and performance of this 
Disclosure Certificate shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 

SECTION 14. Signature. This Disclosure Cer1ificate has been executed by the undersigned on the date 
hereof and such signature binds the District to the undertaking herein provided. 

Date: _____ _ 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By ______ ~[~d~ra~f~t~-~n~o~t2f~o~r2sr~·g~n~a~tu~r~e~l ____ __ 
Associate Superintendent 

for Business Services 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE TO THE MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD 
OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of District: 

Name of Bond Issue: 

Date of Issuance: 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
[2009 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, ELECTION OF 2005, SERIES C- l 
(TAX-EXEMPT)] [2009 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, ELECTION OF 
2005, SERIES C-2 (FEDERALLY TAXABLE-ISSUER SUBSIDY-BUILD 
AMERICA BONDS)] 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the District has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named 
Bonds as required by Section 4 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate of the District, dated the date of issuance. 
[The District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed no later than .] 

Dated: ____ _ 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

[to be signed only if filed] 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

This Continuing Disclosure Cet1ificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by the West 
Contra Costa Unified School District (the "District") in connection with the issuance of $57,860,000 aggregate 
principal amount of West Contra Costa Unified School District 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (the 
"Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued as authorized by a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of the 
District on July 29, 2009, and in accordance with the terms of a Paying Agent Agreement, dated as of September I, 
2009 (the "Paying Agent Agreement"), by and between the District and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., as paying agent (the "Paying Agent"). The District covenants and agrees as follows: 

SECTION I. Puroose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed and 
delivered by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the 
Participating Underwriters in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). 

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Paying Agent Agreement, 
which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 
following capitalized tenus shall have the following meanings: 

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as described in, 
Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"Beneficial Owner'' shall mean any person which has or shares the power, directly or indirectly, to make 
investfnellt decisions concerning ownership of any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through nominees, 
depositories or other intermediaries). 

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the District, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in writing 
by the District and which ha.'i filed with the District a written acceptance of such designation. 

"Holder'' shall mean the person in whose name any Bond shall be registered. 

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section S(a) of this Disclosure Certificate. 

"MSRB'' shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other entity designated or 
authorized by the Securities and Exchange Commission to receive reports pursuant to the Rule. Until otherwise 
designated by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission, filings with the MSRB are to be made 
through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the MSRB, cunently located at 
http://emma.msrb.org. 

"Participating Underwriter'' shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply 
with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Repmts. 

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine months 
after the end of the District's fiscal year (cutTently ending June 30), commencing with the report for the 2008-09 
Fiscal Year (which is due not later than March 31, 20 I 0), provide to the Participating Underwriter and to the MSRB 
an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirement<;j of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual 
Repmt must be submitted in electronic format, accompanied by such identifying information as is prescribed by the 
MSRB, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided, 
that the audited financial statements of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual 
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Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that 
date. If the District's fiscal year changes, it shaH give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed 
Event under Section 5(c). 

(b) Not later than 15 Business Days prior to said date specified in subsection (a) of this 
Section, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the District). If the 
District is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a) of this Section, 
the Disu·ict shall send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the District), file 
a report with the District certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate, 
stating the date it was provided to the MSRB. 

SECTION 4. 
reference the following: 

* 

Content of Annual Reports. The District's Annual Report shall contain or include by 

Audited financial statements of the District for the preceding fiscal year, prepared in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California and including all statements and 
information prescribed for inclusion therein by the Controller of the State of California. 
If the District's audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual 
Report is required to be provided to the MSRB pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual 
Report shaH contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial 
statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the audited financial statements 
shall be provided to the MSRB in the same manner as the Annual Report when they 
become available. 

To the extent not included in the audited financial statement of the District, the Annual Report shall also include the 
following: 

* Adopted budget of the District for the current fiscal year, including any interim budget 
reports adopted prior to the date of filing the Annual Report, or a summary thereof. 

* 

* 

* 

Assessed value of taxable property in the District as shown on the recent equalized 
assessment role. 

Property tax levies, collections and delinquencies for the District, for the prior fiscal year, 
if the District is no longer a participant in the County's Teeter Plan. 

Top ten property owners in the District for the then current fiscal year, as measured by 
secured assessed valuation, the amount of their respective taxable value, and their 
percentage of total secured assessed value. 

Any or all of the items Jisted above may be set forth in one or a set of documents or may be included by specific 
reference to other documents, including official statements of debt issues of the District or related pub1ic entities, 
which have been made available to the public on the MSRB website. If the document included by reference is a 
final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The District shall clearly identify each such other 
document so included by reference. 

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be given, 
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material: 

I. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
2. Non-payment related defaults; 
3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

C-7 



5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to petform; 
6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds; 
7. Modifications to rights of Bond holders; 
8. Optional, unscheduled or contingent Bond calls; 
9. Defea'"nces; 
I 0. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds; 
II. Rating changes. 

(b) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the District 
shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws. 

(c) If the District determines that knowledge of the occunence of a Listed Event would be 
material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall promptly file a notice of such occunence with the 
MSRB. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of the Listed Event described in subsections (a)(8) and (a)(9) of this 
Section need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given 
to Holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Paying Agent Agreement. The notice of Listed Event must be 
submitted in electronic format, accompanied by such identifying information as is prescribed by the MSRB. 

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District's obligations under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of ail of the Bonds. If 
such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give notice of such termination in 
the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

' 

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent to assist it in canying out its obligations under this Disclosure Cettificate, and may discharge 
any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shaU not be 
responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the District pursuant to this Disclosure 
Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the District. 

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure Certificate, 
the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, 
provided that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, or 5(a), it may only 
be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in 
law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or the type of 
business conducted; 

(b) The undettaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the lime of the original 
issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, a:-; well as any 
change in circumstances; and 

(c) The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, 
matelially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall describe such 
amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the rea.;;on for the 
amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting p1inciplcs, on the presentation) 
of financial information or operating data being presented by tl1e Diso·ict. In addition, if the amendment relates to the 
accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the 
same manner a' for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the Annual Repmt for the year in which the change is 
made should present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative f01m) between the financial 
statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the f01mcr 
accounting principles. 
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SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 
prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this 
Disclosure Ce11ificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual 
Report or notice of occuncnce of a Listed Event. in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. 
If the District chooses to include any infonnation in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in 
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall have no obligation 
under this Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of 
a Listed Event. 

SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with 
its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate; provided that any such action may be instituted only in Superior 
Court of the State of California in and for the County of Cono·a Costa or in U.S. District Court in or nearest to the 
County. The sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with 
this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance. 

SECTION II. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the District, 
the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to time of 
the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

SECTION 12. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid illegal or unenforceable in any respect such invalidity illegality or unenforceability shall 
not affect any other provision hereof. 

SECTION 13. State of California Law Governs. The validity interpretation and performance of this 
Disclosure Certificate shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 

SECTION 14. Signature. This Disclosure Certificate has been executed by the undersigned on the date 
hereof and such signature binds the District to the undertaking herein provided. 

Date: ______ _ 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By ________ ~r~d~ra~f~t-~n~o~tLfo~r~s~ibg~n£at~u~re~JL_ _____ _ 
Associate Superintendent 

for Business Services 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF NOTICE TO THE MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD 
OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of District: 

Name of Bond Issue: 

Date of Issuance: 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2009 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

___ ,2009 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the District has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named 
Bonds as required by Section 4 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate of the District, dated the Date of Issuance. 
[The District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by .] 

Dated: _____ _ 

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By ______ ~[to~b~e~si~g~ne~d~o~n~l~v~if~fl~tl~ed~]L_ ___ __ 
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APPENDIXD 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities 
(the "Bonds"). The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully­
registered security certificate wi11 be issued for each maturity of each series of the Bonds, each in the aggregate 
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New 
York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a "clearing agency"' registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, 
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instrument from over 100 countries that DTC' s participants 
("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants 
of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers 
and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities 
certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 
Depositmy Trust & Clea~ing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Secmities 
Clearing Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which arc registered clearing agencies. DTCC 
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both 
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and cleru·ing corporations that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect 
Pmticipants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are 
on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com 
and www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will 
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond 
("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners 
will not receive written confi1mation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to 
receive written confinnations providing details of the lransaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, 
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of 
ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect 
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing 
their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is 
discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the 
name of DTC' s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such 
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts 
such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will 
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant 
events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the bond 
documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds 
for their benefit has agree~ to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners, in the alternative, Beneficial Owners 
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may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the notices be provided 
direct! y to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed, 
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be 
redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds 
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC 
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede 
& Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the 
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such 
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts, upon DTC' s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the District or the 
Paying Agent on payable date in accordance with ·their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by 
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case 
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the 
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, or the District, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payments of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the 
responsibility of the District or the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the 
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of 
Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the District or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered as 
described in the Resolution. 

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC as described 
in the Resolution. 

In the event that the book-entry system is discontinued, the following provisions would also apply: (a) 
Bonds may be exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds or other authorized denominations of the 
same maturity and interest rate, upon surrender thereof to the Paying Agent; (b) the transfer of any Bond may be 
registered on the books maintained by the Paying Agent under the Resolution for such purpose only upon the 
suJTcnder thereof to the Paying Agent together with a duly executed written instrument of transfer in a form 
approved by the Paying Agent; (c) for every exchange or transfer of Bonds, the Paying Agent shall require the 
payment by any owner requesting such transfer or exchange of any tax or other governmental charge required to be 
paid with respect to such exchange or registration of transfer; (d) all interest payments on the Bonds will be made by 
wire or check mailed by the Paying Agent to the owners thereof to such owner's address as it appears on the 
registration books maintained by the Paying Agent on the 15th day of the month preceding such Interest Payment 
Date; and (e) all payments of principal of and any premium on the Bonds will be paid upon surrender thereof to the 
Paying Agent 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from 
sources that the District believes to be reliable, but the District takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

The District cannot and does not give any assurances that DTC will distribute to Participants or that 
Participants or others will distribute to the Beneficial Owners payments of principal of and interest and 
premium, if any, on the Bonds paid or any redemption or other notices or that they will do so on a timely 
basis or will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement- The District is not responsible 
or liable for the failure of DTC or any Participant or Indirect Participant to make any payments or give any 
notice to a Beneficial Owner with respect to the Bonds or any error or delay relating thereto_ 
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Neither the District nor the Paying Agent will have any responsibility or obligation to Participants, to 
Indirect Participants or to any Beneficial Owner with respect to (i) the accuracy of any records maintained by 
DTC, any Participant, or any Indirect Participant; (ii) the payment by DTC or any Participant or Indirect 
Participant of any amount with respect to the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds; (iii) 
any notice that is permitted or required to be given to Holders pursuant to the District Resolution; (iv) the 
selection by DTC, any Participant or any Indirect Participant of any person to receive payment in the event 
of a partial redemption of the Bonds; (v) any consent given or other action taken by DTC as Bondholder; or 
(vi) any other procedures or obligations of DTC, Participants or Indirect Participants under the book-entry 
system. 
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BOND ACCRETED VALUE TABLE 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of2005, Series C-1 

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital 
Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation 

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds 
08/01/2016 08/01/2017 08/01/2018 08/01/2019 08/01/2020 08/01/2021 08/0112022 08/0112023 

Date 12% 12% 12% 12% 12% 7.85% 624% 6.35% 

09/03/2009 2,234.50 1,988. 70 1,769.95 1,575.25 1,401.95 1,998.30 2,261.65 2,095.50 
02/01/2010 2,344.15 2,086.30 I ,856.80 1,652.55 1,470.75 2,062.55 2,319.50 2,150.10 
08/01/2010 2,484.80 2,211.50 1,968.20 1,751.70 1,559.00 2,143.50 2,391.85 2,218.35 
02/0112011 2,633.90 2,344.15 2,086.30 1,856.80 1,652.55 2,227.65 2,466.50 2,288.80 
08/0112011 2,791.95 2,484.80 2,211.50 1,968.20 1,751.70 2,315.05 2,543.45 2,361.45 
02/0112012 2,959.45 2,633.90 2,344.15 2,086.30 1,856.80 2,405.95 2,622.80 2,436.40 
08/01/2012 3,137.05 2,791.95 2,484.80 2,211.50 1,968.20 2,500.35 2,704.65 2,513.80 
02/01/2013 3,325.25 2,959.45 2,633.90 2.344.15 2,086.30 2,598.50 2,789.00 2,593.60 
08/01/2013 3,524.80 3,137.05 2,791.95 2,484.80 2,211.50 2,700.50 2,876.05 2,675.95 

tTl 02/01/2014 3,736.25 3,325.25 2,959.45 2,633.90 2,344.15 2,806.50 2,965.75 2,760.90 ' 
08/01/2014 3,960.45 3,524.80 3,137.05 2,791.95 2,484.80 2,916.65 3,058.30 2,848.55 
02/01/2015 4,198.05 3,736.25 3,325.25 2,959.45 2,633.90 3,031.15 3,153.70 2,939.00 
08/01/2015 4,449.95 3,960.45 3,524.80 3,137.05 2,791.95 3,150.10 3,252.10 3,032.30 
02/01/2016 4,716.95 4,198.05 3,736.25 3,325.25 2,959.45 3,273.75 3,353.60 3,128.60 
08/01/2016 5,000.00 4,449.95 3,960.45 3,524.80 3,137.05 3,402.25 3,458.20 3,227.95 
02/01/2017 4,716.95 4,198.05 3,736.25 3,325.25 3,535.80 3,566.10 3,330.40 
08/01/2017 5,000.00 4,449.95 3,960.45 3,524.80 3,674.55 3,677.40 3,436.15 
02/01/2018 4,716.95 4,198.05 3,736.25 3,818.80 3,792.10 3,545.25 
08/0112018 5,000.00 4,449.95 3,960.45 3,968.70 3,910.45 3,657.80 
02/0112019 4,716.95 4,198.05 4,124.45 4,032.45 3,773.95 
08/01/2019 5,000.00 4,449.95 4,286 35 4,158.25 3,893.80 
02/0112020 4,716.95 4,454.60 4,288.00 4,017.40 
08/01/2020 5,000.00 4,629.45 4,421. 75 4,144.95 
02/01/2021 4,811.15 4,559.75 4,276.55 
08/0112021 5,000.00 4,702.00 4,412.35 
02/0112022 4,848.70 4,552.45 
08/01/2022 5,000.00 4,697.00 
02/0112023 4,846.10 
08/0112023 5,000.00 
02/0112024 



Date 

08/01/2024 
02/01/2025 
08/01/2025 
02/01/2026 
08/01/2026 
02/01/2027 
08/01/2027 
02/01/2028 
08/01/2028 

~ 0210 I /2029 
08/01/2029 
02/01/2030 
08/01/2030 
02/01/2031 
08/01/2031 
02/01/2032 
08/01/2032 
02/01/2033 
08/01/2033 

Capital 
Appreciation 

Bonds 
08/01/2016 

12% 

Capital 
Appreciation 

Bonds 
08/01/2017 

12% 

BOND ACCRETED VALUE TABLE 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of2005, Series C-1 

Capital Capital Capital Capital 
Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation 

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds 
08/01/2018 08/01/2019 08/01/2020 08/01/2021 

12% 12% 12% 7.85% 

Capital 
Appreciation 

Bonds 
08/01/2022 

6.24% 

Capital 
Appreciation 

Bonds 
08/01/2023 

6.35% 



BOND ACCRETED VALUE TABLE 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-1 

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital 
Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation 

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds 
08/01/2024 08/01/2025 08/01/2026 08/01/2027 08/01/2028 08/01/2029 08/0112030 08/01/2031 

Date 6.49% 6.66% 6.76% 6.85% 6.94% 7% 7.05% 7.15% 

0910312009 1,929.10 1,763.00 I ,624.40 1,496.40 1.376.10 1,270.60 I, 174.20 1,072.65 
02/01/20 I 0 I ,980.45 1,811.10 1,669.40 1,538.40 1,415.25 1,307.05 1,208.10 1,104.05 
08/01/2010 2,044.70 1,871.40 1,725.80 1,591.10 1,464.35 1,352.80 1,250.70 1,143.55 
02/01/2011 2,111.05 1,933.75 1,784.15 1,645.60 1,515.15 1,400.15 1,294.80 1,184.45 
08/01/2011 2,179.55 I ,998.15 I ,844.45 1,70 !.95 1,567.75 I ,449.15 1,340.45 1,226.75 
02/01/2012 2,250.30 2,064 65 1,906.80 1,760.25 1,622.15 1,499.85 1,387.70 1,270.65 
08/0112012 2,323.30 2,133.45 1,971.25 I ,820.55 1,678.40 I ,552.35 1,436.60 1,316.05 
02/01/2013 2,398.70 2,204.45 2,037.90 1,882.90 1,736.65 1,606.70 1,487.25 1,363.10 
08/01/2013 2,476.55 2,277.90 2,106.75 1,947.40 1,796.95 1,662.90 I ,539.65 1,411.85 

~ 02/01/2014 2,556.90 2,353. 75 2,177.95 2,014.05 I ,859.30 1,72l.l5 1,593.95 1,462.30 
08/01/2014 2,639.90 2,432.10 2,25!.60 2,083.05 1,923.80 1,781.35 1,650.10 1,514.60 
02/01/2015 2,725.55 2,513.10 2,327.70 2,154.40 1,990.55 1,843.70 I ,708.30 I ,568. 75 
08/01/2015 2,814.00 2,596.80 2,406.35 2,228.20 2,059.65 I ,908.25 1,768.50 1,624.80 
0210112016 2,905.30 2,683.25 2,487.70 2,304.50 2,131.10 1,975.05 I ,830 85 I ,682.90 
08/01/2016 2,999.60 2,772.60 2,571.80 2,383.45 2,205 05 2,044.15 1,895.40 1,743.05 
02/01/2017 3,096.95 2,864.95 2,658.70 2,465 05 2,281.55 2,115.70 I ,962.20 1,805.40 
08/0112017 3,197.40 2,960.35 2,748.60 2,549.50 2,360.75 2,189.75 2,031.35 I ,869.95 
02/01/2018 3,301.20 3,058.95 2,841.50 2,636.80 2,442.65 2,266.40 2,102.95 1,936.80 
08/01/2018 3,408.30 3,160.80 2,937 55 2,727.15 2,527.40 2,345.75 2,177.10 2,006.00 
02/01/2019 3,518.90 3,266.05 3,036.80 2,820.55 2,615.10 2,427.85 2,253.85 2,077.75 
08/01/2019 3,633.10 3,374.80 3,139.45 2,917.15 2,705.85 2,512.80 2,333.30 2,152.00 
02/01/2020 3,751.00 3,487.20 3,245.60 3,017.05 2,799.75 2,600.75 2,415.55 2,228.95 
08/01/2020 3,872.70 3,603.30 3,355.30 3,120.40 2,896.90 2,691.80 2,500.70 2,308.65 
02/01/2021 3,998.40 3,723.30 3,468.70 3,227.25 2,997.45 2,786.00 2,588.85 2,391.20 
08/01/2021 4,128.15 3,847.30 3,585.95 3,337.80 3,10!.45 2,883.50 2,680.10 2,476.65 
02/01/2022 4,262.10 3,975.40 3,707.15 3,452.!0 3,209.05 2,984.45 2,774.60 2,565.20 
08/01/2022 4,400.40 4,107.80 3,832.45 3,570.35 3,320.40 3,088.90 2,872.40 2,656.90 
02/01/2023 4,543.20 4,244.60 3,961.95 3,692.65 3,435 65 3,197.00 2,973.65 2,751.90 
08/0112023 4,690.60 4,385.95 4,095.90 3,819.10 3,554.85 3,308.90 3,078.45 2,850.30 
02/01/2024 4,842.80 4,532.00 4,234.35 3,949.90 3,678.20 3,424.70 3,186.95 2,952.20 



BOND ACCRETED VALUE TABLE 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of2005, Series C-1 

Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital 
Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation Appreciation 

Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds 
08/01/2024 08/01/2025 08/01/2026 08/01/2027 08/01/2028 08/01/2029 08/01/2030 08/01/2031 

Date 6.49% 6.66% 6.76% 6.85% 6.94% 7% 7.05% 7.15% 

08/01/2024 5,000.00 4,682.90 4,377.45 4,085.20 3,805.85 3,544.55 3,299.30 3,057.70 
02/01/2025 4,838.85 4,525.40 4,225.15 3,937.90 3,668.65 3,415.60 3,167.05 
08/01/2025 5,000.00 4,678.35 4,369.85 4,074.55 3,797.05 3,536.00 3,280.25 
02/01/2026 4,836.50 4,519.50 4,215.95 3,929.95 3,660.65 3,397.50 
08/01/2026 5,000.00 4,674.30 4,36225 4,067.50 3,789.70 3,519.00 
02/01/2027 4,834.40 4,513.60 4,209.85 3,923.30 3,644.80 
08/01/2027 5,000.00 4,670.25 4,357.20 4,061.60 3,775.10 
02/01/2028 4,832.30 4,509.70 4,204.75 3,910.05 
08/01/2028 5,000.00 4,667.55 4,353.00 4,049.85 

m 02/01/2029 4,830.90 4,506.40 4,194.60 1. 
08/01/2029 5,000.00 4,665.25 4,344.60 
02/01/2030 4,829.75 4,499.90 
08/01/2030 5,000.00 4,660.75 
02/01/2031 4,827.40 
08/01/2031 5,000.00 
02/01/2032 
08/0112032 
02/01/2033 
08/01/2033 



BOND ACCRETED VALUE TABLE 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of2005, Series C-1 

Capital Capital 
Appreciation Appreciation 

Bonds Bonds 
08/0112032 08/01/2033 

Date 7.24% 7.34% 

09/03/2009 980.15 892.05 
02/0112010 1,009.25 918.90 
08/01/2010 1,045.80 952.60 
02101120 II 1,083.65 987.55 
08101/20 II 1,122.85 I ,023.80 
02/01/2012 1,163.50 I ,061.40 
08/01/2012 I ,205.65 1,100.35 
02/01/2013 1,249.30 1,140.75 
08/01/2013 I ,294.50 1,182.60 m 02/01/2014 1,341.35 1,226.00 v. 
08/01/2014 I ,389.95 1,271.00 
02/01/2015 I ,440.25 1,317.65 
08/01/2015 1,492.40 I ,366.00 
02/01/2016 I ,546.40 1,416.15 
08/01/2016 I ,602.40 1,468.10 
02/0112017 I ,660.40 1,522.00 
08/01/2017 1,720.50 1,577.85 
02/0112018 1,782.80 1,635. 75 
08/0112018 1,847.35 1,695.80 
02/01/2019 1,914.20 1,758.00 
08/01/2019 I ,983.50 1,822.55 
02/0112020 2,055.30 I ,889.45 
08/01/2020 2,129.70 1,958.75 
02/0112021 2,206.80 2,030.65 
08/0112021 2,286.70 2,105.20 
02/01/2022 2,369.45 2,182.45 
08/01/2022 2,455.25 2,262.55 
02/01/2023 2,544.10 2,345 60 
08/01/2023 2,636.20 2,431.65 
02/01/2024 2,731.65 2,520.90 



BOND ACCRETED VALUE TABLE 

West Contra Costa Unified School District 
2009 General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2005, Series C-1 

Capital Capital 
Appreciation Appreciation 

Bonds Bonds 
08/01/2032 08/01/2033 

Date 7.24% 7.34% 

08/01/2024 2,830.55 2,613.45 
02/01/2025 2,933.00 2,709.35 
08/01/2025 3,039.20 2,808.75 
02/01/2026 3,149.20 2,911.85 
08/01/2026 3,263.20 3,018.70 
02/01/2027 3,381.35 3,129.50 
08/01/2027 3,503. 75 3,244.35 
02/01/2028 3,630.55 3,363.45 
08/01/2028 3,762.00 3,486.85 

!'11 02/01/2029 3,898.20 3,614.85 ' 0; 

08/01/2029 4,039.30 3,747.50 
02/01/2030 4,185.50 3,885.05 
08/01/2030 4.337.05 4,027.60 
02/01/2031 4,494.05 4,175.45 
08/01/2031 4,656.70 4,328.70 
02/01/2032 4,825.30 4,487.55 
08/01/2032 5,000.00 4,652.25 
02/01/2033 4,822.95 
08/01/2033 5,000.00 
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1\SSURED 
GUABANTY" 

1 ENDURING FINANCIAL STRENGTH 

Issuer: 

Obligations: 

Financial Guaranly Insurance Policy 

Policy No .. 

E 

nt of the Premium 
), li unconditionally and 

ligations (as set forth in the 
o ers that portion of the Insured 

ured G ranty for any reason. The Premium on this Policy is not refundable for any 
y prepayment premium or other acceleration payment which at any time may 

han at the sole option of Assured Guaranty, nor against any risk other than 

Exc p ssly odified by any endorsement hereto, the following terms shall have the meanings specified 
for all purposes of thi Poli . ~ vo Payment~ means any amount previously distributed to a Holder in respect of any Insured 
Payment by or on h f th Issuer, which amount has been recovered from such Holder pursuant to the United States 
Bankruptcy Code in ccordance with a final. nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction that such payment 
constitutes an avoidab ef nee with respect to such Holder. "Business Day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday or 
Sunday, (ii) any day on which the offices of the Trustee, the Paying Agent or Assured Guaranty are closed, or (iii) any day on which 
banking institutions are authorized or required by law. executive order or governmental decree to be dosed in the City of New York 
or in the State of Maryland. ~Due for Payment• means {i) when referring to the principal of an Obligation, the stated maturity date 
thereof. or the date on which such Obligation shall have been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption, and does not refer 
to any earlier date on which payment is due by reason of a call for redemption (other than by mandatory sinking fund redemption), 
acceleration or other advancement of maturity (unless Assured Guaranty in its sole discretion elects to make any principal payment. 
in whole or in part, on such eartier date) and (ii) when referring to interest on an Obligation, the stated date for payment of such 
interest. "Holder" means. in respect of any Obligation, the person or entity who, at the time of Nonpayment, is entitled under the 
terms of such Obligation to payment of principal or Interest thereunder, except that Holder shall not include the Issuer or any person 
or entity whose direct or indirect obligation constitutes the underlying security for the Obligations. mlnsured Payments• means that 
portion of the principal of and interest on the Obligations that shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of 
Nonpayment. Insured Payments shall not include any additional amounts owing by the Issuer solely as a result of the failure by the 
Trustee or the Paying Agent to pay such amount when due and payable, including without limitation any such additional amounts as 
may be attributable to penalties or to interest accruing at a default rate, to amounts payable in respect of indemnification, or to any 
other additional amounts payable by the Trustee or the Paying Agent by reason of such failure. ~NonpaymentM means, in respect of 
an Obligation, the failure of the Issuer to have provided sufficient funds to the Trustee or the Paying Agent for payment in full of all 
principal and interest Due for Payment on such Obligation. It is further understood that the term "Nonpayment" in respect of an 
Obligation includes any Avoided Payment. "Receipt" or "Received" means actual receipt or notice of or, if notice is given by 
overnight or other delivery service, or by certified or registered United States mail, by a delivery receipt signed by a person 
authorized to accept delivery on behalf of the person to whom the notice was given. Notices to Assured Guaranty may be mailed by 
registered mail or personally delivered or telecopied to it at 1325 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10019, Telephone 
Number: (212) 974-0100, Facsimile Number: (212) 581-3268, Altention: Risk Management Depanment Public Finance 
Surveillance, with a copy to the General Counsel, or to such other address as shall be specified by Assured Guaranty to the Trustee 
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or the Paying Agent in writing. A Notice of Nonpayment will be deemed to be Received by Assured Guaranty on a given Business 
Day if it is Received prior to 12:00 noon (New York City time) on such Business Day; otherwise it will be deemed Received on the 
next Business Day. 'Term~ means the period from and inducting the Effective Date until the earlier of (i) the maturity date for the 
Obligations, or (ii) the date on which the Issuer has made all payments required to be made on the Obligations. 

At any time during the Term of this Policy, Assured Guaranty may appoint a fiscal agent (the KFiscal Agenn for purposes 
of this Policy by written notice to the Trustee or the Paying Agent, specifying the name and notice address of such Fiscal Agent. 
From and after the date of Receipt of such notice by the Trustee or the Paying Agent, copies of all notices documents required 
to be delivered to Assured Guaranty pursuant to this Policy shall be delivered simultaneously to the Fi ent and to Assured 
Guaranty. All payments required to be made by Assured Guaranty under this Policy may be made directly A red Guaranty or 
by the Fiscal Agent on behalf of Assured Guaranty. The Fiscal Agent is the agent of Assured Gu n nly, nd e Fiscal Agent 
shall in no event be liable to the Trustee or the Paying Agent for any acts of the Fiscal Agent or a failure Guaranty to 
deposit, or cause to be deposited, sufficient funds to make payments due under this Policy. 

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Assured Guaranty hereby 
Holders only, all rights and defenses of any kind (Including, without limitation, the defen of frau n the· 
other circumstance that would have the effect of discharging a surety, guarantor or at 
available to Assured Guaranty to deny or avoid payment of its obligations u er t · 
provisions hereof. Nothing in this paragraph will be construed (i) to waive, limit or erwis 
reserves, Assured Gua(anty's rights and remedies, including, without limita · n. "ts ht 
(based on contractual rights, securities law violations, fraud or other cau es of a ·o 
whether directly or acquired as a subrogee, assignee or otheJWise, su nt t m 
Agent, in accordance with the express provisions hereof, and/or (ii o r uir a 
have been previously paid or that are not otherwise due in accordanc ith t 

s d Guaranty with respect 
i trument, including, without 
HE PROPERTY/CASUALTY 

W. This Policy will be governed 

a with its corporate seal, to be signed by 

(SEAL) 
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F-2 

By: 

ty by virtue at such signature. 

[Insert Authorized Signatory Name] 
[Insert Authorized Signatory Title} 

Signature attested to by: 

Counsel 



I THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFr BLANK! 



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT' BLANK) 




